Public Document Pack

Executive
Committee

Tue 4 Feb
2025

6.30 pm %R edstCh

Oakenshaw Community
Centre, Castleditch

Borough Council
Lane , B98 7YB Working together for our communities




If you have any queries on this Agenda please contact
Jess Bayley-Hill

Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH
Tel: (01527) 64252 (Ext. 3072)
e.mail: jess.bayley-hill@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

GUIDANCE ON FACE-TO-FACE MEETINGS

Please note that this is a public meeting.

If you have any questions regarding the agenda or attached papers, please do not
hesitate to contact the officer named above.

GUIDANCE FOR ELECTED MEMBERS ATTENDING MEETINGS IN PERSON

Meeting attendees are encouraged not to attend the meeting if they have any of the following
common symptoms of Covid-19 on the day of the meeting; a high temperature, a new and
continuous cough or a loss of smell and / or taste.

PUBLIC ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS

Members of the public are encouraged not to attend the meeting if they have any of the
following common symptoms of Covid-19 on the day of the meeting; a high temperature, a
new and continuous cough or a loss of smell and / or taste.

Notes:

Although this is a public meeting, there are circumstances when Council might have
to move into closed session to consider exempt or confidential information. For
agenda items that are exempt, the public are excluded.


mailto:jess.bayley-hill@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

tiReddith

Borough Council _
ot oo Executive

Tuesday, 4th February, 2025
6.30 pm
Oakenshaw Community Centre

Agenda Membership:
Cllrs: Joe Baker (Chair) Jen Snape
Sharon Harvey Jane Spilsbury
(Vice-Chair) Monica Stringfellow
Juliet Barker Smith  lan Woodall
Bill Hartnett
Wanda King
1. Apologies
2. Declarations of Interest

-

To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and / or Other
Disclosable Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm the nature of
those interests.

Leader's Announcements
Minutes (Pages 5 - 20)
Pay Policy 2025/26 (Pages 21 - 32)

Medium Term Financial Plan - Tranche 2 Budget including Fees and Charges
(following consultation) (Pages 33 - 130)

Appendix A to this report will follow in a supplementary papers pack.

This report is due to be pre-scrutinised at a meeting of the Budget Scrutiny Working Group
scheduled to take place on 31%t January 2025. Any recommendations arising from this
meeting, subject to being endorsed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, will be
reported for the Executive Committee’s consideration in a supplementary papers pack for this
meeting.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Pages 131 - 144)

Minutes / Referrals - Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Executive Panels etc.

To receive and consider any outstanding minutes or referrals from the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee, Executive Panels etc. since the last meeting of the Executive Committee, other
than as detailed in the items above.



Executive
Tuesday, 4th February, 2025

9. To consider any urgent business, details of which have been notified to the
Assistant Director of Legal, Democratic and Procurement Services prior to the
commencement of the meeting and which the Chair, by reason of special
circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until
the next meeting



Page 5 Agenda ltem 4

HReddith

el Executive Tuesdy, A A
bl COMMittee

MINUTES Present:

Councillor Joe Baker (Chair), Councillor Sharon Harvey (Vice-Chair) and
Councillors Juliet Barker Smith, Bill Hartnett, Wanda King, Jen Snape,
Jane Spilsbury, Monica Stringfellow and lan Woodall

Officers:

Peter Carpenter, Nicola Cummings, Helen Oakes, Simon Parry, Guy
Revans, Andrew Rainbow, Darren Whitney and Judith Willis

56. APOLOGIES
There were no apologies for absence.
57. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no Declarations of Interest.
58. LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Leader advised that at the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee held on 13" January 2025, Members pre-scrutinised the
following items scheduled for consideration at the Executive Committee
Meeting:

e Item 5: Food Waste Business Case and Associated
Waste Related Issues

e Item 6: Damp and Mould Additional Resources

e Item 7: Housing Ombudsman’s Findings Report

e Item 10: Independent Remuneration Panel’s
Recommendations

At the end of their discussions, the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee noted and endorsed the recommendations for first three
items and added a specific recommendation for item 10 which was
“that the basic allowance and special responsibility allowances
(SRAs) should be increased by approximately the rate of inflation.”

Chair



Executive
Committee
59.
60.

Page 6 Agenda ltem 4

Tuesday, 14th January, 2025

At a meeting of the Budget Scrutiny Working Group held on 9t
January 2025, Members pre-scrutinised the following reports:

¢ Item 8: Final Council Tax Support Scheme 2025/26
e Item 9: Council Tax Base 2025/26

e |tem 11: Medium Term Financial Plan Tranche 1

¢ Item 15: HRA Rent Setting 2025/26

The group did not propose any recommendations.

On behalf of the Executive Committee, the Leader thanked the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Budget Scrutiny Working
Group for their hard work in pre-scrutinising these reports.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that

the minutes of the meeting of the Executive Committee held on
26" November 2024 be approved as a true and correct record
and signed by the Chair.

FOOD WASTE BUSINESS CASE AND ASSOCIATED WASTE
RELATED ISSUES

The Assistant Director Environmental & Housing Property Services
presented the report on the Introduction of Food Waste Collections.

The Committee was informed that there were a number of factors to
consider as part of the introduction of food waste collections
including delays from Government in funding, issues with capacity
within the Operating Licence for the vehicles needed to deliver the
service in house as well as physical restrictions within the depot.
There was also the risk of the volume of residents that participated
in the scheme.

Options were summarised for the delivery of the service however
officers were recommending outsourcing the service with a joint
tender from this Authority, Bromsgrove District Council and Wyre
Forest District Council over a period of eight years.



Executive
Committee

Page 7 Agenda ltem 4

Tuesday, 14th January, 2025

Members were in favour of supporting the recommendations and
noted that even if the tender did not work out there would be time to
consider other options.

The Executive Director noted that officers would work on a twin
stream basis to look at running in-house, as a back-up, to mitigate
the risk if the tender did not provide a viable solution.

The Leader thanked the Assistant Director Environmental &
Housing Property Services and colleagues for the work on this.

RESOLVED that

1)

2)

Subject to the outcome of negotiations, the
introduction of a joint Food Waste Collection Service
be approved, working with Bromsgrove District
Council and Wyre Forest District Council to deliver
the authority’s statutory duties under the
Environment Act 2021 regarding a Food Waste
Collection service;

Delegated authority be granted to the Assistant
Director of Environmental and Housing Property
Services following consultation with the Section 151
Officer, the Principal Solicitor (Contracts, Commercial
and Procurement) and the Portfolio Holders for
Finance and Environmental Services respectively,
subject to the agreement of recommendations 1 and
3, to:

a) negotiate and agree terms with Bromsgrove
District Council and Wyre Forest District
Council to enter into a joint tender for a shared
food waste collection service;

b) tender and award a dedicated weekly food
waste collection service through a third party
for a period of 8 years commencing no later
than 31 March 2026.

RECOMMENDED that:



Executive

Committee

Page 8 Agenda ltem 4

Tuesday, 14th January, 2025

61.

3) The Council allocate £500,000 Revenue Funding in
the Medium-Term Financial Plan as an operational
budget from 2026/27 to fund the Food Waste
Collection Service in the Borough, as accounted for
within tranche 1 of the budget.

DAMP AND MOULD ADDITIONAL RESOURCES

The Interim Housing Property Services Manager presented the
report on the subject of Damp and Mould Additional Resources.

The Committee were informed that this was a national issue and
not just a local one and establishing a Damp and Mould Team
would put the Authority ahead of the curve.

Members were referred to the business case in the appendix and
the officer noted that as the report outlined, investing in a damp and
mould team aligned with the Council's commitment to providing safe
and habitable homes for residents.

Members welcomed the report, and the Leader noted the
responsibility for the Council to look after its residents and that this
was a good way forward. Particularly if education was included
which had been discussed at the last Overview and Scrutiny
Committee meeting.

The Portfolio Holder took the opportunity to thank officers for their
work and echoed the Leader’'s comments adding that even though
some properties were more susceptible to mould and damp, the
expertise of the new team would reduce response times, increase
the safety of residents and save money in the long run.

The Leader also thanked the Officers and commented that the
Council was leading the way.

RESOLVED that
1) Subject to approval of recommendation 2, Members
approve the contents of the Damp and Mould Business

Case and the establishment of a Damp and Mould Team.

RECOMMENDED that



Executive

Committee

Page 9 Agenda ltem 4

Tuesday, 14th January, 2025

62.

2) £115,770 be released from the HRA budget for the
financial year 2024/25 to cover the costs of the new team
and that thereafter the costs summarised at paragraph
4.3 of the report of £463,078 be met from the HRA
budget.

HOUSING OMBUDSMAN'S FINDINGS REPORT

The report on the Housing Ombudsman Findings was presented by
the Deputy Monitoring Officer.

The Committee were asked to note the findings, orders and
recommendations from the Housing Ombudsman. The Deputy
Monitoring Officer mentioned findings listed in paragraph 2.2
relating to severe maladministration in the Council’s response to
damp and mould and reports of a ticking noise and paragraphs 2.3
and 2.4 regarding maladministration for the Council’s response to
repairs and complaint handling.

It was further noted that the orders and recommended actions had
been completed and the case was closed by the Housing
Ombudsman on 13t November 2024.

The Assistant Director Environmental & Housing Property Services
made an apology from the Housing Service. He noted the many
failings that had occurred in this case and informed the Executive
Committee of number of changes that had been subsequently
incorporated. These included a review of capacity and premises, a
noise policy review, better recording of cases, training on
supporting vulnerable tenants and, a programme of visits to each
property to identify any issues that the customer raised.

The Leader accepted the apology on behalf of the Executive
Committee and noted how upsetting it was when things went
wrong. He noted that organisations made mistakes but it was how
they were dealt with was what counted. It was upsetting that things
went as far as they did but was comforted in the fact that steps had
been taken so that this did not happen again.

A Member echoed the Leader’s comments and noted
disappointment but welcomed the training of staff as long as it was
maintained. They had spoken to the Chief Executive regarding



Executive

Committee

Page 10 Agenda Item 4

Tuesday, 14th January, 2025

63.

equalities and were pleased to note equalities being used in
committee reports.

They further noted that it was good that this was being taken
seriously but that it could not happen again and asked officers what
had changed to ensure this.

The Assistant Director Environmental & Housing Property Services

responded that data was being used in a more robust way including
better monitoring of performance and trends on Complaints to make
sure standards were not slipping.

The question was asked if there had been any disciplinary action
taken and officers responded in the fact no individual was culpable,
but that the failings were across the service.

The Leader then commented that there was a responsibility for all,
Members as well as officers, to make sure complaints were dealt
with as soon as possible but also to pass on praise in the same
timely fashion.

The Leader thanked those involved in the report.
RESOLVED that

1) The findings, orders and recommendations from the
Housing Ombudsman be noted.

2) Compliance with those matters by the Council and the
wider learning points be noted.

FINAL COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME 2025/2026

The report Final Council Tax Support Scheme 2025/2026 was
presented by the Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer.

The Committee were informed that the Council Tax Support
Scheme had not changed to the one approved last year and was
set out in Appendix A. The only difference was that the whole
scheme had been uprated by 1.7% in line with the approved
increases in national benefits.



Executive

Committee

Page 11 Agenda Item 4

Tuesday, 14th January, 2025

64.

The Council bought in this scheme (banded) in 2021 and the full
review undertaken in the last year’s budget suggested that most
Councils now use this type of matrix.

For reference spending was circa £5 million on Council Tax Support
through the collection fund, with 70% paid for by Worcestershire
County Council (WCC), 13% paid for by Redditch Borough Council,
12% paid for by the Police and 5% by Fire.

There were circa 2,400 pension aged people receiving Council Tax
Support (paid for by the Government) and 3,500 Working Aged.

The Portfolio Holder was happy to endorse the recommendations,
and it was supported by other Members of the Executive
Committee.

RECOMMENDED that

the Council Tax reduction Scheme be retained for the 2025-26
tax year, subject to uprating of income bands by 1.7% in-line
with increases to national benefits as set out in the table at
Appendix A.

COUNCIL TAX BASE 2025/2026

The Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer presented the
Council Tax Base 2025/2026 report to the Committee.

Members were informed that this was a statutory report required to
allow precepting authorities to calculate how much Council Tax they
would raise in the upcoming year.

It was based on data on the Council Tax system as at the 30t
November 2024 and adjusted for the following:

e The latest dwelling numbers

e Discounts and Exemptions such as Council Tax Support

¢ An allowance of 1% for non-collection (and the Councils in
year collection rate was approximately 98%).

e The new Council Tax base was 26,455.5 Band “D”
equivalent properties (last year it was 26,317.1)



Executive

Committee

Page 12 Agenda Item 4

Tuesday, 14th January, 2025

65.

There was 1 Parish in Redditch, Feckenham. lIts Band “D”
equivalent figure as part of this total was 382.1 — up from 380.3 last
year.

Members welcomed the report, and the Leader thanked the Officers
involved.

RECOMMENDED that

1) The calculation of the council tax base for the whole and
parts of the area for 2025/26 be approved; and

2) In accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Tax
Base) (England) Regulations 2012, the figures calculated by
Redditch Borough Council as its tax base for the whole area be
26,455.5 and for the parts of the area listed below be.

Parish of Feckenham 382.1
Rest of Redditch 26,073.4
Total for the Borough 26,455.5

INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL RECOMMENDATIONS

The Independent Remuneration Panel Recommendations report
was presented by the Electoral Services Manager.

The Committee were informed that the panel were recommending a
basic allowance of £5,826 which was a 5.58% increase on their
recommendation for last year. If the Council were to agree with this,
it would be an increase of 19.6% on the current basic allowance.

It was noted that the Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) only
recommend one Special Responsibility Allowance (SRA) and have
different multipliers for Audit Chair and Opposition Political Group
Leaders.

It was further noted that Members should pay regard to the report
but did not have to accept any of the recommendations.

The Leader had met with the Chair of the IRP and discussed the
figures and noted that the Council was behind a lot of other
Authorities in terms of remuneration.




Executive

Committee

Page 13 Agenda Item 4

Tuesday, 14th January, 2025

66.

The Leader thanked the Panel and officers for the work they had
done this year on the remuneration.

Members discussed the report and whilst realising the need to
increase allowances decided on recommending an increase of the
basic allowance by 2.9%. Members also decided to freeze SRAs for
2025/26.

RECOMMENDED that
Redditch Borough Council adopts the following:

1. An increase of 2.9% to the current Basic Allowance for
2025/26.

2. A freeze on the current Special Responsibility Allowances
for 2025/26.

3. That travel allowances for 2025/26 continue to be paid in
accordance with the HMRC mileage allowance

4. That subsistence allowances for 2025/26 remain
unchanged

5. That the Dependent Carer’s Allowance remains unchanged

6. That travel and subsistence payments made by Parish
Councils to councillors (where they are paid) are made in
accordance with the provisions set out in this report

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN - TRANCHE 1 BUDGET
INCLUDING FEES AND CHARGES (FOLLOWING
CONSULTATION)

The Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer presented the
Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) Tranche 1 Budget including
Fees and Charges (following consultation).

Members were informed that at the Executive Committee meeting
held on 26" November, Tranche 1 of the MTFP (Prior to
Consultation) had been considered by Members. It was proposed
that the recommendations of that report, following the consultation
period now be recommended to Council.



Executive
Committee

Page 14 Agenda ltem 4

Tuesday, 14th January, 2025

The Council had consulted on its Tranche 1 Budget. This budget
consultation opened on 5" December 2024. An email invite was
sent to the Redditch Community Panel. The survey was also
promoted on a variety of social media channels.

The survey closed at 12noon on 2nd January 2025. The response
rate for the community panel was 44%; there were a total of 322
valid responses received.

Question 2 gave a split of the consultation responses by location
with the highest percentage of returns coming from Webheath,
Batchley and Headless Cross.

Question 17 gave the splits of Age Ranges of the people who filled
out the questionnaire. The vast majority were over 50.

The survey asked respondents to rank the three most important
services they felt the Council should invest in. These were:

e Community Safety (49.2.% of respondents).

e Maintenance of the Landscape and Environment (46.1.%
of respondents)

e Housing (42.1.% of respondents).

Each question had the following Questions asked had the following
possible responses:

e Strongly Agree

e Agree

e Neither Agree or Disagree
e Disagree

e Strongly Disagree

In those questions, 8 had responses well over 50% agreeing or
strongly agreeing, and only one had a response lower than 50%:

¢ Do you support fees and charges (such as hire costs)
rising by 4% to keep them in line with inflation and rising
staffing costs at a 47.7% approval rate.

The highest approval rating, at 84.1% was the question - Do you
agree that the Council should invest in its land and assets to ensure



Executive
Committee

Page 15 Agenda Item 4

Tuesday, 14th January, 2025

they are safe and fit for the future e.g. dealing with trees affected by
ash die back?

Two further questions were asked on what level of increase to
Redditch Borough Council's proportion of Council Tax do you
support?

e 61.7% agreed of strongly agreed with a 1.99% increase.
e This dropped to 37.8% at 2.99%.

There were 2 free text questions:

e Please let us know your suggestions for investing in the
borough to increase prosperity and enhance appeal for
residents and businesses alike?

o There were 181 responses to this question.
o These responses are being analysed and split
then into themes.

e Please let us know any other comments on the budget or
ideas for reducing costs or increasing income to ensure
Council services remain sustainable?

o There were 131 responses to this questions.
o These responses are being analysed and split
then into theme

Appendix C outlined the consultation spreadsheet and set out the
overall summary and a breakdown by question.

The Leader commended the work and those involved in this report
and said it was encouraging to see the engagement from the
Community Panel.

The Portfolio Holder also commended the work carried out and the
number of responses. It was noted that the results were slightly
skewed to the older generation but was a good mandate for what
the Council was doing.

The Leader was also disappointed in the response from the
younger age groups noting no one less that 19 had completed the
survey. It was thought it might be worth asking Communications
about visiting schools.



Executive
Committee
67.
68.

Page 16 Agenda Item 4

Tuesday, 14th January, 2025

It was noted that there had been a meeting regarding a youth
consultation plan and asked for further feedback from the free text
guestions, it was agreed more information in respect of this would
be sent to the Executive Committee.

Members proposed an amendment to the recommendation in
respect of Dial-a-Ride. The amendment proposed was that the level
of fees for Dial-a-Ride be retained for a further year in order to
support vulnerable members of the Borough who utilised the
service. The amendment was proposed by the Leader and
seconded by Councillor I. Woodhall.

On being put to the vote the amendment was carried. Therefore, it
was

RECOMMENDED that

1 Members endorse the inputs into the Council’s Medium
Term Financial Plan as at the middle of October, and the
associated risks and opportunities.

2 An initial Tranche of savings proposals and pressures,
as set out in Section 3.03 to 3.19, including the fees and
charges increases, apart from the dial-a-ride
amendment, after consideration of feedback from the
consultation exercise which closed on the 2" January,
be approved at Council.

3 The use of £300k of Economic Development Reserve for
Feasibility studies at Matchborough, Winyates and
Woodrow be approved.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

The Leader noted that the recommendation in respect of the IRP
report had been taken board and thanked the Members of the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee for all of their hard work in
scrutinising the report at its meeting on 13™" January 2025.

MINUTES / REFERRALS - OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE, EXECUTIVE PANELS ETC.



Executive
Committee
69.
70.

Page 17 Agenda ltem 4

Tuesday, 14th January, 2025

There were no referrals from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
or any of the Executive Advisory Panels on this occasion.

TO CONSIDER ANY URGENT BUSINESS, DETAILS OF WHICH
HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED TO THE HEAD OF LEGAL,
DEMOCRATIC AND PROCUREMENT SERVICES PRIOR TO THE
COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING AND WHICH THE CHAIR,
BY REASON OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES, CONSIDERS TO
BE OF SO URGENT A NATURE THAT IT CANNOT WAIT UNTIL
THE NEXT MEETING

There was no urgent business on this occasion.
HRA RENT SETTING 2025/26

The Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer presented the
report on Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Rent Setting 2025/26.

Members were informed that it was a statutory requirement to set
HRA rent and ensure that tenants were notified in a timely manner.
At least 28 calendar days’ notice was required for tenants.

The report set out the rent for 5,539 properties, of which 5,443 were
charged social rent and 96 affordable rents.

The existing HRA model had assumed a rent increase of 3% but
this had been revised down to 2.7% which was linked to the
Government formula of September 2024 CPI plus 1%. The average
rent charged would be £106.16 for Social and £165.35 for
affordable respectively.

Historically, service charges to tenants and leaseholders were
approved as part of the annual fees and charges report. This would
now change, and they would be considered alongside the annual
rent setting report.

To support this, this Service Charge Policy was drafted. It set out
the Council’s approach to the charging of and consultation with
tenants and leaseholders and in line with statutory and regulatory
requirements. This was set out in Appendix 1.

Appendix 2 set out service charges for core cleaning and health
and safety checks for the 272 block which involves circa 1,900



Executive
Committee

Page 18 Agenda Item 4

Tuesday, 14th January, 2025

tenants. It was noted that a charge of £6.40 would be made. It also
set out a service charge of £0.20 for temporary accommodation
furniture/appliances and £0.16 for concessionary TV licences.

The Leader thanked officers for their work on this and also to put on
record the positive meeting that had taken place previously.

The Portfolio Holder for Housing thanked officers. It was also
proposed that an additional recommendation be added as follows:

Delegated authority be granted to the Deputy Chief Executive and
Assistant Director Community & Housing following consultation with
the Housing Portfolio Holder, to establish a Hardship Fund of
£50,000 per annum to support homelessness prevention and this to
be met from the HRA budget 2025/26 onwards.

Although the proposed recommendation would be new change it
was hoped that it would help improve services in the future.

On being put to the vote the additional recommendation was
carried.

Members agreed that the report provided a better deal for residents
and a more efficient service.

RECOMMENDED that

a) The actual average rent increase for 2025/26 be set at
2.7%

b) Garage rent be increased by 2.7%

c) The Service Charge Policy at Appendix 1 be approved

d) The Service Charges set out in Appendix 2 be approved

e) Delegated authority be granted to the Deputy Chief
Executive and Assistant Director Community & Housing
following consultation with the Housing Portfolio Holder,
to establish a Hardship Fund of £50,000 per annum to
support homelessness prevention and this to be met
from the HRA budget 2025/26 onwards.



Page 19 Agenda Item 4

Executive

] Tuesday, 14th January, 2025
Committee

The Meeting commenced at 6.30 pm
and closed at 7.30 pm




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 21 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive 4 February 2025

PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2024/25

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillors Joe Baker, Leader of
Redditch Borough Council

Portfolio Holder Consulted

Relevant Assistant Director Pete Carpenter

Report Author Job Title: HR & OD Manager
Contact email:

Becky Talbot becky.talbot@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Contact Tel: 01527 64252 ext:3385

Wards Affected

Ward Councillor(s) consulted
Relevant Council Priority
Non-Key Decision

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in
advance of the meeting.

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee is asked to RECOMMEND to Council that
the Pay Policy as detailed in Appendix 1 to the report be
approved.

2. BACKGROUND

The Localism Act requires English and Welsh local authorities to
produce a Pay Policy statement (‘the statement’). The Act requires the
statement to be approved by Full Council and to be adopted by 315t
March each year for the subsequent financial year. The Pay Policy
Statement for the Council is included at Appendix 1.

The Statement must set out policies relating to-

(a) The remuneration of its chief officers,
(b) The remuneration of its lowest-paid employees, and
(c) The relationship between-

0] The remuneration of its chief officers, and

(i) The remuneration of its employees who are not chief

officers.

The provisions within the Localism Act bring together the strands of
increasing accountability, transparency and fairness in the setting of
local pay.


mailto:becky.talbot@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 22 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive 4 February 2025

3. OPERATIONAL ISSUES

There are no implications in relation to this report

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

All financial implications have already been included as part of the
budget setting process and posts are fully budgeted for.

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The legal implications are contained within the report.

6. OTHER - IMPLICATIONS

There are no implications in relation to this report

Climate Change Implications

There are no specific climate change implications.

Equalities and Diversity Implications

There are no implications in relation to this report

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

There are no implications in relation to this report

8. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS

Appendix A — Pay Policy 2024/25

9. REPORT SIGN OFF

Department Name and Job Title Date

Portfolio Holder

Lead Director / Assistant
Director

Financial Services




Page 23 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive 4 February 2025

Legal Services

Policy Team (if equalities
implications apply)

Climate Change Team (if
climate change
implications apply)




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25 Agenda ltem 5

APPENDIX 1
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL
PAY POLICY STATEMENT

Introduction and Purpose

1. Under section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the
“power to appoint officers on such reasonable terms and conditions as
authority thinks fit”. This pay policy statement sets out the Council’s
approach to pay policy in accordance with the requirements of Section 38
of the Localism Act 2011. It shall apply for the financial year 2024 and each
subsequent financial year, until amended.

2. The purpose of the statement is to provide transparency with regard to the
Council’s approach to setting the pay of its employees by identifying;

a. the methods by which salaries of all employees are determined,;

b. the detail and level of remuneration of its most senior staff i.e. ‘chief
officers’, as defined by the relevant legislation;

c. the Committee(s) responsible for ensuring the provisions set out in this
statement are applied consistently throughout the Council and for
recommending any amendments to the full Council

3. Once approved by the full Council, this policy statement will come into
immediate effect and will be subject to review on a minimum of an annual
basis, in accordance with the relevant legislation prevailing at that time.

Legislative Framework

4. In determining the pay and remuneration of all of its employees, the Council
will comply with all relevant employment legislation. This includes the
Equality Act 2010, Part Time Employment (Prevention of Less Favourable
Treatment) Regulations 2000, The Agency Workers Regulations 2010 and
where relevant, the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Earnings)
Regulations. With regard to the equal pay requirements contained within
the Equality Act, the Council ensures there is no pay discrimination within
its pay structures and that all pay differentials can be objectively justified
through the use of equality proofed Job Evaluation mechanisms. These
directly relate salaries to the requirements, demands and responsibilities of
the role.

Pay Structure

5. The Council’s pay and grading structure comprises grades 1 — 11. These
are followed by grades for Managers, Assistant Director 1, Assistant
Director 2, Director WRS, Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive and
then Chief Executive; all of which arose following the introduction of shared
services with Bromsgrove District Council.



Page 26

Agenda Iltem 5

Within each grade there are a number of salary / pay points. Up to and
including grade 11 scale, at spinal column point 43, the Council uses the
nationally negotiated pay spine. Salary points above this are locally
determined. The Council’s Pay structure is set out below.

Grade Spinal Column Points Nationally determined

rates

Minimum | Maximum

£ £
1 2 2 23,656 23,656
2 2 5 23,656 24,790
3 5 9 24,790 26,409
4 9 14 26,409 28,624
5 14 19 28,624 31,067
6 19 24 31,067 34,314
7 25 30 35,235 39,513
8 30 34 39,513 43,693
9 34 37 43,693 46,731
10 37 40 46,731 49,764
11 40 43 49,764 52,805
Manager Hay Hay Evaluated | 38% 55,407 57,645
Manager Hay Grade 1 Hay evaluated | 43% 64,112 66,640
Manager Hay Grade 2 Hay evaluated | 45% 66,618 69,293
Assistant Director 1 Hay evaluated | 51% 75,679 78,685
Assistant Director 2 Hay evaluated | 61% 90,074 93,668
Director of WRS Hay evaluated | 68% 100,622 | 104,230
Executive Director Hay evaluated | 74% 110,738 | 115,013
1D:f uty Chief Executive & | |\ evaluated | 80% 117,305 | 121,814




Page 27 Agenda ltem 5

Chief Executive Hay evaluated | 100% 145,807 | 153,750

10.

11.

All Council posts are allocated to a grade within this pay structure, based on the
application of a Job Evaluation process. Posts at Managers and above are
evaluated by an external assessor using the Hay Job Evaluation scheme. Where
posts are introduced as part of a shared service, and where these posts are
identified as being potentially too ‘large’ and ‘complex’ for this majority scheme,
they will be double tested under the Hay scheme, and where appropriate, will be
taken into the Hay scheme to identify levels of pay. This scheme identifies the
salary for these posts based on a percentage of Chief Executive Salary (for ease
of presentation these are shown to the nearest whole % in the table above). Posts
below this level (which are the majority of employees) are evaluated under the
“Gauge” Job Evaluation process.

In common with the majority of authorities the Council is committed to the Local
Government Employers national pay bargaining framework in respect of the
national pay spine and annual cost of living increases negotiated with the trade
unions.

All other pay related allowances are the subject of either nationally or locally
negotiated rates, having been determined from time to time in accordance with
collective bargaining machinery and/or as determined by Council policy. In
determining its grading structure and setting remuneration levels for all posts, the
Council takes account of the need to ensure value for money in respect of the use
of public expenditure, balanced against the need to recruit and retain employees
who are able to meet the requirements of providing high quality services to the
community; delivered effectively and efficiently and at all times those services are
required.

New appointments will normally be made at the minimum of the relevant grade,
although this can be varied where necessary to secure the best candidate. From
time to time it may be necessary to take account of the external pay market in
order to attract and retain employees with particular experience, skills and
capacity. Where necessary, the Council will ensure the requirement for such is
objectively justified by reference to clear and transparent evidence of relevant
market comparators, using appropriate data sources available from within and
outside the local government sector.

For staff not on the highest point within the salary scale there is a system of annual
progression to the next point on the band.

Senior Management Remuneration

12.

For the purposes of this statement, senior management means ‘chief officers’ as
defined within S43 of the Localism Act. The posts falling within the statutory
definition are set out below, with details of their basic salary as at 15t April 2024
(assuming no inflationary increase for these posts).



Page 28

Agenda Iltem 5

13. Redditch Borough Council is managed by a senior management team who
manage shared services across both Bromsgrove District and Redditch Borough
Councils. All of the posts listed below have been job evaluated on this basis, with

the salary costs for these posts split equally between both Councils.

Cost to
Pay range | Payrange | |hcreme Redditch
Title % of Chief | (minimum) | (maximum) ntal Borough
exSe;::ive £ c points Council
y £
Chief Executive 100% 145,807 153,750 3 50%
Deputy Chief
Executive & 80% 117,305 121,814 3 50%
S151
Executive
Director
Environment 74% 110,738 115,013 3 35%
and
Communities
Director This is a shared
W t hi post across 6
orcestershire 68% 100,622 104,230 3 district Authorities.
Regu'_atory Redditch equates
Services to 17.68%
Assistant
Di Fi
rector Finance | o4, 90,074 93,668 3 50%
and Customer
Services
Assistant
Director 61%
Planning and 90,074 93,668 3 50%
Leisure
Services
Assistant
Director
61% 90,074 93,668 3 50%

Transformation,
Organisational
Development




Page 29 Agenda ltem 5

and Digital

Services

Assistant
Director Legal,

Democratic and 61% 90,074 93,668 3 50%

Election
Services

Environmental
and Housing

Assistant

Director
61% 90,074 93,668 3 35%

Property
Services

Assistant

Director

Community and 61% 90,074 93,668 3 35%

Housing
Services

Assistant

Director

Regeneration & 61% 90,074 93,668 3 50%

Property
Services

Recruitment of Chief Officers

14.

15.

The Council’s policy and procedures with regard to recruitment of chief officers is
set out within the Officer Employment Procedure Rules as set out in the Council’s
Constitution. When recruiting to all posts the Council will take full and proper
account of its own equal opportunities, recruitment and redeployment Policies.
The determination of the remuneration to be offered to any newly appointed chief
officer will be in accordance with the pay structure and relevant policies in place at
the time of recruitment. Where the Council is unable to recruit to a post at the
designated grade, it will consider the use of temporary market forces supplements
in accordance with its relevant policies.

Where the Council remains unable to recruit chief officers under a contract of
service, or there is a need for interim support to provide cover for a vacant
substantive chief officer post, the Council will, where necessary, consider and
utilise engaging individuals under ‘contracts for service’. These will be sourced
through a relevant procurement process ensuring the council is able to
demonstrate the maximum value for money benefits from competition in securing




Page 30 Agenda ltem 5

the relevant service. The Council does not currently have any Chief Officers under
such arrangements.

Performance-Related Pay and Bonuses — Chief Officers

16. The Council does not apply any bonuses or performance related pay to its chief
officers. Any progression through the incremental scale of the relevant grade is
subject to satisfactory performance which is assessed on an annual basis.

Additions to Salary of Chief Officers (applicable to all staff)

17. In addition to the basic salary for the post, all staff may be eligible for other
payments under the Council’s existing policies. Some of these payments are
chargeable to UK Income Tax and do not solely constitute reimbursement of
expenses incurred in the fulfilment of duties. The list below shows some of the
kinds of payments made.

a.

reimbursement of mileage. At the time of preparation of this statement, the
Council pays an allowance of 45p per mile for all staff, with additional or
alternative payments for carrying passengers or using a bicycle;
professional fees. The Council pays for or reimburses the cost of one
practicing certificate fee or membership of a professional organisation
provided it is relevant to the post that an employee occupies within the
Council.

long service awards. The Council pays staff an additional amount if they
have completed 25 years of service and having completed 40 years service.
honoraria, in accordance with the Council’s policy on salary and grading.
Generally, these may be paid only where a member of staff has performed a
role at a higher grade;

fees for returning officer and other electoral duties, such as acting as a
presiding officer of a polling station. These are fees which are identified and
paid separately for local government elections, elections to the UK
Parliament and EU Parliament and other electoral processes such as
referenda;

pay protection — where a member of staff is placed in a new post and the
grade is below that of their previous post, for example as a result of a
restructuring, pay protection at the level of their previous post is paid for the
first 12 months. In exceptional circumstance pay protection can be applied
for greater than 12 months with the prior approval of the Chief Executive.
market forces supplements in addition to basic salary where identified and
paid separately;

salary supplements or additional payments for undertaking additional
responsibilities such as shared service provision with another local authority
or in respect of joint bodies, where identified and paid separately;
attendance allowances.

Payments on Termination

18. The Council’'s approach to discretionary payments on termination of employment of
chief officers prior to reaching normal retirement age is set out within its policy
statement in accordance with Regulations 5 and 6 of the Local Government (Early



Page 31 Agenda ltem 5

Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) Regulations 2006 and
Regulations 12 and 13 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Benefits,
Membership and Contribution) Regulations 2007.

19. Any other payments falling outside the provisions or the relevant periods of
contractual notice shall be subject to a formal decision made by the full Council or
relevant elected members, committee or panel of elected members with delegated
authority to approve such payments.

20. Redundancy payments are based upon an employee’s actual weekly salary and, in
accordance with the Employee Relations Act 1996, will be up to 30 weeks,
depending upon length of service and age.

Publication

21. Upon approval by the full Council, this statement will be published on the Council’s
website. In addition, for posts where the full time equivalent salary is at least
£50,000, the Council’s Annual Statement of Accounts will include a note on
Officers Remuneration setting out the total amount of:

a.

b.

C.

d.

e.

Salary, fees or allowances paid to or receivable by the person in the current
and previous year,

Any bonuses so paid or receivable by the person in the current and previous
year;

Any sums payable by way of expenses allowance that are chargeable to UK
income tax;

Any compensation for loss of employment and any other payments
connected with termination;

Any benefits received that do not fall within the above.

Lowest Paid Employees

22. The Council’s definition of lowest paid employees is persons employed under a
contract of employment with the Council on full time (37 hours) equivalent salaries
in accordance with the minimum spinal column point currently in use within the
Council’s grading structure. As at 15t April 2024 this is £23656 per annum.

23. The Council also employs apprentices (or other such categories of workers) who
are not included within the definition of ‘lowest paid employees’ (as they are
employed under a special form of employment contract; which is a contract for
training rather than actual employment).

24. The relationship between the rate of pay for the lowest paid and chief officers is
determined by the processes used for determining pay and grading structures as
set out earlier in this policy statement.

25. The statutory guidance under the Localism Act recommends the use of pay
multiples as a means of measuring the relationship between pay rates across the
workforce and that of senior managers, as included within the Hutton ‘Review of



26.

Page 32 Agenda ltem 5

Fair Pay in the Public Sector’ (2010). The Hutton report was asked by
Government to explore the case for a fixed limit on dispersion of pay through a
requirement that no public sector manager can earn more than 20 times the lowest
paid person in the organisation. The report concluded that “it would not be fair or
wise for the Government to impose a single maximum pay multiple across the
public sector’. The Council accepts the view that the relationship to median
earnings is a more relevant measure and the Government’s Code of
Recommended Practice on Data Transparency recommends the publication of the
ratio between highest paid salary and the median average salary of the whole of
the authority’s workforce.

As part of its overall and ongoing monitoring of alignment with external pay
markets, both within and outside the sector, the Council will use available
benchmark information as appropriate.

Accountability and Decision Making

28.

29.

30.

In accordance with the Constitution of the Council, the Council is responsible for
setting the policy relating to the recruitment, pay, terms and conditions and
severance arrangements for employees of the Council. Decisions about individual
employees are delegated to the Chief Executive.

The Appointments Committee is responsible for recommending to Council matters
relating to the appointment of the Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive),
Monitoring Officer, Section 151 Officer and Chief Officers as defined in the Local
Authorities (Standing Orders) Regulations 2001 (as amended);

For the Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance Officer,
the Statutory Officers Disciplinary Action Panel considers and decides on matters
relating to disciplinary action.



Page 33 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2025/6 TO 2027/8 — Tranche 2

Relevant Portfolio Holder Clir. lan Woodall, Finance Portfolio Holder
Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes
Relevant Head of Service Debra Goodall

Report Author | Job Title: Assistant Director Finance & Customer Services
email: Debra Goodall@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Wards Affected N/A
Ward Councillor(s) consulted N/A
Relevant Strategic Purpose(s) All

Non-Key Decision

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in
advance of the meeting.

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

1.1  The Council has set its budget in two Tranches this year as it did in the
2024/5 Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) process. The initial Tranche
was published in November 2024 and approved initial pressures and
increases at Council in January. This second Tranche is being considered
now that the final Local Government Settlement figures are known. The final
budget will be approved at Council in February.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

Executive are asked to RECOMMEND to Council that:
1 The Tranche 2 growth proposals be approved.

2 The additional funding to the Council, as per the Local Government
Settlement on the 18th December 2024, including the estimated
levels for 2026/7 and 2027/8, be incorporated into Medium Term
Financial Plan (MTFP) revenue and capital budgets 2025/26 to
2027/28.

3 The Tranche 2 savings proposals, including an increase of Council
Tax of 2.99%, be approved.

4 The Worcestershire Regulatory Services fee increases for 2025/26 be
approved.

5 The updated five year Capital Programme 2025/26 to 2029/30 along
with its ongoing revenue costs be approved.



Page 34 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

3.1

6 The current levels of Earmarked Reserves be carried forward into
2025/26, 2026/27 and 2027/28.

7 That a new Earmarked Reserve for the Digital Manufacturing and
Innovation Centre of £600k be created.

8 That an Earmarked Members’ Ward Budget Reserve of £2k per
Member (E54k per year) over the 3 year MTFP period be created.

9 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) budget is approved.

10 Members note any feedback from the Tranche 2 consultation process
undertaken.

Executive Committee is asked to RESOLVE to note:

11. the implications set out in the Section 151 Officer’s Robustness
(Section 25) Statement of the 2025/26 to 2027/28 Medium Term
Financial plan in moving the Council to financial sustainability.

12. the need for accelerated business cases to be worked up to enable
upgrades of infrastructure to the Borough for consideration in line
with work set out in paragraph 3.20 for completion prior to vesting
day.

Background

Introduction

The Council sets a 3-year Medium Term Financial Plan every year, with the
final Council Tax Resolution being approved by Council in February. This
year’s process has been more difficult due to the following factors:

e The starting point from the 2024/5 MTFP is positive with respective neutral
balances at the starting points for both years.

e That this is the first budget of a new National Government and will be for
only 1 year in duration. The Government have indicated that resources are
tight which has been reflected in the Provisional Local Government
Settlement in December.

e The present cost of living crisis which continues to impact our most
vulnerable residents.

e Three years accounts (2020/21 to 2022/23) delivered with a “disclaimer
Opinion” and 2023/24 Accounts also likely to have a similar opinion. In this
instance, the reason for this will be the limitation of scope imposed by
statute (not by the local authority). A disclaimer due to the backstop does



Page 35 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

3.2

not of itself indicate a local authority failing but the ongoing implications
are still not clear.

e The continued uncertainty of the existing movement of the Government to
funding projects for specific outcomes and the movement of this from a
bidding process to an “allocations” process.

e Uncertainty over the final mode of working for the Council and what will be
required by the new Government, our residents and our Members.

e Loss of key personnel, present vacancies rates (although only half the
national average), and staff retention — linked to the Workforce Strategy.

e Business Rates and Council Tax Income — and associated collection rates
and reliefs linked to the “cost of living” crisis and C-19 grants working their
way through our system.

e Inflation is now moving towards to the Government target of 2%.

As such, it is prudent to split the budget process into two tranches,

e Having an initial Tranche which seeks to close as much of the deficit as
possible using information known as at the end of October and seeking
approval for those savings to be implemented at Council in January,

e Having a second Tranche after the Christmas break, for which approval
will be sought in February, that takes account of the Local Government
Settlement whose final detail will not be known until late January.

This report will set out:

The approved Tranche 1 Position including base assumptions.
The impact of the Local Government Settlement.

Council Priorities

Strategic Approach

The final Tranche 2 three year balanced budget, including updated
assumptions.

Impact of Tranche 2 on Reserves and Balances.

The 5 year Capital Programme.

The Housing Revenue Account budget.

The Risk Assessment

The S151 Officers Robustness Statement

Consultation Details.

The approved Tranche 1 Position including base assumptions

3.3

It is important to set out the base assumptions under which the budget is
constructed. These assumptions can then be stress tested for various
scenarios to test the robustness of the overall budget. The Tranche 1 base
assumptions were:



Page 36 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

3.4

3.5

e Council Tax — Figures assume the full 1.99% allowable increase overall
years of the 3 year MTFP. There are no increases in numbers of houses.

e Business Rates Increases — business rates assume growth based on
Pooling with the other Districts and the County Council.

e New Homes Bonus/Government Grants — It is assumed that levels would
be the same as previous years.

e Pension Fund assumptions takes account of the latest triennial valuation
which was received in September 2022. It was noted that there is a
significant risk is that the next revaluation will be actioned in 2026 and as
such the 2026/7 figure could well change pending the outcome of that
exercise.

The following “generic” pressures and savings were included in Tranche 1:

e The Pay Award is increased from 2% to 3% for 2025/6. This would be an
additional £100k cost.

e Pension Fund Actuarial Triennial Revaluation. Although the fund
continues to perform well we are concerned on the reducing numbers of
live members in the scheme and so have included an amount from 2026/7
of £200k as a potential risk.

e Fees and Charges assumed an increase of 2%. However, given 50% of
fees and charges costs link to staff costs and these possibly will increase
at 5% for the 2024/5 financial year, to keep pace this this increase of costs
it is proposed that a 4% increase is made.

e The largest change however will link to upcoming Waste Requirements.
The Council is required to implement these proposals from April 2026. The
impact on Council budgets is significant in terms of both Revenue and
Capital with an ongoing £500k revenue cost, £44K Capital costs and one
off implementation costs of £100k.

e Additional inflation on contracts is included at 5% which is £125k.

e A review has been undertaken of Corporate Budgets (Council
Tax/Business Rate, Investment Income and Debt) against expected
numbers and due to a number of factors there is a positive position.

e The Council had 3% in to cover staff inflation in 2024/5. This pay award is
now circa 5% and so this adjustment has also been made in the corporate
budgets.

Departmental changes, due to contract pressures and demographics have
also been taken into account. These departmental changes result in an
overall £1.309m revenue pressure in the 2025/6 financial year and then £912k
by 2027/8. The overall Tranche 1 Position is summarised in the following two
tables, the first taking account of “Corporate” issues, the second then adding
on the “Departmental” issues.



Page 37
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Agenda Iltem 6

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

3.6

4™ February 2025

2025/6 2026/7 2027/8
[ go00 [ g000 [ £000
Opening Position -16 17 -17
Changes
Increase Pay Award to 3% (from 2%) 100 100 100
Pension Revaluation (addn costs) 200 200
Increase Fees and Charges to 4% from 2% -142 -142 -142
Increased Waste Interest costs (Capital) 10 20 20
Increased Waste MRP costs (Capital) 24 24
Waste Project costs (capitalised) 20 20
Increased Waste Revenue costs 500 500
Contract Inflation 125 125 125
No Council Tax Freeze in 2025/6 -144 -144 -144
Improvements in Corporate Budgets -450 -450 -450
2% Additional 23/4 Payoll cost over Budget 200 200 200
Net Additional Costs -301 453 453
Initial View of Additional Costs =317 436 436
2025/6 202677 2027/8
£000 £000 £000
Position after Corporate ltems =317 436 436
Departmental Items 1,309 949 912
Position after Departmental ltems 992 1,385 1,348

Table 1 — Tranche 1 Budget Position

At Tranche 1, there is a £1m deficit to be closed which rises to an ongoing
£1.3m problem in 2027/8. £0.6m of this amount from 2026/7 onwards is
linked to the impact of the changes to Waste Regulations

The impact of the Local Government Financial Settlement

3.7

The Chancellors Autumn Statement that was made on the 30t October had

the following impacts on Council budgets:

e A 3.2% real-terms increase in Core Spending Power (CSP) for the whole
sector in 2025-26. This will include £1.3b additional grant funding, of
which at least £600m will be directed to social care.

e The Budget was silent on council tax referendum limits, but the DCN
expectation is that referendum principles will stay at 2.99% for districts.




Page 33 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

3.8

3.9

e £233m new funding for homelessness prevention. This will be in addition
to the £1.3b grant funding mentioned above.

e £1b to extend the Household Support Fund and Discretionary Housing
Payments into 2025/26.

e £1.1b new funding through implementation of the Extended Producer
Responsibility scheme for recycling.

¢ Right to Buy: councils will be permanently allowed to retain 100% of
receipts locally and discount levels will revert to pre-2012 levels from 21st
November 2024.

e Business Rates support to the retail, hospitality and Leisure sector,
although it is not known the route of compensation yet for Councils.

e A £500m increase to the Affordable Homes Programme in 2025/26.

e UK Shared Prosperity Fund has been extended for 2025/26 at a reduced
level of £900m, a 40% decrease on the current year. It is not yet clear
whether this funding will continue.

e Employer national insurance (NI) contributions will increase by 1.2% to
15% from April 2025 but councils are expected to be reimbursed for this.
The impact of this on Redditch if this is not funded is £144k.

e The National Living Wage will increase by 6.7% to £12.21. Minimum wage
for 18- to 20-year olds will increase by 16% to £10 per hour.

The Provisional Local Government Settlement was made on the 18%
December 2024. In that settlement the Councils Core Sending Power is
unchanged at £10.94m. However, this zero increase in spending power
masks a significant change in funding with Councils expected have a 2.99%
increase in Council Tax to get to that Break Even position, with “Other Grants”
reducing by a corresponding amount. As the Council (as other Councils,
already assume) maximises Council Tax increases in their existing forward
plans this is settlement with no inflation built in. This is reflected in the
following table:

2025/6 2024/5 Difference Difference
£m £m % £m
Settlement Fund
Assessment 2.569 2.504 2.6% 0.065
Assumed Council Tax 7.31 7.095 3.0% 0.215
Other Grants 1.061 1.341 -20.9% -0.28
Total 10.94 10.94 0.0% 0

Table 2 — Local Government Settlement

As set out in 3.7 above, the Government have however given specific
targeted Grant Funding for a number of initiatives. This funding is single year,
as Local Government Funding is being significantly changes for the 2026/7
settlement. However, the impacts on the Council for this targeted funding is:



Page 39 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

e £700m additional grant funding — Redditch has received £326k of this
one off Recovery Funding for 2025/26 only.

e Council Tax in Tranche 2 will be increased from 1.99 to 2.99%.

e £233m additional Homelessness Prevention Grant. Redditch has
received £648k, which is £233k more than the level approved in
December.

e £1.1b new funding through implementation of the Extended Producer
Responsibility scheme for recycling. Redditch has received £814k
which has been allocated as part of the Tranche 2 Budget.

e Right to Buy changes are applicable for Redditch as it has a HRA.

e Business Rates support to the retail, hospitality and Leisure sector is
expected to be neutral and Government Funded.

e UK Shared Prosperity Fund has been extended for 2025-26 at a
reduced level of £900m. Redditch has received £818k which is split
£667k Revenue and £151k Capital.

3.10 In addition to those items set out above, following the World Climate
Conference in December there are likely to be ongoing targets in this area.
Councils have already declared “Climate Emergencies” and have challenging
carbon reduction targets to deliver by 2030, 2040 and 2050. At the moment
plans are within existing budgets, but as we move through the next three-year
period there will be the requirement for the prioritisation of resources and
approval of additional funding on a scheme by scheme basis. These will need
to be taken account of in future budgets, although a significant part of this
budget spend will be Capital in nature.

3.11 There are a number of other significant factors in looking at the 2024/25
budget which are linked to the Local Government Finance Market. Presently:
e There are a number of Local Authorities who have now issued S114

Statements.

e Although Redditch is now up to date with its accounts, these accounts
have “Disclaimer Opinions” and it is likely that the Council will receive
“Disclaimer Opinions” for at least the 2023/24 and 2024/25 Accounts. The
ramifications of these “disclaimer Opinions” on the wider Local
Government Sector and individual Councils is not clear. There will be circa
600 of these “Disclaimer Opinions” across English Councils.

e The Government Devolution Bill and the reorganisation of two tiered areas
to unitary authorities by the end of this Governments first term. This will
have significant impact on Worcestershire Councils.

3.12 Significant Grant levels not set out in 3.9 above are:
e Housing Benefit Administration Subsidy - £207,786
e Discretionary Housing Payments - £79,296
e Discretionary Housing Payments Administration - £18,023
e New Burdens Funding (UC) £4,321



Page 40 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

Revenue Support Grant £145,000

New Homs Bonus £23,000

Domestic Abuse Safe Accommodation Grant £36,000

Funding Floor (formally Funding Guarantee) £201,000

S31 Grant Funding for Business Rates Subsidy (RHL) will be re-imbursed
linked to numbers in the NNDR1 Return

e National Insurance Contribution — allocation method at moment is by
2023/24 RO Form.

e Housing Benefit Subsidy £14,567,304 (2024/25 level — 2025/26 level not
known)

e Disabled Facilities Grant - £1,185,745 (up from £1,038,806) — Capital
e Capital DEFA allocation for Food Waste Bins/Vehicles £766,498- Capital

3.13 As part of the Budget process the following reports have been approved in the
January 2025 Cycle of meetings:
e The Council Tax Base for 2025/26.
e The final Council Tax Support Scheme for 2025/26.

The following reports linked to the budget were updated in the 2024/25 MTFP
and have not changed since that time:
e The Discretionary Council Tax Reduction Policy.
e Council Tax — Empty Homes Discounts and Premiums.
e Non Domestic Rates — Discretionary Rates Relief Policy.
3.14 Tranche 2 options will be presented to Executive on the 4" February and the
full Budget approved by Council on the 24" February.

Council Strategic Priorities

3.15 The new Leader and Portfolio Holders with the support of the Corporate
Management Team will set out new Corporate Objectives for the Council,
based on the Manifesto used to gain control in the 2024 elections.

3.16 Redditch Borough Council’s current priorities, linked to the previous
administration, are underpinned by a set of key themes. These are set out in
the current Council Plan 2019 — 2023 here and in the Council Plan Addendum
2022/23. These priorities will change but for the purposes of this report the 5
existing themes will be used. These are:

Run & grow a successful business.

Finding somewhere to live.

Aspiration, work & financial independence.

Living independent, active & healthy lives.

Communities which are safe, well-maintained, and green.


https://www.redditchbc.gov.uk/media/5688175/RBC_CouncilPlan_2020-24.PDF

Page 41 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

3.17 The Council’s vision, priorities and themes are connected using a ‘green’
thread:

“To enrich the lives and aspirations of all our residents, businesses and
visitors through the provision of efficiently run and high-quality services,
ensuring that all in need receive appropriate help, support and opportunities”.

3.18 Following consultation in 2023, and taking other information on board, the
Council’s priorities are presently:

Housing

Parks & Green Spaces
Economy & Regeneration
Community Safety

3.19 The Council cannot deliver all priorities on its own. In some cases it can support,
influence, or work collaboratively with other partner agencies to persuade them
to take a particular course of action/undertake a particular
project. Considerable support and input from partner organisations will be
needed for priorities, to be successfully achieved.

3.20 We talk in the Risk section about the impending Devolution of powers in Local
Government and the setting up of Unitary Councils in existing 2 tier areas
before the close of this Parliament. This will have a significant impact on the
Council. In light of this, the Council is reviewing schemes that can be delivered
and completed within the next three years to ensure that a legacy of a
sustainable attractive Redditch is transferred on vesting day with infrastructure
and amenities reflecting stakeholder requirements to make a difference to the
residents of Redditch’s lives. Initiatives under review for inclusion and approval
following updated business cases are:

e Full funding of the 10 year play strategy agreed by Council in 2024 (only 5
years are in the present capital programme)

e Assigning a fund for purchasing of Temporary Accommodation units which
is an acute issue in the borough.

e Assigning a fund for the ongoing improvement of Forge Mill.

e Upgrading the kitchen facilities at Arrow Valley Country Park in order to
attract even more visitors.

e Upgrading the district centres.

¢ Investment in Community Assets (Community Centres).

e Refurbishing of Southcrest Memorial Gardens.

Strateqgic Approach

3.21 The Council has come into the 2025/26 budget process with a number of
conflicting issues. These include:



Page 42 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

e An ongoing in year 2024/25 deficit at Q2 of a £299k deficit to close.

e The requirement to fund future pay award which are circa 50% of costs.
Over the past 3 years these pay awards have been significantly higher than
“‘normal”. Although nationally agreed, these have not been funded.

e Increases in Council Tax are limited at 2.99%, which is significantly lower
than the present rates of inflation.

e The fact that Local Government Finance will change significantly in the
2025/6 settlement which is not known at the moment and which is multi year.

e That over the course of this Parliament all 2 tier areas, such as
Worcestershire will be converted into Unitary Authorities.

3.22 The next section sets out the Tranche 2 position. In it the Council moves to a
considered sustainable position over the 3 year planning period. One
significant factor that has been taken account of is the fact that Local
Government funding will change significantly in 2026/27 and so in this budget
it is prudent to minimise any savings pending the upcoming funding review.

3.23 The level of reserves and balances presently held suggest that although
significantly more is held than the suggested 5% recommended level for the
General Fund, that any calls on this amount for a significant emergency
situation would reduce levels by possibly 50%.

3.24 The Council must adapt how it operates to take advantage of customer
requirements, technology, available resources, and the economic and
environmental conditions to remain a sustainable viable organisation. To
ensure this happens there will be the need for future investment, efficiencies
and possibly the requirement to fund redundancy (both from reserves and
balances).

3.25 As set out later in the Robustness Statement, in compiling Tranchel of the
budget, assumptions were based on the best information held then. Issues
the Council is facing are not unique, they are being faced by almost all
councils. Tranche 2 of the budget has adjusted for any funding that the
Government will provide but primarily sets out other options to close the
Tranche 1 deficit.

The final Tranche 2 three year balanced budget, including updated
assumptions

3.26 The Council started Tranche 2 of the Budget with the following financial
deficits to close:



Page 43
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Agenda Iltem 6

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

4™ February 2025

2025/6 2026/7 2027/8
£000 £000 £000
Position after Corporate ltems =317 436 436
Departmental ltems 1,309 949 912
Position after Departmental ltems 992 1,385 1,348

Table 3 Opening Tranche 2 Position
3.27 The financial settlement, as set out in paragraphs 3.8 and 3.9 above had no
increase in overall funding and a number of areas of specific targeted funding:
3.28 The Council has assessed a number of other options to move to what it
believes is a considered sustainable position over the 3 year planning period.
This process has the following additional Income

e Council Tax — The Government expects as part of the Local
Government Settlement for all Councils to increase Council Tax levels
by the maximum 2.99%. The Council assumed a 1.99% increase in
Tranche 1 and so this increases that level by £73k to come in line with
Government expectations

e Actuarial Changes from 2026. Following a conversation with the new
Actuary and the Worcestershire Treasurers at the end of November,
expectations are now that in the 2026 Triennial Revaluation there will be
minimal increases. This saves £150k.

e ERP Funding Allocations — the Council have received £814k in ERP
Funding. As per the table below, this will be allocated over the three
year funding period with £250k allocated for specific marketing initiatives
to move the initiative forward across all sectors.

e 2024/25 Salary Adjustment — Now that actual salary increases have
been allocated for 2024/25 as part of the December payroll, this savings
can be made.

e Capitalisation of Salaries — The Council should be allocating staff costs
to capital projects. It has not done this in the past. At the moment an
assumption of a 5% recharge has been made — this needs to be
sustainable over time. These capitalisation amount have been added to
the capital programme.

e One off funding from the Finance Reserve. There are finance specific
items in the departmental pressures that are one off in nature. These
can be funded from the Earmarked Finance Reserve.

e Departmental Efficiencies — to balance the overall budget, there is the
requirement for departmental efficiencies to be made. These are
highlighted in the following table:

Net Savings
Service Budget 250
RBC Regulatory 560 11



Page 44 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025
Business Transformation & OD 1,842 37
Housing and Community Services 1,819 36
Environmental Services 2,523 50
Finance & Customer Services 2,332 46
Legal Democratic & Property 860 17
Planning, Regen and Leisure 1,042 21
Rubicon Client 777 15
Regeneration and Property 804 16
Totals 12,559 250

Table 4 — Departmental Efficiency Splits

e Savings on the VM Ware Contract — it was expected that this contract
would have a 10 fold increase with a change of supplier but in December
the Council was able to limit the increase to a far smaller increase.

e Given that Local Government Re-organisation will take place within the
next three years, it would not be appropriate to invest in a new telephony
system. This would save £90k in the initial year and then an ongoing
amount of £55k a year. All ICT systems requiring investment need to be
reviewed with this in mind.

And the following additional costs

e WRS Uplift for Inflation — these are the agreed increases approved at
the WRS Board in November 2024.

e Local Government Settlement Costs — these now reflect the changes to
funding in the 2025/26 Local Government Financial Settlement. The
most significant is the £352k reduction in Government Grants.

e Increasing Members Allowances by the same as staff pay increases of
4% - significantly less than the IRP recommendation of 16% at an
ongoing cost of £13k.

e Set up a specific budget for Community Consultation of £25k a year to
link into Manifesto promises.

3.29 The net effects of these changes is summarised in the table below. Overall
there is a net £30k surplus in 2025/26, rising to a deficit of £435k in 2026/27,
before reducing to £345k in 2027/28. This is an overall call on general fund
reserves of £750k.



Page 45 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025
2025/6 | 2026/7 | 2027/8
Year
£000 | £000 | £000
Position after Departmental Items 992 1,385 | 1,348
Additional 1% Council Tax -73 -73 -73
Adjustment for Actuaries figures -150 -150
Allocation of ERP Funding from 271 271
Reserve
Updated ERP Adjustment -100 -85 -85

ERP Spend on Communications (TBC) 100 100 50

Neighbourhood Wardens 100 100 100
Salary Adjustment -100 -100 -100
Capitalisation at 2.5% -200 -200 -200
Capitalisation to 5.0% -200 -200
Finance Reserve -319

CMT £250k Efficiencies -250 -250 -250
VM Ware Contract Savings -120 -120 -120
WRS Agreed Uplifts 36 36 36

Increased Council Tax Budget -70 -72 -75
Reduced Government Grant 26 352 352
Do not renew telephony system -90 -55 -55
Increased Members Allowances 13 13 13

New Community Consultation Budget 25 25 25

Updated Totals -30 435 345

Additional Grant Allocations
UK Shared Prosperity Fund - Revenue 667
UK Shared Prosperity Fund - Capital 151

ERP Allocation - 1 Year only to
Reserve

Table 5 — Tranche 2 Position

814

3.30 Appendix A sets out the Departmental Budgets.

Updated Fees and Charges



Page 46 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

3.31 In addition, updated Worcestershire Regulatory Service Charges are set out
for approval in Appendix B. These are increased in line with increases in the
service across the County which are at the 4% level unless set by statute.

Impact of Tranche 2 on Reserves and Balances

3.32 The existing 2024/25 MTFP saw general fund balances at a break even
position over the three year planning moving the Council towards
sustainability. In the 2023/24 budget, the Council was prudent and reviewed
all its earmarked Reserves and reallocated a substantial amount to the
General Fund and also a newly formed Utilities Reserve due to the significant
pressure on budgets in that area. As we have moved into 2024/25 there have
been additional inflationary pressures linked to significant unfunded nationally
agreed staffing increases. This has been partly offset by the Utilities
Reserves. Years 2 and 3 of this reserve are not now required and have been
transferred to the General Fund to bolster its position.

3.33 The projected 2025/6 to 2027/7 position, at Tranche 1, had £3,695k of
pressures to mitigate. This has been mitigated down in Tranche 2 to a £750k
overall pressure over the three years with an ongoing issue of £345k a year to
resolve in 2027/28 onwards. This is a slightly different approach to the
previous two MTFP’s where the Council has moved to a “sustainable position”
over the three year period but reflects that fact that Local Government will
have a new 3 year settlement from the 2026/7 financial year and with those
allocation methods only being consulted on in the Spring of 2025 it would not
be prudent to balance the budget by reducing services when the new
Settlement might have those services as a priority area.

3.34 Presently, the General Fund sits at a value of £7.312m (taking account of the
Tranche 2 position) at the 315t March 2028. This sum is approximately 5% of
gross expenditure which is on the 5% benchmark quoted by the Government
as being a minimum requirement. If Housing Benefit payments, which are
passported through the Council are ignored than this percentage rises to 7%
of expenditure.

3.35 The Council has now closed its accounts up to the 2023/24 financial year and
has received “Disclaimer Opinions” up to 2022/23. Because those years are
now closed there is certainty over the Earmarked Reserve balances which at
the 31st March 2028 sit at a value of £14.868m.

3.36 Specific Reserves will be set up for the following purposes
e This reserve is to ensure that the first two years losses of the Digital
Manufacturing & Innovation Centre (DMIC) at £600k are covered and
do not link to ongoing revenue expenditure. This is the updated model
and the venture is projected to make a profit from year three and be in



Page 47 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

overall profit over the 8 year initial period. The initial model assumed a
£500k loss which would have needed to be accounted for.

e £100K for a review of the Property function

e An ERP Reserve of £814 K to transfer the grant funding for ERP
schemes and release it over the three year MTFP period.

3.37 Any Rubicon overspend, apart from the normal contractual increases of the
management Fee will be covered by the Rubicon Reserve which sits in the
Group Accounts.

3.38 This Earmarked Reserves level of £14.966m assumes the creation and
spending of Ward budgets at £2k a Member over the 3 year MTFP period.
The Ward budgets are set over the three year “pilot period” are funded from
the Financial Services Reserve. The detailed position in respect of Reserves
is set out in Appendix C.

The 5 Year Capital Programme

3.39 The Council over the past number of years has not spent its capital
programme allocations in year. A review has been carried out of
e All schemes that have not started (both from 2022/23 and from previous
years)
e Schemes that have started
To assess deliverability and links to revised strategic priorities.

3.40 Present rationale is for any scheme not yet started (unless grant or S106
funded) to rebid for funds as part of the 2024/25 budget process. The
summary Capital Programme is set out in the following Table.

Year |Total Programme Council Funded Grant Funded

2024/5 20,114,366 32,428,717 4,792,886 15,036,480
Carry Fwd 12,314,351

2025/6 8,082,320 3,176,213 4,906,107

2026/7 3,923,362 3,217,498 705,864

2027/8 2,559,172 1,853,308 705,864

2028/9 2,064,490 1,364,490 700,000
2029/30 2,496,248 1,790,384 705,864

Table 6 — Draft Capital Programme

3.41 The priority in capital terms is for the Council to spend its grant funding. It has
the following:
e Towns Funding of £17.2m



Page 43 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

e UK Shared Prosperity Funding of £2.4m

This funding is time limited and must all be spent by 2026 (with UKSPF being
2025). The Government, in the Local Government Settlement have given an
additional year of funding for just the 2025/6 financial year which will need to
be spent within that year

3.42 Appendix D sets out the present capital programme.

3.43 A number of capital bids were approved in Tranche 1 of the budget. These
changes were:
e An additional Year of the rolling Capital budgets (as per last year)
o Car Park Maintenance - £150k
Footpaths - £75k
Public Buildings - £250k
Wheely Bin Purchases £100k
HMO Grants - £25k
Home Repairs Assistance - £40k
ICT Network Upgrades - £50k
Server Replacement Programme - £60k
o Laptop Replacement Programme - £30k
e Updates from Tranche 1 are
o Additional investment in Abavus software for Environmental
Services (E30k works, £10.2k licensing).
o Improvements to the Council Firewall (E16k).
o Upgrade of the Athletics Track Surface (E300k)
o Fire Compartmentalisation work in Public Buildings (£250k a
year for 3 years)
o Energy Performance Certificate Work (£100k a year for 3 years)
o Refurbishment of the Abbey Stadium Roof (£250k)
o Refurbishment of Abbey Valley Stadium indoor Changing
Rooms and Toilets (E300k)
o Installation of a new outdoor Kiosk and Toilet refurbishment at
Forge Mill (E90k)
o Refurbishing the Male changing rooms and 2" Green at
PitcherOak (£30k)
o A bid of £15k for Fly tipping cameras — run by Worcestershire
Regulatory Services.
e The other updates are:
o DFG amounts reflect the grant totals highlighted earlier in this
report.
o Play Audits profile reflect the profile agreed in January 2024.
o An additional £766k is added, grant funded by Defra, for the
implementation of the food waste service.
o Inclusion of the capitalisation of salaries

O 0O O O o0 O O



Page 49 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

3.44 The significant Council spending continues to be the Fleet Replacement
Programme although it is slipping into the future as we await the
Government’s final Environment Bill and confirmation of the type of vehicles
required after 2030.

3.45 Given that the Culture application was rejected in the budget, there is the
requirement for an extension to the Arrow Valley building to increase kitchen
size and provide rooftop terrace at £750k. This is referred to in 3.20 about
and will be subject to further business cases.

3.46 There will be the need to reprofile both the Town Hall Community Hub and
Digital Manufacturing and Innovation Centre as the majority of their delivery
will be in the 2025/26 financial year.

3.47 The Council is undertaking a review of all its assets, linked to the requirement
of Council buildings to be at Level C Energy Efficiency. A report is expected
early in 2025 setting the Council’s fixed asset approach.

3.48 The Capital Programme is very closely linked to the Asset Strategy, Treasury
Management Strategy, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy and Asset
Investment Strategy. These Strategies set out how the Council can invest
and borrow funds and to whom. They are set out in Appendices E, F, G and
H. These Strategies will be Recommended to Council by Audit, Governance
and Standards Committee on the 30" January 2025.

The Housing Revenue Account Budget

3.49 The 2025/6 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) budget has been constructed
using the following assumptions:
e The Consumer price index assumed at 1.5% from 2026/27 onwards.
Retail price inflation is assumed to be 3% in 2025/26 and 2% then after
Pay inflation assumed to be 3% in 2025/26 and 2% then after.
- No additional borrowing assumed in this Medium Term Financial Plan.
- The Interest rate applied to Housing Revenue Account balances is
1.56%.
e Rental Income assumes:
o An average rent of £165.36 and £106.16 on a 48 weeks basis for
affordable and social rent properties respectively.
o New tenants will pay target/Formula rent which will increase by
September CPI(1.7%) plus 1% in 2025/26.
o Rentincrease of 2.7% in 2025/26 in line with Government guidance
and 2.5% (CPI +1%) thereafter.
o Rent Loss from voids is assumed to be 1.2% of rental income per year.
o Provision for bad debts assumed to be 1.75% of rental income per
year.



Page 50 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

e A minimum HRA revenue reserve of £400 per property (£2.1m) will help to
mitigate the risk of unforeseen circumstances. A prudent level of HRA
balance reserve will be determined annually as part of the budget setting
process.

e Rightto Buy (RTB) levels are assumed to be 10 sales per year due to the
reduction in discounts (far less than last years assumption of 40).

e Capital charges of £4.2m based on HRA total debt of £122.2m, this
includes £98.9m taken out on a fixed interest only basis in 2012 to cover
the self-financing settlement payment.

e No debt repayment is assumed in this plan.

3.50 Self-financing placed a limit (Debt Cap) on borrowing for housing purposes at
the closing position for 2011/12 at £122.2 million, however, the removal of the
cap means that the HRA can borrow (within prudential limits) to pay for
investment in our existing stock and provide new homes.

3.51 These assumptions result in the following revenue budgets with sums being
transferred to Earmarked Reserves:



Page 51
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Agenda Iltem 6

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025
202425 | 202435 | 2024425 | 2025.26 | 2026.27 | 2027.28 | 2028.29
Revised | Forecast
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget
oz budget | Outurn 2 oz — 2

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
INCOIME
Dwelling Rents 27,443 | 27,443 | 27,448 | 28,169 | 28,981 | 29,817 | 30,678
MNon-Dwelling Rents 613 613 515 534 347 361 575
Tenants' Charges for Services & Facilities 618 618 675 695 713 730 745
Contributions towards Expenditure 124 124 155 155 159 163 167
Total Income 28,798 | 28,798 | 28,797 | 29,553 | 20,400 | 31,272 | 32,169
EXPENDITURE
Repairs & Maintenance 6,992 6,992 7,155 7,844 8,019 8,198 8,382
Supervision & Management 8,877 8,877 8,703 9,249 9,439 9,634 9,833
Rent, Rates, Taxes & Other Charges 576 576 448 576 588 601 614
Provision for Bad Debts 576 576 576 517 532 547 563
Depreciation & Impairment of Fixed Assets 6,487 6,487 6,487 7,296 7,579 7,778 7,082
Interest Payable & Debt Management Costs | 4,179 4,179 4,182 4,179 4,179 4,179 4,179
Total Expenditure 27,687 | 27,687 | 27,551 | 29,661 | 20,337 | 30,938 | 31,553
Net Operating Expenditure -1,110 1,110 | -1,246 108 63 334 -616
Interest Receivable -234 -234 -234 -211 -166 -143 -129
Transfer to/{from) general reserves 110 0 0 0
Transfer to/{from) Earmarked Reserves 1,344 1,344 1,480 0 228 477 745
{[Surplus)/Deficit on Services 0 0 0 7 0 0 0
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BALANCE
Forecast Balance as at beginning of year®* 3,176 3,176 2,399 2,399 2,509 2,509 2,508
Surplus/(deficit) for year 0 0 0 110 0 0 0
Forecast Balance as at end of year 3,176 3,176 2,399 2,509 2,509 2,509 2,509

3.52

Table 7 HRA Revenue Budget

S

The HRA Capital investment ensures that existing HRA dwelling are kept to a
descent home plus standard. In 2025/26, £11.5m will be spent on
improvements to existing dwellings and £23.3m in the following 3 years of the

plan.




EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

3.53

3.54

Page 52

Agenda Item 6

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

4™ February 2025

Outturn 1 2 3 4
2024125 202526 2026.27 2027.28 2028.29
£ i £ £ £
Major Hepairs Reserve
Internal Refurbishment 2,500,000 F000,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000
Eoiler Fieplace-rnents 650,000 T20,000 750,000 750,000 T50,000
High Trees Project 1,201,000 F00,000 1] 1] 0
External Refurbishment B50,000 500,000 00,000 00,000 00,000
Electrical Upgrades 175,000 200,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Dioor Entry and Security Upgrades 150,000 350,000 00,000 5,000 5,000
Smoke Detection Upgrades 0,000 200,000 300,000 00,000 100,000
Balcony Replacements 400,000 F000, 000 F000, 000 200,000 200,000
Mlajor Woids 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Energy Efficiency 1,000,000 1,000,000 750,000 750,000 750,000
I Disrepair Cases 200,000 100,000 0,000 0,000 50,000
Fire I:nmp.artmentatign 1,000,000 1,500,000 250,000 250,000 250,000
Garage Improvement wWorks 00,000 250,000 250,000 250,000
Strucutral Hep.airs 450,000 15,000 75,000 75,000 75,000
Ashestos General 125,000 125,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Capitalized Salaries E40,000 750,000 750,000 750,000 750,000
Lift Replacement 150,000 150,000
wWindow Replacement 5000, 0000
10,400,000 11,510,000 T.975.000 T.650,000 T.650,000
Capital Receipts
Disabled Adaptations 650,000 500,000 250,000 250,000 260,000
HR A Stock. - Femodelling 50,000 275,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Estate & Environmental Improvements 50,000 00,000 250,000 250,000 250,000
Estates Farking and Faving 150,000 150,000 150,000
Stock, Condition Survey Fees 125,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000
HR&, - Wehicles Renewal programme 00,000 00,000
Houszing Management Systemn 250,000
1,125,000 1325000 1,800,000 D00, 000 300,000
New BuildlAcquisitions 1,700,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
13225 000 16435 000 12 175,000 11,550, 00 11,550, 000
Financed by
[Majar Repairs Rezerve 10,400,000 11,510,000 7,975,000 7,650,000 7,650,000
Capital Receipts 1,125,000 1,925,000 1,800,000 200,000 200,000
Capital Beceiptz earmarked for acquisition 1,700,000 5,000,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
HRE& Capital Rezerve ] ] 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
HRE& - Borrawing
13225 000 16435 000 12 175,000 11,550, 00 11,550, 000

Table 8 HRA Capital Programme

Capital investment in our existing homes if funded primarily from the Major
Repairs Reserve, which. holds the yearly depreciation amount charged to the
HRA and can be used purely to finance investment in existing stock and the

repayment of HRA debt.

Capital receipts from Right to buy sales can also be used to finance the HRA
capital investment programme, although some of these receipts can only be
used to finance new homes to replace those that have been sold. Borrowing,



Page 53 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

which is no longer capped, can also be used to finance the capital programme
providing that it is affordable and complies with the Prudential Code for
Capital Finance in Local Authorities. No additional borrowing is assumed in
the medium term.

3.55 Revenue surplus generated by the HRA is transferred to an earmarked capital
reserve and this usable reserve is currently used as match funding for the
new homes program but can also be used to repay HRA debt. Overall HRA
Reserves are shown in the following Table:

202425 2025.26 2026.27 2027.28 2028.29
£ £ E £ £

Major Repairs Reserve
Balance 1st April 10,434,000 6,727,651 2,223,918 1,448 388 1,196,480
Contributions in year 6,603,651 7,006,266 7,199 470 7,308,092 7,602,290
Appliedin year -10,400,000 -11,510,000 -7,975,000 -7,650,000 @ -7,650,000
Balance 31st March 6,727,651 2,223,918 1,448,388 1,196,480 1,148,770
Capital Receipts
Balance 1st April 4,003,430 4,001,028 3,004,732 2,060,356 2,033 234
Contributions in year 1,122,593 838,704 855,624 872 378 890,478
Appliedin year -1,125,000 -1,925,000 | -1,800,000 -900,000 -900,000
Balance 31st March 4,091,028 3,004,732 2,060,356 2,033,234 2,023,711

Capital Receipts earmarked for replacement homes

Balance 1st April 7,774,765 6,993,254 4,679,467 3,879,523 3,093,695
Contributions in year 918,489 686,213 700,056 714,173 728,573

Applied in year -1,700,000 -3,000,000 | -1,500,000 @ -1,500,000 @ -1,500,000
Balance 31st March 6,993,254 4,679,467 3,879,523 3,093,695 2,322,268

HRA Capital Reserve

Balance 1st April 11,770,765 13,250,765 13,250,765 11,979,231 10,956,301
Contributions in year 1,480,000 o 223,466 477,070 744735
Applied in year for capital ] ] -1,500,000 | -1,500,000 -1,500,000
Balance 31st March 13,250,765 13,250,765 11,979,231 10,956,301 10,201,036
B,580,826 4,475,784 1,836,153 1,322,434 1,172,625
4,002,229 3,547,880 2,532,544 2,046,795 2,028,473
7,384,010 5,836,361 4,779 495 3,486,609 2,707,982
12,510,765 13,250,765 12,614,958 11,467,766 10,578,669
Average Balances in year 32,567,829 27,110,790 21,263,190 18,323,605 16,487,748

Table 9 HRA Reserves
3.56 Based on current assumption the HRA Medium Term Financial plan ensures:

» Adequate level of balance reserves is maintained to help manage risk and
mitigate the impact of unforeseen circumstances.

» A robust capital programme that is fully funded from available resources
within the HRA.



Page 54 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

3.57

3.58

3.59

» Surpluses are generated and transferred to a capital reserve and used to
match fund the costs of replacement homes.

» The council complies with the legal requirements and does not set a deficit
budget for the HRA.

The Risk Assessment

As set out in this Report we are budgeting in a time of extreme uncertainty:

e There having been a change of National Government and this being
their first year of being the administration since 2010.

e The 2025/6 Local Government Financial Settlement is only for one year
and overall have a £352k reduction in central grants — once the 2025/6
Recovery Funding comes out.

e There will be a new financial settlement formula in 2026/7, which will
be for three years, but the make-up of this settlement formula will only
start to be consulted on in the spring of 2025.

e The Government have also announced significant reorganisation of the
Local Government Sector with Worcestershire which is 2 tier moving to
a Unitary setup by the end of this Parliament. At the present time, the
format of Unitary Councils in Worcestershire is unclear as are the rules
in relation to use of Reserves and Balances in the intermediate period
and the obvious impact on the Councils Staff, Members and present
Stakeholders.

e The status of Councils with “Disclaimer Opinions” on their accounts. It
is understood there will be over 500 of these opinions across English
Councils.

e The ongoing issue of Funding, with the care element of Local
Government taking more over the “overall” resource pot on a yearly
basis leaving less for other services we provide to the public.

e The Council still has to fund any abortive works on the Town Hall linked
to the original Library concept.

As per the Risk Reports that are reported to Audit, Governance and
Standards and Committee there are the following specific Risks linked to
finance:

¢ Resolution of the approved budget position.

e Financial process rectification (in relation to the 2020/21 Accounts and
subsequent years not being approved — which is close to some sort of
resolution with the “Disclaimer Opinions”).

e Decisions made to address financial pressures and implementing new
projects that are not informed by robust data and evidence.

e Adequate workforce planning.

In addition, in this time of uncertainty the Council will also need to embed a
new Chief Executive and Deputy Chief Executive/Director of Resources, both



Page 55 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

of whom have been appointed in January 2025 and will start after their
respective notice periods.

3.60 There are the core risks of implementation of any Council financial plan in
that:

e Any savings proposal must pass the S151 Officers tests for robustness
and delivery. If items are not deliverable or amounts not obtainable,
they cannot be included.

e Implementation of savings to time and budget — there must be full
implementation processes documented to ensure implementation
within timescales.

e Non delivery is a high risk - Savings are tracked and reviewed on a
guarterly basis at the Audit Standards and Governance Committee to
ensure implementation happens based on the plans and the
assumptions will become part of the Council’s core processes.

e Loss of key personnel will be crucial, especially given the impending
Local Government Reorganisation and mitigation plans will need to be
drawn up which in themselves will require resources to administer and
deliver.

e Change of corporate direction/priorities given the upcoming changes in
the sector.

The S151 Officers Robustness Statement

3.61 For Tranche 2, the opinion of the Interim Director of Finance is that the risks
contained in the 2025/26 budget estimates have been minimised as far as is
possible.

3.62 In the past two years the Council have moved to the delivery of sustainable
budgets however these have been impacted by three years of Pay Awards far
in excess to those ever seen in Local Government. This, given the fact that
staffing costs are approaching 50% of overall costs, has had a significant
impact on council budgets over this period leading to in year overspend
positions and has required subsequent mitigation in following years budgets.

3.63 Although inflation is reducing in the UK, given wider economic events and
changes in other countries Governments and the move to more nationalistic
policies it is not clear if inflation in particular will move back to being
consistently within the Government’s 2% target. This impacts Council costs
but also those who have the requirement to use our services.

3.64 Employee budgets are almost 50% of the Council’s costs. Over the past 18
months there has been a significant move to fill establishment positions.
However, the Council is still running at levels of vacancy of around 100
against an overall joint establishment of 850 and using considerable agency
resource to ensure services are maintained. This attracts additional short term



Page 56 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

cost and the Workforce Strategy, implemented in 2023, is starting to mitigate
this. This is shown in the Council’s staff turnover figure being 50% of the
National average at just over 7%. However, this remains the most significant
financial risk to the Council.

3.65 The next most significant financial risk was the fact that that the Council had
not been able to present its 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23 Accounts for
Audit, and the possible inaccuracy of opening balances used in budgetary
data. These three years have now been completed under the new “backstop”
regulations, but because of the national audit Issues the Council has received
“Disclaimer Opinions” for all three years. There are circa 500 of these
opinions for English Councils and it is not clear of the implications of this on
Councils and the wider sector. What the closure process has highlighted,
now it has been completed for these years, is that the Council is in a stronger
position in terms of reserves than was the started position. The 2023/4
Accounts have also now been completed and presented for Audit.

3.66 The revenue budget and capital programme have been formulated having
regard to several factors including:

Funding available.

Inflation.

Risks and Uncertainties.

Priorities.

Service Pressures.

Commercial Opportunities.

Operating in a Post C-19 environment.

3.67 The MTFP highlights that the current financial position has moved, following
the Local Government Settlement, to a position of requiring £0.750m of
funding from General Fund Reserves over the three year period. Thisis a
departure from the previous two years where the Council has tried to move to
a more ongoing sustainable position. The reason for this movement in the
short term is that
e In year three 2027/28, the ongoing deficit to close going forward is £345k

which is not a significant sum to close.

e That the Local Government Financial Settlement methodology will
significantly change in 2026/27, and it would not be sensible to make
savings where those services might need to be re-instated.

e That the general fund will still be at a level — at £7.312m after allowing for
this support which is over 15% of gross turnover.

3.68 The Council has reviewed its position in line with the CIPFA Resilience Index.
The data for the resilience index is obtained from the Revenue Expenditure
and Financing England Outturn Report 2023-24 ('RO Forms') and reflects
figures submitted by Local Authorities to MHCLG, published on 12 December
2024. The Council in comparison to its nearest neighbours and levels of risk:



Page 57 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

e Has higher risk in terms of levels of reserves — although with the
accounts now being closed this will change

e Has higher risk in terms of levels of interest payable and debt but this is
all linked to the HRA transfer.

e Has a slightly lower than average fees and charges to Services and
Council tax requirement to net expenditure.

3.69 In line with Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003, this report of the
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) sets out the robustness of estimates included in
the budget and the adequacy of the Council’s reserves.

The Chief Financial Officer’s opinion is that the estimates are robust

3.70 Relevant budget holders are responsible for individual budgets and their
preparation. All estimates are then scrutinised by Financial Services staff and
the Corporate Management Team prior to submission to Members.

3.71 The two tranche 2025/26 budget process has ensured that all budget
assumptions have been reviewed and reconsidered by Officers, and then
Members, through the Finance and Budget Scrutiny Working Group,
Executive and Council.

3.72 The budget has a £750k call on General Fund Reserves over the three year
period but by year 3 does start to move to a more sustainable position. More
work will need to be done to embed changes to ensure financial sustainability
is embedded across the organisation, especially with the change coming
forward for Local Government in terms of Funding and Structure.

Adequacy of Reserves

3.73 Budget and MFTP proposals forecast the level of General Fund balances
at £7.312m as at 31st March 2028 which is well above the recommended 5%
of net level as set out in the Reserves section.

3.74 The present positive medium term financial position, takes into account the
updated position in terms of accounts now being closed to the 2023/24
financial year however the “Disclaimer Opinions” still give the potential of
possible issues with Opening Balances. It is prudent for the Council to build
reserves as they are the Council’s single source of funding for business
change initiatives.

3.75 Further work will be undertaken to ensure that expenditure levels are
sustainable and matched by income over the medium to long term. Plans are
therefore in place to continue to review budgets and identify and accelerate
further savings opportunities.



Page 53 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

Collection Fund and Precepts

3.76 The Council Tax collection fund is anticipated to be in surplus based on
December data by £1.006m, which will be distributed amongst the major
preceptors using the prescribed formulae. The Council’s share of the surplus
payable as a one-off sum in the following financial year 13% of the total which
amounts to £125k.

3.77 The precepts from Worcestershire County Council, Hereford and Worcester
Fire Authority and the West Mercia Police and Crime Commissioner are due
to set their precepts in the week commencing 8th February. This will enable
the Council to set the Council Tax on 26th February 2024. The precepting
bodies Council Tax requirements will be included in the formal resolutions
which will be presented to Council on 26th February.

Consultation Details

3.78 The Council, as part of the Tranche 1 budget undertook a complete
consultation as part of its quarterly consultation process. This budget
consultation opened on Thu 5 December 2024. An email invite was sent to
the Redditch Community Panel. The survey was also promoted on a variety
of social media channels.

3.79 The survey closed at 12 noon on Thursday 2 January 2025. The response
rate for the community panel was 44%. There were a total of 322 valid
responses received.

3.80 Question 2 gives a split of the consultation responses by location with the
highest percentage of returns coming from Webheath, Batchley and Headless
Cross.

3.81 Question 17 gives the splits of Age Ranges of the people who filled out the
guestionnaire. The vast majority were over 50.

3.82 The survey asked respondents to rank the three most important services they
felt the Council should invest in. These were:
e Community Safety (49.2.% of respondents).
¢ Maintenance of the Landscape and Environment (46.1.% of respondents)
e Housing (42.1.% of respondents).

3.83 Each question had the following Questions asked had the following possible
responses.
e Strongly Agree
e Agree
e Neither Agree or Disagree
e Disagree



Page 59 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

e Strongly Disagree

3.84 In those questions, 8 had responses well over 50% agreeing or strongly
agreeing, and only one had a response lower than 50%:
e Do you support fees and charges (such as hire costs) rising by 4% to keep
them in line with inflation and rising staffing costs at a 47.7% approval rate.

3.85 The highest approval rating, at 84.1% was the question - Do you agree that
the Council should invest in its land and assets to ensure they are safe and fit
for the future e.g. dealing with trees affected by ash die back?

3.86 Two further questions were asked on what level of increase to Redditch
Borough Council's proportion of Council Tax do you support?
e 61.7% agreed of strongly agreed with a 1.99% increase.

e This dropped to 37.8% at 2.99%.

3.87 There were 2 free test questions:
e Please let us know your suggestions for investing in the borough to
increase prosperity and enhance appeal for residents and businesses
alike?

o There were 182 responses to this question.
o Responses to this question provided many suggestions and comments
regarding the borough. The top four themes were:
= Town Centre
= Environment (natural, maintenance & waste management)
= Supporting businesses
= Infrastructure (including roads & public transport)

o These themes had many cross overs, from the impact of development,
encouraging a diverse range of businesses into the borough and
reducing costs to visitors and businesses alike. Suggestions included:

= Reducing business rates / relief

= Support start-ups

» Prioritise local businesses & inward investment

* Reducing parking costs

= Supporting independent retailers

= Bringing in diverse range of retailers- understanding offer on

High Street- too may charity shops, cafes, fast food restaurants

Bring back some key major retailers

Utilise empty shops

Develop the outside market- specific themed markets

Promote Redditch and the benefits of living/doing business

here- develop attractions, promote heritage, encourage visitors,

challenge negative perceptions

= Improve the night-time economy & expand the current offer



Page 60 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

= Improve the appearance & maintenance of the borough- in

particular the town centre outside of the Kingfisher Centre &

shop frontages

Review grass & hedge cutting

Protect green spaces

Subsidised health & fithess

Increase enforcement activities & fines e.g. fly tipping & littering

Ensure there are enough council houses

Ensure council housing is well maintained, repaired &

accessible

Improved public transport

Adress community safety issues

Engage with communities, particularly young people

Support young people into work- skills, training &

apprenticeships

= Support the voluntary sector & greater volunteering
opportunities

= Access grants wherever possible

= Ensure a borough-wide view- including the district-centres

e Please let us know any other comments on the budget or ideas for
reducing costs or increasing income to ensure Council services remain
sustainable?

o There were 132 responses to this question.

o Of the responses to this question, the largest category fell into the
theme of efficiency and value for money. Other popular themes
included exploring commercial activities/opportunities, housing, the
environment and the town centre. Suggestions included:

= Reviewing Council workforce & salaries

= More staff working at the Town Hall

= Explore alternative methods of delivery e.g. partnerships, private
sponsorship

Reduce use of consultants

Review fees & charges

Rubicon to generate more income

Commercial opportunities e.g. hiring out Council spaces; selling
logs; sell off small pieces of land for parking

Turn off lights

Promote events better to increase revenue & bring in visitors
Explore camping at Arrow Valley & Morton Stanley

Better offer at the Palace Theatre

Support youth activities & skills

Focus litter picking in areas around people’s homes &
businesses

= Increase enforcement activities & fines e.g. fly tipping & littering



Page 61 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

= Encourage biodiversity in green & open spaces

= Support the voluntary sector & greater volunteering
opportunities

=  Work with the Kingfisher Centre on offer & costs

= Reducing business rates / relief

= Consider impact of cross border development on Redditch
infrastructure

The consultation spreadsheet sets out the overall summary and a breakdown by
guestion is shown as Appendix I.

3.88 Tranche Two of the budget will be consulted on following its publication on the
27" January. Any comments will be fed into Executive and Council on the
27" February 2025.

3.89 The Council will raise awareness of the budget proposals via use of social
media.

4. IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

4.1  Financial implications are set out in section 3.

Legal Implications

4.2 A number of statutes governing the provision of services covered by this
report contain express powers or duties to charge for services. Where an
express power to charge does not exist the Council has the power under
Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972 to charge where the activity is
incidental or conducive to or calculated to facilitate the Council’s statutory
function.

Service / Operational Implications

4.3  Monitoring will be undertaken to ensure that income targets are achieved.

Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications

4.4  The implementation of the revised fees and charges will be notified in
advance to the customer to ensure that all users are aware of the new
charges and any concessions available to them.

4.5 Initial Equalities Impact Assessments will be taken where required.



Page 62 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

5. RISK MANAGEMENT

5.1 There is arisk that if fees and charges are not increased that income levels
will not be achieved, and the cost of services will increase. This is mitigated
by managers reviewing their fees and charges annually.

6. APPENDICES

Appendix A — Budgets by Department

Appendix B — WRS Fees and Charges

Appendix C — Reserves

Appendix D — 5 Year Capital Programme

Appendix E — 2025/6 Capital Strategy

Appendix F — 2025/6 Treasury Management Strategy
Appendix G — 2025/6 MRP Statement

Appendix H — 2025/6 Investment Strategy

Appendix | — Budget Consultation Results

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.

None



Page 63 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

Appendix A — Budgets by Department

To follow

Appendix B - WRS Fees and Charges

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 2023124 2024i25 2025/26

Stray Dogs Firee [staturary] £25.00 £25.00 £25.00
Ot of hours charge £47.00 £50.00 £52.00
Fiepeat offender penalty #4200 #4500 #4700
Administration Charge E17.00 E15.00 £19.00
Eennelling per dog, per day E18.00 £20.00 £21.00

Eennelling of dangerous dogs - per dog, per day by

£26.00 £28.00 £29.00
temperament or breed]
Wet's fees At cost At cost At Cost
Treatment Costs [wormer, lea treatment ee.) £12.00 £13.00 £13.50
Rieturn charge [during office hours when resource available) #4200 #4500 #4700
FPenalty charge for non-compliance of Microchipping
regulations [not microchipped or contact details out of date] ar
Control of Dogs Order 1992 [no owner contact details on collar New £15.00 £16.00
or tag)
4600 per hour
. . \ - . to collate
Enwirammental Information ‘where request relates to 'contamination of the land’ charge R N £49.00 [Flat
- X . ] i information [as £51.00
FRequlations request applied to locate and provide the information requested. - a fee]
estimated at time
ol reouectl
Reduced Fine [Paid within 10 days) £50.00 £60-100
Littering - Fized Penalty Motice for
Depositing Litter [section 87038 -
Environmental Protection Aot 1330)
Full Fine Amount £80.00 £100-£150
Fized Penalty Motice for Failure to  me dyced Fine [Paid within 10 days) £200.00 £210.00

produce authority [Waste
Carrier's Licence | [Section 5(5E
Control of Pallution [Amendment]
At 19849) Reduced Fine [Paid within
10 days) Full Fine Amount £300.00 £325.00




Page 64

Agenda Iltem 6

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

4™ February 2025

Fized Penalty Matice for F ailure to
produce dacumentation [Waste Reduced Fine [Faid within 10 days) £200.00 £210.00
Transfer Notes) [Section 34(5)
and regulations made under it
346348 Environment al
Protection &ct 1990) Reduced Fine Full Fine Amaunt £300.00 £375.00
[Faid within 10 days] ) ’
Reduced Fine [Faid within 10 day=) £120-£200 !
Fized Penalty Matice for Breach |
of Waste Duty of Care [s=ction
34 Environmental Protection Act
1330) |
Sliding seale £100-£300 £180-£400 \
Flgtipping - Fized Penalty Matice Rieduced Fine [Faid within 10 days=] £150-£250
for Depositing Controlled Waste
[Section 34[1)(a] and Section
33[Z)(a) Environmental Protection
Ak 1990 - |
Full Amount sliding scale £160-£400 £200-£500 |
Training Certificates Health { Expoart £95 « ¥YAT £100 « ¥AT £104 +wat l
Annual specific export inspection Certificate E428 - YAT 457 « YAT E4TS.00 - uwat l
Fer hiour [minimum 1hour) £50.00 £54.00 ESG.00 l
FHRS [Food Hygiene Rating Scherme) re-rating EITE.00 E130.00 £193.00 l
Foiod Advisory Yisits £150.00 £160.00 E166.00 l
’ . |
Risk A tperh 1h .
Private Water Supplies Ik Assessment per haur [minimum 1 haur) £59 per hour £63 per hour [$66.00 per hour
—_— . |
| tigati h 1h .
nvestigatian per haur [minimum Thaur) £59 per hour £63 per hour [$66.00 per hour
. _ - |
Girant Btk I h 1h .
ranting an Autharization per kour [minimum 1hour] £59 per hour £63 per hour |£66.00 per hour
. . . |
g ling Wizit per b 1h ,
ampling Yisit per haur [minimum 1haour) £59 per hour £63 per hour  [£66.00 per hour
£59.00 per hour |£63.00 per hour | £66.00 per hour |
Sample analysiz per sample taken plus laboratory | plus laboratory | plus laboratory |
charges charges charges
£59.00 per hour |£63.00 per hour [£66_00 per hour |
Sample taken during check monitoring plus laboratory | plus laboratory | plus laboratory |
charges charges charges
£59.00 per hour |£63.00 per hour |£66_00 per hour |
Sample taken during audit monitoring plus laboratory | plus laboratory | plus laboratory
3 5 5




Page 65 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

LICENSING FEES AND CHARGES 202324 2024125 202526

TAX] AND PRIVATE HIRE

Hackney Carriage YWehicle Licence £277.20 £296.60 £308.50
Private Hire Wehicle Licence £277.20 £296.60 £308.50
Ternporary Hackney Carmiage Yehicle Licence £207.90 £222 50 £231.40
Ternporary Private Hire Yehicle Licence £207.90 £22250 £231.40
Priwvate Hire Operatar Licence [5 vear][1- 3 vehicles] £637.00 £681.60 £708.90
Frivate hire operator licence [per additional wehicle) £17.00 £18.20 £18.90
Dual Hackrney carriage ! Private Hire driver licence [ 3 vears) £157.50 £168.50 £175.20
Priwvate hire driver licence [3 vearz) £157.50 £168.50 £175.20
|Knuwledge Test £24.20 £265.90 £26.90
Adrninistration Charge - new applications £38.90 £41.60 £43.30
Replacerment vehicle licence plate £24 20 £25.90 #2690
Replacerment driver's licence £13.70 #1470 £15.30
Amendrment to paper licence e.g. change of address £12.60 £13.50 £14.00
Transfer of ownership of a licensed vehicle £53.60 £h7.40 £59.70
Crirmninal Record [DBS) Check £58.80 £62.90 £65.40
Replacernent hackney carriage ! private hire door zigns [per sign) £12.50 £13.40 £13.90

ANIMAL ACTIVITY LICENCES
arranging the provision of boarding For cats or dogs
and =elling animals as pets

Application fee £329.00 £355.00 £365.70
Licence fee [1vear) £184.00 £199.00 £205.00
Licence fee [2 vears] £364.00 £393.00 £404.80
Licence fee [3 vears] £546.00 £590.00 £607.70
Application to vary a licence £240.00 £259.00 £266.80
Weterinary fees [if applicable) Recovered at cost

Local authority inspection [on reguest of licence holder) £164.00 £177.00 £182.30
Keeping or raining ammals For exhibition [only)

Application fee £219.00 £237.00 £244 10
Licence fee (3 vears)] £300.00 £324.00 £333.70
Application to vary a licence £158.00 £170.00 £175.10
Weterinary Fees [if applicable) Hecovered at cost

Local authority inspection [on reguest of licence holder) £163.00 £177.00 £182.30

ACUPUNCTURE, COSMETIC PIERCING, SEMI-PERMANENT

SKIN COLOURING, TATTOOING, ELECTROLYSIS
Fee to register a premizes £142.80 £152.80 £153.90
Fee to register a practitioner £93.50 £100.00 £104.00



Page 66 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

GAMBLING ACT 2005 (inc. SMALL LOTTERIES)

Small society lotteries

Fee to register a small society lottery £40.00 £40.00 £40.00
Srnall society lottery annual maintenance Fee £20.00 £20.00 £20.00
Application for the grant of a premizes licence

Betting [excluding tracks] £1.945.70 £2.081.90 £2.165.20
Betting Tracks £1.945.70 £2.081.90 £2.165.20
Bingo £2.279.60 £2.439.20 £2.536.80
Adult Garning Centres £1.302.00 £1.393.10 £1.448.80
Farnily Entertainment Centres £1.302.00 £1.393.10 £1.448.80
Premizes licence annual Fees

Betting [excluding tracks] £389.60 £416.90 £433.60
Betting Tracks £389.60 £416.90 £433.60
Bingo £671.00 £718.00 £746.70
Adult Gaming Centres £671.00 £718.00 £746.70
Farnily Entertainment Centres £619.50 £662.90 £689.40
Application to vary a premizes licence

Betting [excluding tracks] £972.30 £1.040.40 £1.082.00
Betting Tracks £972.30 £1.040.40 £1.082.00
Bingo £1.139.30 £1.219.10 £1.267.90
Adult Gaming Centres £671.00 £718.00 £746.70
Farnily Entertainment Centres £671.00 £718.00 £746.70
Application to transfer a premises licence

Betting [excluding tracks] £F79.10 £833.60 £866.90
Betting Tracks £779.10 £833.60 £866.90
Bingo £782.30 £837.10 £870.60
Adult Garning Centres £1.302.00 £1.200.00 £1.200.00
Farnily Entertainment Centres £651.00 £696.60 £724.50
Application for a provisional statement

Betting [excluding tracks] £1.945.70 £2.081.90 £2.165.20
Betting Tracks £1.945.70 £2.081.90 £2.165.20
Bingo £2.279.60 £2.439.20 £2.536.80
Adult Garning Centres £1.302.00 £1.393.10 £1.448.80

Farnily Entertainment Centres £1.302.00 £1.393.10 £1.448.80



Page 67 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

Application For the grant of a premizes licence
[provisional statement holders]

Betting [excluding tracks] £779.10 £833.60 £866.90
Betting Tracks E779.10 £833.60 £866.90
Birngo £782.30 £837.10 £870.60
Adult Gaming Centres £782.30 £837.10 £870.60
Farnily E ntertainment Centres £651.00 £696_60 £724 50
Application For reinstatement of a premizes licence

Betting [excluding tracks| £782.30 £837.10 £870.60
Bettitg Tracks £782.30 £837.10 £870.60
Bingo £782 30 £837.10 £870.60
Adult Gaming Centres £782.30 £837.10 £870.60
Farnilyw Entertainmnent Centres £638.40 £683.10 £710.40
Premizes licence fees [miscellaneous)

Copu of a prernizes licence [all tupes) £265.00 £265.00 £25.00

kotification of a change in respect of a premizes licence [all upes) £h0.00 £6h0.00 £h0.00

Licenszed Premizes Gaming Machine Permits

Application for grant of a perrit £150.00 £150.00 £150.00
Application For variation of a perrmit £100.00 £100.00 £100.00
Application for the transfer of a permit £265.00 £265.00 £25.00

Arrwal permit Fee £h0.00 £6h0.00 £h0.00

Chanage of narne shown on a permit £25.00 £25.00 £25.00

Request for a copy of a permit £15.00 £15.00 £15.00

Licenzed Premizes Gaming Machines [Automatic

Fee to zerve notification £h0.00 £6h0.00 £h0.00

Club Gaming Permits

Application For grant of a permit £200.00 £200.00 £200.00
Application for grant of a permnit [Club premizes certificate bolderz) £100.00 £100.00 £100.00
Application For variation of a perrmit £100.00 £100.00 £100.00
Application For renewal of a permit £200.00 £200.00 £200.00
Application For renewal of a permit [club premises certificate £100.00 £100.00 £100.00
Annual perrmit Fee £50.00 £50.00 £50.00

Request for a copy of a permit £15.00 £15.00 £15.00

Club Machine Permits

Application for grant of a permmit £200.00 £200.00 £200.00
Application For grant of a perrit [Club premizes certificate bolders) £100.00 £100.00 £100.00
Application For wariation of a permit £100.00 £100.00 £100.00
Application For renewal of a permit £200.00 £200.00 £200.00
Application For renewal of a permit [club prermizes certificate £100.00 £100.00 £100.00
Arrwal permit Fee £h0.00 £6h0.00 £h0.00

Reguest for a copy of a permit £15.00 £15.00 £15.00



Page 63 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permit

Application for grant of a perrit £300.00 £300.00 £300.00
Application For renewal of a permit £300.00 £300.00 £300.00
Charnge of narme shown on a permit £265.00 #2500 #2500
Fequest far a copy af a perrit £15.00 £15.00 £15.00
|F'rize Gaming Permits
Application for grant of a perrit £300.00 £300.00 £300.00
Application For renewal of a permit £300.00 £300.00 £300.00
Charnge of narme shown on a permit £265.00 #2500 #2500
Fequest far a copy af a perrit £15.00 £15.00 £15.00
Temporary Uze Notices
Fee to zerve a Ternporary Usze hotice £325.50 £348.30 £362. 20
Fee for a copu of a Ternporary Use hlotice £16.80 £18.00 £18.70
STREET TRADING
Arnual street trading conzent - food - initial £1.519.40 £1,625.80 £1.690.80
Annal street rading conzent - food - renewal £1,393.40 £1,490.90 £1,550.50
Arnual street trading consent - non-food - initial £1.267_40 £1.356.10 £1.410.30
Arnwal street rading consent - non-food - renewal £1.139.30 £1.219.10 £1.267 90
SCRAP METAL DEALERS LICENCES
Application for a new zite licence £296.00 £311.00 £320.30
Fee per additional site £153.00 £160.00 F164_80
Application For renewal of a site licence £245.00 £257.00 £264.70
Fee per additional site £153.00 £170.00 £175.10
Application for a new collectors licence £143.00 £155.00 £159.70
Application for renewal of a collectors licence £97.00 £102.00 £105.10
Wariation of alicence £67.00 £70.00 £72.10
Request for a copy of a licence [if lost or stolen) £26.00 £27.00 £27 80
700 LICENCES
Application for grant or renewal of alicence £250.00 £267.50 £278.20
Secretary of state inspector and veterinary Fees Recovered at cost

DANGEROUS WILD ANIMALS (DWA)
Application for grant or renewal of alicence £235.00 £251.50 £261.60
Weterinary inzpection fees Recovered at cost

SEX ESTABLISHMENTS

Application for grant or renewal of alicence £1,020.00 £1,091.40 £1.135.10
Application For transfer of a licence £h00.00 £h3h.00 £hh6_ 40
Application For variation of a licence £1.020.00 £1.091.40 £1.135.10
| PAVEMENT LICENCES
I Application For grant of licence [E month licence] £100.00 £100.00 £0.00
Application Far a new pavernent licence - 2 vears £500.00
' Application For a renewal pavernent licence - 2 vears £350.00
- HYPNOTISM

1 Application For authorization £50.00 £h3.50 £55.60



Page 69

Agenda Iltem 6

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

4™ February 2025

LICENSING ACT 2003 - FEES SET BY CENTRAL GOVERNMENT - SAME FOR ALL DISTRICT COUNCILS

Temporary Event Molices
Fee to zerve a Ternporary Event Motice [TER]
Copw of a TEM [if lost or stolen]

Personal licences
Application for the grant of a personal licence
Fee For a replacernent perzonal licence [if lost or stolen)
Fee to notify a change of name or address on a personal licence

Applications For new premises licences or club premises certificates
Applications For the grant of a premizes licence or club premizes certificate
Band & [WNDRY 0 - 4300]
Band B [MDRY 4301 - 33000]
Band C [NDRY 33007 - 87000]
Band D [WORY 87007 - 125000)
Band E [MDRY 125001 +]

premizes iz uzed exclusively or primarily For the supply of alcohol for consumption on the
prernises)

Band A& [MDRY 0 - 4300)

Band B [MDRY 4301 - 33000]

Band C [MDRY 330071 - 87000)

Band O [MORY 87001 - 125000)

Band E [MDRY 125007 +]

Additional Fees For grant of a premizes licences [for large venues with capacities over
5000 - 9339
10000 - 14939
18000 - 19939
20000 - 29939
30000 - 39339
40000 - 49339
50000 - 59339
£0000 - 53339
70000 - 79339
20000 - 39339

Applications to vary premises licences and club premizes certificates
Applications o van a premizes licence or club premises certificate
Bland & [MDRW 0 - 4300)
Band B (MDRY 4301 - 33000]
Bland C [MDRY 33007 - 87000)
Band O [NDRY 87001 - 125000)
Band E [MDEW 1250010 +]

£21.00
£10.50

£37.00
£10.50
£10.50

£100.00
£190.00
£315.00
£450.00
£635.00

£100.00
£190.00
£315.00
£900.00
£1.905.00

£1.000.00
£2.000.00
£4.000.00
£8.000.00
£16.000.00
£24.000.00
£32.000.00
£40.000.00
£48.000.00
£56.000.00

£100.00
£190.00
£315.00
£450.00
£635.00



Page 70 Agenda Item 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4" February 2025

Applications to vary a premises licence [where the premizes is used exclusively or
prirnarilu For the =upply of alcohol For consurnption on the premizes)

Band A [MDRY 0 - 4300) £100.00
Band B [MORY 4301 - 33000) £190.00
Band C [MDRY 33001 - 87000] £315.00
Band O [MDRY 87007 - 125000) £900.00
Band E [MDRW 125001 +) £1.905.00
Application Far a minor variation of a premises licence or club premises certificate £89.00

Annual maintenance fees
Annual premizes licence or club premises certificate fee

Band & [MDRY 0 - 4300) £70.00

Band B (MDRY 4301 - 33000] £180.00
Band C [MDRY 33001 - 87000] £295.00
Band D [MDRY 87007 - 125000) £320.00
Band E [MDEY 125001 +) £350.00

Annual premizes licence [where the premizes is uzed exclusively or prirnarily far the
supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises)

Band A [MDRY 0 - 4300) £70.00
Band B [MORY 4301 - 33000) £180.00
Band C [MDRY 33007 - 87000] £295.00
Band D [WDRY 87007 - 125000) £640.00
Band E [MDRW 125001 +) £1.050.00
Additional annwal fees premizes licences [for large venues with capacities owver S000]
B000 - 9339 £500.00
10000 - 14393 £1.000.00
15000 - 19999 £2.000.00
20000 - 29333 £4 00000
20000 - 39333 £8.000.00

40000 - 43339 £12.000.00
50000 - 53339 £16.000.00
60000 - 63333 £20.000.00
70000 - 73333 £24.000.00
20000 - 23339 £28.000.00

Other applications and notifications

Application to transfer a premizes licence £23.00

Application to wary a premizes licence to nominate a premizes superyizor £23.00

Fee to change narme or address of the holder of a premizses licence £10.50

Fee to change the name or address of a designated premises sUperyisor on a premises £10.50
Fee for a replacernent premises licence or club premizes certificate [if lost or stolen) £10.50
Fee to notify licenzing authority of a propery interest in a premizses £21.00

Matication af chanae or club name or alteration to club rules £10.50

Matification of change of regizstered addrezs of club £10.50

Interirn authority fnotice Following death, incapacity or insalvency of licence bholder £23.00
Application For grant of a provizional staternent £35.00

Pavement Licenses
Every B months £100.00



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

4™ February 2025

Appendix C — Reserves Position

01-Apr-22 2022123 2022123 31-Mar-23 2023124 2023124 31-Mar-24 2024125 2024125  31-Mar-25 2025/26 2025126 31-Mar-26 20 2026127 31-Mar-27 2027128 2027128 31-Mar-28
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 oo £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
General Fund Balances 11.526 33 (5,923) 823 [2.52€) [435) [345)
General Fund:
Busziness Rates Retention Schemd 4,360 0 0
Community Development 4 i i
Community Safety 860 0 1643
Caorparate Sewvices 4652 0 0 [2,058)
Customer Services 93 0 0 0
Ecanomic Grawth 538 180 0
Electoral Senices 43 L 0
Erwiranmental Vehicles 23 0 0
Equipment replacement 5 0 0
Financial Services 43 i i
Human Resaurces Backlag
ICT Backlag
General Risk rezerve 45 0 0
Hawusing Bernefit Implementation 270 0 0
Hausing Support 1535 i i
Land Orainage 123 0 0
Planning Services 512 180 0
Sports Development i 0 (35)
Tawn Centre T 0 0
‘warmer Homes 16 0 0
Transformational Growth 123 0 0
Pensions 201 0 0
RegenerationIncome 273 323 i
Restart Grants 0 2,300 0
Uniliuties a 0 0
OMIC Start Up
‘Ward Budgets a 0 0
Property Services Review
EPR Funding Allocationb
Cavid-13[General) 580 0 0
Cowid-13 [Callection Fund) 2,955 a (23000

T/ abed

9 wa)| epuaby



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Appendix D — Capital Programme

4™ February 2025

bairten ance

2/ abed

Spend Council Council Council Council Council Council 3rd Party3rd Party3rd Party3rd Partydth Party3rd Party
Cap Description Carry | 2024125 | 202425 | 2024125 | 2029426 2026427 2027128 2028129 202930 24125 2926 26i2F  2A28 2028129 2029430 24125 2926 26027 2A28 2028129 2029430
Proj Forward | Budget | Total Total Total Total Total £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 3 £ £ £ £ 3
to 2415 3 3 £ £ £ 3
Large Schemes
Towns Fund
200053| - Innovation Centre 2317551 4)000,000| B,317.551 | 1866 | 1.000,000 4,000,000 1,000,000
- Innovation Centre 1] 1,948,000
0 1,348,000
200054] - Library 2409383 1700000 | 4,109,383 | 1788755 1,700,000 0
0
200055/ - Public Realm 2777926 1.000,000 | 3,777,926 0 1,000,000 0
- Public Realm 439,000 | 439,000 439,000 0
0
100102,1) Town Hall Redevelopment 532818 5100000 | 5692818 | 427.048
00108-11
| 5,100,000 0
L. Shared Prosperity I 1
100700 | - capital Element 0 0 0
- Reveriue Elerment 1] il 1]
- Remainder (to be BO7234 1591109 | 2,198,403 | 177.034 1,591,109 0
Schemes Agreed to Continue in Tranche 1
00004] Car Park Maintenance 13720 180000 | 287721 | 178963 | 1B0000 180000 150000 150,000 150,000 FO000 BOOOD BOO00 BOO00 BO.000 150000
TI0036] Footpaths 8556 75000 | 83Es6 | 80270 | FRO00  7RO00  YBO000  FRO00 75,000 7EO00 75000 7SO00 7ROO0 75000 7R.000
100007| Disabled Facilities Grant 42,784 1038806 | 1081590 | B42.396 | 1185745 700000 700,000 700000 700000 1.038,806 195,745 700,000 700,000 700000 700,000
00008|E nergy & Efficiency 154345 BRO00 | 209345 0 0 0 0 0
Inztalls.
55,000 ] N
100009 GF Asbestos 3747 3B.000 7R 467 0 0 0 0
38,000 0 i
W0018) Impraved Parking Scherne 400,000 ] 400,000 1] I 1] 0 L
[ includes locality funding) i] ] <
100028 Mortan Stanlew Plaw, Sport 0 2,000 2,000 1] 1] 0 1] 0 h
atnd Open Space o
Improvernents [General) 8,000 ] s
100027 Mew Finance Enterprize ] 1] 1] 1] 0 1] 0 0 1]
100032) Public Building 25903 2600000 | 275903 | 40754 | 280,000 250000 250,000 250,000 250,000 s
250,000 250,000 250000 250,000 250,000 250,000
Increazed Buildings i 150,000 | 150000 1]

ol epuany

P W |

O w



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

4™ February 2025

Spend Council Council Council Council Council Council 3rd Party3rd Party3rd Party3rd Partydth Partydrd Party
Cap Description Carry | 2024425 | 2024125 | 2024125 | 202826 2026027 2027128 2028129 2029430 24125 2526 26027 2728 2028129 202930 24125 2826 2627 2728 2028129 2029430
Proj Forward | Budget | Total Total Total Total Total £ £ £ 3 3 3 3 3 £ 3 3 3 3 3
to 2415 £ £ £ £ £ £
00035 Fleet Replacermnent new 1263500 1300000 | 2,363,500 | 81052 i 1,360,000 i i
line 10000 0 1H0000 O 0
100037| Rernaval of 5 weirs 44,000 0 414,000 0 i 0 i I
through Arrow allew Park 0 0
1000400 Sparts Contributions ko 0 3.000 3.000 ] 0 ] 0 il
suppart impravements to
Outdoor Facilities at Terry 3.000 il
100043 wheslie Bin purchase 89,242 00,000 | 189.342 39,751 | 100000 100000 100,000 100,000 100,000
100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
100088} Irmpravernent Hally trees 1] £,000 6,000 i] 0 i] 0 0
childrens centre £.000 il
100010) Grassland bitigation i 5,864 5,864 0 5,864 5,864 5,564 5,864 r
measUres- recreating and
ronitoring arassland U
habitats in M3 and AYCP 5A54  BEE4 GBR4 BAR4 5864 | Q)
10001 Hedgeraw Mitigatian 1] 21500 21,500 ] I ] I i (@)
measurres by restaration [9)
and hedge laving with
aszociated fencing and ~l
gates at AYP SHM and 21500 0 w
0002 HrAD Grants 36500 25000 E1500 0 25000 25000 0 25400 0 25000 0 25000 5000 25000 25000 25000 25000 25000
00013 Horne Repairs Assistance 80000 40,000 | 120,000 0 40,000 40000 40000 40000 40,000 40000 40000 40000 40000 40000 40000
0008 rprovernent b original 1] E0,606 F0E0R 3542 il 1] il il
Purnp Track at AYCP £0,605 0
100045 Replacing 3 fuel pumps 25,000 0 28,000 I ] I i
ahd upgrading tank
monitoring equipment if
110018] Cizco Metwork Update 5934 0 5,934 0 47333 50000 AOOOO BOOOO  GO000 >
i 47,439 50000 BO0OG0 0000 50,000 c:
10019 Server Replacement il 77500 | 177,500 0 18.500 EO000  BOOOD  BOOOD G000
Est{Exact known 02 2022) 177500 18500 E0000  EO000  BO000  EO.000 ‘—D
110020] Laptop Fefresh 13437 160,000 | 163497 7,372 5,000 30000 30000 30000 30,000 3
50000 5000 0 30000 30000 30,000 30000
Cober Capital Works 0 0 0 0 0 (®N
Cuber Security Updats 1] 268,000 28,000 ] 25,000 ‘DJ
Margan Stanley Footpaths i] 16,500 16,500 i 16,500
002 Mew Cemetany Provision 37963 126000 | 442963 2,000 ] I i _—
125000 195,000 —
(D

ow



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

4™ February 2025

Spend Council Council Council Council Council Council 3rd Party3rd Party3rd Party3rd Partydth Partydrd Party
Cap Description Carry | 2024125 | 2024125 | 2024125 | 202526 2026027 2027128 2028129 202930 24125 25026 26127 2728 202829 202930 24125 2526 26827 27128 2028029 2029430
Proj Forward | Budget | Total Total Total Total Total 2 £ 2 2 £ £ |3 2 £ 2 £ £ 2 2
to 2415 £ £ £ £ £ £
MNews  |Provide the Crozsgate 112,000 112,000 0 0 il 0
Depot site with a new and
Cornpliatt Deizel Fuel il
100097| ‘widen access road to 0 26634 | 26E34 | 34500 0 0 il 0
Arrow Walley Country park:
0 0 26,634
Lifeling Irmprovernents 0 120,000 | 120,000 0 0 0 0 0
120,000
PRS Housing ICT System 0 30,000 | 30,000 0 0 0 il 0 30,000
Play Areas - Surface 0 10,000 10,000 0 0,000 7h00 il 0
Fieplacernent 0,000 10000 7500
AYCP - Parking Bavs near il 12,000 12,000 il il il i] 1]
Vizitor Certre 12,000
Arrow Yalley Car Park 0 55,000 95,000 | 107.000 U
Arrow Yalley park Visitor i 450,000 | 450,000 | 88418 0 0 il 0 QD
Centre Irnprovernents 450,000 0 0 (O
110007] Farge Mill and Bardelsey 2,859 3,000 5,859 0 0 0 il 0 D
IDpen Space 3000 a ~
Hedge and Shrub 0 40,000 | 40,000 0 N
FEmaval
110009 kUG & at Greenlands 220w 2000 | 43078 0 i i i 0
Sports Pitches. 71000 ]
M0 Play Area improvernents at il a7 a7 il il il i] 1]
Birchfield RoadMHeadless
Cross Rec Ground.
TAN07 3AFLIL 7575 0 N
0073} Play area [£34,583.39), 1172 0 1172 0 0 il 0 D
Open space [£12,00136] p
and Sport [£8 A16] (S:
improvernents at Mayfields ('D
Park, THFUL 0 0 -
Play drea Changes-Pre 2270000 185,000 | 382,000 0 '3
At Q.
155,000 SD
Play Audit funding 0 263,386 | 263,386 0 191447 137393 44054 4290 471094
[
HHHHHH | _ _ [ _ _ _ ; _ 9447 137399 M4054  TF4290 411094 263,386 ('D

ow



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

4™ February 2025

Spend Council Council Council Council Council Council 3Ird Party3rd Party3rd Party3rd Party4th Party3rd Party
Cap Description Carry | 2024125 | 2024125 | 2024125 | 2025926 2026027 2027128 2028129 202930 24125 2526 26827 27128 2028129 2029930 24125 29426 26i27 27128 2028129 2029430
Proj Forward | Budget | Total Total Total Total Taotal i £ i i i i i i i i i £ £ £
to 2415 £ 3 £ 3 3 3
100020} Irnprovernent to Sports 1] 25,000 25,000 ] i] i] 0 i]
Fitches infrastructure in
torton Stanley Park 25,000 0
00112 Fire compartrentation 131,752 0 191,752 0 250,000 250,000 250,000 0
waorks in Corporate 2R0,000 280,000 250,000
hew Food Waste TEE 4593
Collection - DEFRA VEE.493
Abavus Software 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000
Abavus Licensing 10,200 10,200 10,200 10,200 0200 10200  10.200 10,200
|pdate Tawn Hall Fire 16,250 16250
Replacern.ent Track - 300,000
abbey Stadiurm 300,000
Erergu Performance 00,000 100,000 100,000
Certificate Fequirernents 100,000 100,000 100,000
Abbey Stadiurn Foof 250,000 T0
Feplacereat 250,000 (\b)
Abbey Stadiurm - refurbizh 300,000 b w
indoor Chaging Foorns [ii»)
and Taitets 300,000
Farge bill - Mew outdaar 90,000 ~
Kinsk and Tailet 90,000 o1
FitcherOak, refurbizh bdale 30,000
Changing and bebuild
2nd Green 90,000
Salary Capitallization 200,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 200,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000
Tatal 32428717 3627519 8082320 3,923,362 25R9172 2,064,490 2496248 4,792,886 376,213 3.217.435 18053308 1,364,430 1730334 0 15046480 4306107 705854 705854  TO0.000 705854

T12,314,351 20,114,385

9 Wwa)| epuaby



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

4™ February 2025

Appendix E - RBC Capital Strategy Report 2025/26

Introduction

11

1.2

This capital strategy report gives a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury management
activity contribute to the provision of local public services along with an overview of how associated risk is managed and the
implications for future financial sustainability. It has been written in an accessible style to enhance members’ understanding of
these sometimes technical areas.

Decisions made this year on capital and treasury management will have financial consequences for the Authority for many
years into the future. They are therefore subject to both a national regulatory framework and to local policy framework,
summarised in this report.

Capital Expenditure and Financing

1.3

1.4

Capital expenditure is where the Authority spends money on assets, such as property or vehicles, that will be used for more
than one year. In local government this includes spending on assets owned by other bodies, and loans and grants to other
bodies enabling them to buy assets.

In 2025/26, the Authority is planning capital expenditure of £4.9m for General Fund projects £12.0m for HRA work and £2.9m
for regeneration work, most of which is related to Towns Fund grant. This ss summarised below:

Table 1: Prudential Indicator: Estimates of Capital Expenditure in £ millions

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
actual forecast budget * budget budget
General Fund services 1.1 6.8 4.9 33 2.0

9/ abed

9 wa)| epuaby



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

1.5

1.6

1.7

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

4™ February 2025

Council housing (HRA) 10.3 11.7 12.0 11.5 111
Regeneration 0.7 13.8 2.9 0.7 0.1
TOTAL 12.1 32.3 19.8 15.5 13.2

The main General Fund capital projects include Towns Fund regeneration schemes (Innovation Centre, Town Square and
Public Realm) totalling £16m to be spent by 2026 and UK Shared Prosperity Funding to be spent by 2025. Following a change
in the Prudential Code, the Authority no longer incurs capital expenditure on investments.

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a ring-fenced account which ensures that council housing does not subsidise, or is
itself subsided, by other local services. HRA capital expenditure is therefore recorded separately.

Governance: Service managers bid annually in January to include projects in the Authority’s capital programme. Bids are
collated by corporate finance who calculate the financing cost (which can be nil if the project is fully externally financed). The
Audit Standards and Governance Committee and then the Cabinet appraises all bids based on a comparison of strategic
priorities against financing costs and makes recommendations to Council. The final capital programme is then presented to
Cabinet in February and to Council in February each year.

» For full details of the Authority’s capital programme, including the project appraisals undertaken, see Tranche 2 of the
2025/26 Medium Term Financial Plan.
a. All capital expenditure must be financed, either from external sources (government grants and other contributions), the
Authority’s own resources (revenue, reserves and capital receipts) or debt (borrowing, leasing and Private Finance
Initiative). The planned financing of the above expenditure is as follows:

) ) abed

9 wa)| epuaby



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Table 2: Capital financing in £ millions

4™ February 2025

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28

actual forecast budget * budget budget
External sources 0.9 15.0 4.9 0.7 0.7
Own Resources 11.2 4.8 3.0 2.8 1.5
Debt 0 12.5 11.9 12.0 11.0
TOTAL 12.1 32.3 19.8 15.5 13.2

1.9 Debtis only a temporary source of finance, since loans and leases must be repaid, and this is therefore replaced over time by
other financing, usually from revenue which is known as minimum revenue provision (MRP). Alternatively, proceeds from
selling capital assets (known as capital receipts) may be used to replace debt finance. Planned [MRP / repayments] and use

of capital receipts are as follows:

Table 3: Replacement of prior years’ debt finance in £ millions

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
actual forecast budget * budget budget
Minimum revenue
provision 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2
Capital Receipts 0.2 3.3 4.2 1.7 1.7

» The Authority’s full minimum revenue provision statement is available within the body of this report.

1.10 The Authority’s cumulative outstanding amount of debt finance is measured by the capital financing requirement (CFR). This
increases with new debt-financed capital expenditure and reduces with MRP and capital receipts used to replace debt. The

g/ abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

CFR is expected to increase by £1.9m during 2025/26. Based on the above figures for expenditure and financing, the
Authority’s estimated CFR is as follows:

Table 4: Prudential Indicator: Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement in £ millions

31.3.2024 | 31.3.2025 | 31.3.2026 | 31.3.2027 | 31.3.2028
actual forecast budget budget budget
General Fund &
Regeneration 6.7 10.9 12.5 10.5 10.5
HRA 146 147 147.3 147.7 147.7
TOTAL CFR 152.7 157.9 159.8 158.2 158.2
1.11 Asset management: To ensure that capital assets continue to be of long-term use, the Authority has an asset management

strategy in place. Within this strategy, individual properties and associated land will be further evaluated to determine:

The operational necessity and benefit.

Projected costs of ensuring all elements of the buildings continue to meet legislative requirements and performance
standards.

Planned and cyclical maintenance costs for elements nearing the end of their ‘life’ expectancy, ensuring service provision
is maintained without unnecessary interruption. Costs associated with meeting future EPC rating minimum requirements.
Rent levels (and net costs for each building) and revised leases.

Alternative or rationalised portfolio or joint enterprises for service delivery.

By evaluation of all factors cited above, informed decisions can be made to determine which assets are:

No longer cost effective to run, where outlay exceeds earning potential
No longer viable for effective service delivery

6/ abed

9 wa)| epuaby



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

1.12

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

4™ February 2025

e Surplus to requirements

Asset considerations will be presented to Cabinet on a half yearly basis for approval for disposal, unless there is an urgent
requirement for a decision.

Asset disposals: When a capital asset is no longer needed, it may be sold so that the proceeds, known as capital receipts,
can be spent on new assets or to repay debt: The Authority is currently also permitted to spend capital receipts “flexibly” on
service transformation projects until 2029/30 although nothing is presently planned. Repayments of capital grants, loans and
investments also generate capital receipts. The Authority plans to receive £4.2m of capital receipts in the coming financial year
as follows:

Table 5: Capital receipts receivable in £ millions

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28

actual forecast budget * budget budget
Asset sales 0.2 3.3 4.2 1.7 1.7
Loans etc repaid 0 0 0 0 0

Treasury Management

1.13

1.14

Treasury management is concerned with keeping sufficient but not excessive cash available to meet the Authority’s spending
needs, while managing the risks involved. Surplus cash is invested until required, while a shortage of cash will be met by
borrowing, to avoid excessive credit balances or overdrafts in the bank current account. The Authority is typically cash rich in
the short-term as revenue income is received before it is spent, but cash poor in the long-term as capital expenditure is incurred
before being financed. The revenue cash surpluses are offset against capital cash shortfalls to reduce overall borrowing.

Due to decisions taken in the past, the Authority currently has no external long term (over 1 year) borrowing and £16.5m
treasury investments at an average rate of 4.8%.

08 abed

9 wa)| epuaby



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

1.15

1.16

1.17

1.18

1.19

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

4™ February 2025

Borrowing strategy: The Authority’s main objectives when borrowing is to achieve a low but certain cost of finance while
retaining flexibility should plans change in future. These objectives are often conflicting, and the Authority therefore seeks to
strike a balance between cheaper short-term loans and long-term fixed rate loans where the future cost is known but higher.

The Authority does not borrow to invest for the primary purpose of financial return and therefore retains full access to the
Public Works Loans Board.

Projected levels of the Authority’s total outstanding debt (which comprises borrowing, PFI liabilities, leases and transferred
debt) are shown below, compared with the capital financing requirement (see above).

Table 6: Prudential Indicator: Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement in £ millions

Gross Debt 31.3.2024 31.3.2025 31.3.2026 31.3.2027 31.3.2028
actual forecast budget budget budget
Qgﬁeg)”c" PFI& 103.9 103.9 105.4 105.8 106.2
Sﬁ[‘grf‘e';ég‘;' (incl. 0.9 8.1 17.5 18.9 19.1
gggﬁﬁggﬁ?c'”g 152.7 157.9 159.8 158.2 158.2

Statutory guidance is that debt should remain below the capital financing requirement, except in the short-term. As can be
seen from table 6, the Authority expects to comply with this in the medium term.

Liability benchmark: To compare the Authority’s actual borrowing against an alternative strategy, a liability benchmark has
been calculated showing the lowest risk level of borrowing. This assumes that cash and investment balances are kept to a
minimum level of £2m at each year-end. This benchmark is currently £5.6m and is forecast to rise to £6.6m over the next three
years.

T8 abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Table 7: Borrowing and the Liability Benchmark in £ millions

31.3.2024 | 31.3.2025 | 31.3.2026 | 31.3.2027 | 31.3.2028
actual forecast budget budget budget
Forecast Outstanding
borrowing - GF 0.9 8.1 17.5 18.9 19.1
Liability benchmark -23.0 -15.8 -6.4 -5.0 -4.8

4™ February 2025

1.20 The table shows that the Authority expects to remain borrowed below its liability benchmark. This is because cash outflows to

1.21

date have been below the assumptions made when the loans were borrowed.

Affordable borrowing limit: The Authority is legally obliged to set an affordable borrowing limit (also termed the authorised
limit for external debt) each year. In line with statutory guidance, a lower “operational boundary” is also set as a warning level
should debt approach the limit.

28 obed

9 wa)| epuaby



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Table 8: Prudential Indicators: Authorised limit and operational boundary for external debt in £m

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
limit limit limit limit
£m £m £m £m

Authorised limit — borrowing 185 190 190 195
Authorised limit — PFI and

leases 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5
Authorised limit — total

external debt 186.5 191.5 191.5 196.5
Operational boundary —

borrowing 175 180 180 185
Operational boundary — PFI

and leases 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5
Operational boundary — total 176.5 181.5 181.5 186.5

external debt

4™ February 2025

1.22 Treasury investment strategy: Treasury investments arise from receiving cash before it is paid out again. Investments made
for service reasons or for pure financial gain are not generally considered to be part of treasury management.

1.23

The Authority’s policy on treasury investments is to prioritise security and liquidity over yield, that is to focus on minimising risk
rather than maximising returns. Cash that is likely to be spent in the near term is invested securely, for example with the
government, other local authorities or selected high-quality banks, to minimise the risk of loss. Money that will be held for

longer terms is invested more widely, including in bonds, shares and property, to balance the risk of loss against the risk of

receiving returns below inflation. Both near-term and longer-term investments may be held in pooled funds, where an external

cg abed

9 wa)| epuaby



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

4™ February 2025

fund manager makes decisions on which particular investments to buy and the Authority may request its money back at short

notice.

Table 9: Treasury management investments in £millions

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28

actual forecast budget * budget budget
Near-term investments 42 35 20 20 25
Long-term investments 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 42 35 20 20 25

» Further details on treasury investments are in the Treasury Management Strategy part of this appendix.

1.24 Risk management: The effective management and control of risk are prime objectives of the Authority’s treasury management
activities. The treasury management strategy therefore sets out various indicators and limits to constrain the risk of unexpected

losses and details the extent to which financial derivatives may be used to manage treasury risks.

o The treasury management prudential indicators are in the treasury management strategy which are part of these

appendices.

1.25 Governance: Decisions on treasury management investment and borrowing are made daily and are therefore delegated to

the Director of Finance and staff, who must act in line with the treasury management strategy approved by Council. Quarterly

reports on treasury management activity are presented to Cabinet. The Audit, Standards and Governance Committee is
responsible for scrutinising treasury management decisions.

Investments for Service Purposes

8 abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

1.26

1.27

1.28

The Authority makes investments to assist local public services, including making loans to local service providers, local small
businesses to promote economic growth, and the Authority’s subsidiaries that provide services to stakeholders. Total
investments for service purposes are currently valued at £0m.

Risk management: In light of the public service objective, the Authority is willing to take more risk than with treasury
investments, however it still plans for such investments to break even after all costs. A limit of £2.5m is placed on total
investments for service purposes to ensure that plausible losses could be absorbed in budgets or reserves without
unmanageable detriment to local services.

Governance: Decisions on service investments are made by the relevant service manager in consultation with the Director of
Finance and must meet the criteria and limits laid down in the investment strategy. Most loans and shares are capital
expenditure and purchases will therefore also be approved as part of the capital programme. The relevant service director and
the Director of Finance are responsible for ensuring that adequate due diligence is carried out before investment is made.

Further details on service investments are in the Treasury Management Strategy

Liabilities

1.29

1.30

In addition to debt of £104m detailed above, the Authority has set aside £0.47m to cover risks of Insurance Claims and £0.64m
for Business Rates Appeals.

Governance: Decisions on incurring new discretional liabilities are taken by Heads of Service in consultation with the Director
of Finance. The risk of liabilities crystallising and requiring payment is monitored by the corporate finance team and reported
biannually to Cabinet. New liabilities exceeding £0.5m are reported to full council for approval/notification as appropriate.

Gg abed

9 wa)| epuaby



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Revenue Budget Implications

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

4™ February 2025

1.31 In addition to debt of £104m detailed above, the Authority is committed to making future payments to cover its pension fund

deficit. It has also set aside £0.64m for Business Rates Appeals via a reserve.

Table 10: Prudential Indicator: Proportion of financing costs to net revenue stream

revenue stream

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28

actual forecast budget * budget budget
Financing costs (Em) 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5
Proportion of net 9.80% |  9.10% | 11.50% | 12.40% | 12.90%

1.32 Sustainability: Due to the very long-term nature of capital expenditure and financing, the revenue budget implications of
expenditure incurred in the next few years will extend for up to 50 years into the future. The Director of Finance is satisfied
that the proposed capital programme is prudent, affordable and sustainable because of the Medium Term Financial Plan

(MTFP) forecasts which show that the Council is financially sustainable over that period.

Knowledge and Skills

1.33 The Authority employs professionally qualified and experienced staff in senior positions with responsibility for making capital
expenditure, borrowing and investment decisions. For example, the Director of Finance and Head of Service are qualified
accountants with significant experience. The Authority pays for junior staff to study towards relevant professional qualifications
including CIPFA and AAT.

1.34 Where Authority staff do not have the knowledge and skills required, use is made of external advisers and consultants that

are specialists in their field. The Authority currently employs Arlingclose Limited as treasury management advisers and Bruton

9g abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

Knowles as property consultants. This approach is more cost effective than employing such staff directly and ensures that the
Authority has access to knowledge and skills commensurate with its risk appetite.

» Further details on staff training can be found in the HR Employee Development section of the website.

/8 abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

Appendix F - RBC Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2025/26

Introduction

2.1

2.2

2.3

Treasury management is the management of the Authority’s cash flows, borrowing and investments, and the associated risks.
The Authority has invested substantial sums of money and is therefore exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested
funds and the revenue effect of changing interest rates. The successful identification, monitoring and control of financial risk
are therefore central to the Authority’s prudent financial management.

Treasury risk management at the Authority is conducted within the framework of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice 2021 Edition (the CIPFA Code) which requires
the Authority to approve a treasury management strategy before the start of each financial year. This report fulfils the
Authority’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 2003 to have regard to the CIPFA Code.

Investments held for service purposes or for commercial profit are considered in a different report, the Investment Strategy.

External Context

Economic background:

2.4

2.5

2.6

The impact on the UK from the government’s Autumn Budget, slower expected interest rate cuts, a short-term boost to but
modestly weaker economic growth over the medium term, together with the impact from President-elect Trump’s second term
in office and uncertainties around US domestic and foreign policy, will be major influences on the Authority’s treasury
management strategy for 2025/26.

The Bank of England’s (BoE) Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) held Bank Rate at 4.75% at its December 2024 meeting,
having reduced it to that level in November and following a previous 25bp cut from the 5.25% peak at the August MPC
meeting. At the December meeting, six Committee members voted to maintain Bank Rate at 4.75% while three members
preferred to reduce it to 4.50%.

The November quarterly Monetary Policy Report (MPR) expected Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth to pick up to
around 1.75% (four-quarter GDP) in the early period of the BoE’s forecast horizon before falling back. The impact from the
Budget pushes GDP higher in 2025 than was expected in the previous MPR, before becoming weaker. Current GDP growth
was shown to be zero (0.0%) between July and September 2024 and 0.4% between April and June 2024, a further
downward revision from the 0.5% rate previously reported by the Office for National Statistics (ONS).

g abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

ONS figures reported the annual Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflation rate at 2.6% in November 2024, up from 2.3% in the
previous month and in line with expectations. Core CPI also rose, but by more than expected, to 3.6% against a forecast of
3.5% and 3.3% in the previous month. The outlook for CPI inflation in the November MPR showed it rising above the MPC'’s
2% target from 2024 into 2025 and reaching around 2.75% by the middle of calendar 2025. This represents a modest near-
term increase due to the ongoing impacts from higher interest rates, the Autumn Budget, and a projected margin of
economic slack. Over the medium-term, once these pressures ease, inflation is expected to stabilise around the 2% target.
The labour market appears to be easing slowly, but the data still require treating with some caution. The latest figures
reported the unemployment rate rose to 4.3% in the three months to October 2024 and economic inactivity fell to 21.7%. Pay
growth for the same period was reported at 5.2% for both regular earnings (excluding bonuses) and for total earnings.
Looking ahead, the BoE MPR showed the unemployment rate is expected to increase modestly, rising to around 4.5%, the
assumed medium-term equilibrium unemployment rate, by the end of the forecast horizon.

The US Federal Reserve has continued cutting interest rates, bringing down the Fed Funds Rate by 0.25% at its December
2024 monetary policy meeting to a range of 4.25%-4.50%, marking the third consecutive reduction. Further interest rate cuts
are expected, but uncertainties around the potential inflationary impact of incoming President Trump’s policies may muddy
the waters in terms of the pace and magnitude of further rate reductions. Moreover, the US economy continues to expand at
a decent pace, rising at an (upwardly revised) annual rate of 3.1% in the third quarter of 2024, and inflation remains elevated
suggesting that monetary policy may need to remain more restrictive in the coming months than had previously been
anticipated.

Euro zone inflation rose above the European Central Bank (ECB) 2% target in November 2024, hitting 2.2% as was widely
expected and a further increase from 2% in the previous month. Despite the rise, the ECB continued its rate cutting cycle
and reduced its three key policy rates by 0.25% in December. Inflation is expected to rise further in the short term, but then
fall back towards the 2% target during 2025, with the ECB remaining committed to maintaining rates at levels consistent with
bringing inflation to target, but without suggesting a specific path.

Credit outlook:

2.11

2.12

Credit Default Swap (CDS) prices have typically followed a general trend downwards during 2024, reflecting a relatively more
stable financial period compared to the previous year. Improved credit conditions in 2024 have also led to greater convergence
in CDS prices between ringfenced (retail) and non-ringfenced (investment) banking entities again.

Higher interest rates can lead to a deterioration in banks’ asset quality through increased loan defaults and volatility in the
value of capital investments. Fortunately, the rapid interest rate hikes during this monetary tightening cycle, while putting some

68 abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

2.13

2.14

strain on households and corporate borrowers, has not caused a rise in defaults, and banks have fared better than expected
to date, buoyed by strong capital positions. Low unemployment and robust wage growth have also limited the number of
problem loans, all of which are positive in terms of creditworthiness.

Moreover, while a potential easing of US financial regulations under a Donald Trump Presidency may aid their banks’
competitiveness compared to institutions in the UK and other regions, it is unlikely there will be any material impact on the
underlying creditworthiness of the institutions on the counterparty list maintained by Arlingclose, the authority’s treasury
adviser.

Overall, the institutions on our adviser Arlingclose’s counterparty list remain well-capitalised and their counterparty advice on
both recommended institutions and maximum duration remain under constant review and will continue to reflect economic
conditions and the credit outlook.

Interest rate forecast (December 2024):

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

The Authority’s treasury management adviser Arlingclose expects the Bank of England’s MPC will continue reducing Bank
Rate through 2025, taking it to around 3.75% by the end of the 2025/26 financial year. The effect from the Autumn Budget on
economic growth and inflation has reduced previous expectations in terms of the pace of rate cuts as well as pushing up the
rate at the end of the loosening cycle.

Arlingclose expects long-term gilt yields to remain broadly at current levels on average (amid continued volatility), but to end
the forecast period modestly lower compared to now. Yields will continue remain relatively higher than in the past, due to
guantitative tightening and significant bond supply. As ever, there will be short-term volatility due to economic and
(geo)political uncertainty and events.

A more detailed economic and interest rate forecast provided by Arlingclose is in Appendix A.

For the purpose of setting the budget, it has been assumed that new treasury investments will be made at an average
ratelyield of 4.6%%, and that new long-term loans will be borrowed at an average rate of 5.8%.

Local Context

2.19

On 7™ January 2025, the Authority had no borrowing and £13m of treasury investments. This is set out in further detail at
Appendix B. Forecast changes in these sums are shown in the balance sheet analysis in table 1 below.

06 abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Table 1:

4™ February 2025

Balance sheet summary and forecast

31.3.24 31.3.25 31.3.26 31.3.27 31.3.28

Actual Estimate Forecast Forecast | Forecast

£m £m £m £m £m

Capital financing requirement 6.7 10.9 12.5 10.5 10.5
Less: External borrowing ** 0 12.5 24.4 36.4 47.4
Internal borrowing 6.7 -1.6 -11.9 -25.9 -36.9
Less: Usable Reserves -17.0 -17.0 -15 -14.0 -12.0
Less: Working Capital -4.9 -4.9 -4.9 -4.9 -4.9
Treasury investments 15.2 23.5 31.8 44.8 53.8

2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

2.24

** shows only loans to which the Authority is committed and excludes optional refinancing

The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), while balance
sheet resources are the underlying sums available for investment. The Authority’s current strategy is to maintain borrowing
and investments below their underlying levels, sometimes known as internal borrowing.

The Authority has an increasing CFR due to the capital programme, but minimal investments but will be funding the programme
through internal borrowing.

CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities recommends that the Authority’s total debt should be lower
than its highest forecast CFR over the next three years. Table 1 shows that the Authority expects to comply with this
recommendation during 2025/26.

Liability benchmark: To compare the Council’'s actual borrowing against an alternative strategy, a liability benchmark has
been calculated showing the lowest risk level of borrowing. This assumes the same forecasts as table 1 above, but that cash
and investment balances are kept to a minimum level of £0.2m at each year-end to maintain sufficient liquidity but minimise
credit risk.

The liability benchmark is an important tool to help establish whether the Council is likely to be a long-term borrower or long-
term investor in the future, and so shape its strategic focus and decision making. The liability benchmark itself represents an
estimate of the cumulative amount of external borrowing the Council must hold to fund its current capital and revenue plans
while keeping treasury investments at the minimum level required to manage day-to-day cash flow.

T6 abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

Table 2: Prudential Indicator: Liability benchmark

31.3.24 31.3.25 31.3.26 31.3.27 31.3.28
Actual Estimate Forecast Forecast | Forecast
£m £m £m £m £m

Loans CFR 6.7 10.9 12.5 10.5 10.5
Less: Usable Reserves -17.0 -17.0 -15 -14.0 -12.0
Less: Working Capital -4.9 -4.9 -4.9 -4.9 -4.9
Net loans requirement -15.2 -11.0 -7.4 -8.4 -6.4
Plus: Liquidity allowance 2.0 2.0 2 2.0 2.0
Liability benchmark -13.2 -9.0 -5.4 -6.4 -4.4

2.25 Following on from the medium-term forecasts in table 2 above, the long-term liability benchmark assumes capital expenditure
funded by borrowing of £2m average a year, minimum revenue provision on new capital expenditure based on a 25 year
asset life and income, expenditure and reserves all increasing by inflation of 2.5% a year.

Borrowing Strateqy

2.26 The Authority currently holds £104 million of loans, as part of its strategy for funding previous years’ capital programmes. The
balance sheet forecast in table 1 shows that the Authority expects to borrow up to £7.4m in 2025/26. The Authority may
however borrow to pre-fund future years’ requirements, providing this does not exceed the authorised limit for borrowing of
£60 million.

2.27 Objectives: The Authority’s chief objective when borrowing money is to strike an appropriately low risk balance between
securing low interest costs and achieving certainty of those costs over the period for which funds are required. The flexibility
to renegotiate loans should the Authority’s long-term plans change is a secondary objective.

2.28 Strategy: Given the significant cuts to public expenditure and in particular to local government funding, the Authority’s
borrowing strategy continues to address the key issue of affordability without compromising the longer-term stability of the
debt portfolio. Short-term interest rates are currently higher than in the recent past but are expected to fall in the coming year

26 obed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

2.29

2.30

2.31

2.32

and it is therefore likely to be more cost effective over the medium-term to either use internal resources, or to borrow short-
term loans instead. The risks of this approach will be managed by keeping the Authority’s interest rate exposure within the
limit set in the treasury management prudential indicators, see below.

By doing so, the Authority is able to reduce net borrowing costs (despite foregone investment income) and reduce overall
treasury risk. The benefits of [internal / short-term] borrowing will be monitored regularly against the potential for incurring
additional costs by deferring borrowing into future years when long-term borrowing rates are forecast to rise modestly.
Arlingclose will assist the Authority with this ‘cost of carry’ and breakeven analysis. Its output may determine whether the
Authority borrows additional sums at long-term fixed rates in 2025/26 with a view to keeping future interest costs low, even if
this causes additional cost in the short-term.

The Authority has previously raised the majority of its long-term borrowing from the PWLB but will consider long-term loans
from other sources including banks, pensions and local authorities, and will investigate the possibility of issuing bonds and
similar instruments, in order to lower interest costs and reduce over-reliance on one source of funding in line with the CIPFA
Code. PWLB loans are no longer available to local authorities planning to buy investment assets primarily for yield; the
Authority intends to avoid this activity in order to retain its access to PWLB loans.

In addition, the Authority may borrow short-term loans to cover unplanned cash flow shortages.

Sources of borrowing: The approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing are:
« HM Treasury’s PWLB lending facility (formerly the Public Works Loan Board)

« National Wealth Fund Ltd (formerly known as UK Infrastructure Bank Ltd)

e any institution approved for investments (see below)

« any other bank or building society authorised to operate in the UK

« any other UK public sector body

« UK public and private sector pension funds (except Local Government Pension Scheme)

« capital market bond investors

« UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc and other special purpose companies created to enable local authority bond issues

cp obed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

2.33

2.34

2.35

2.36

Other sources of debt finance: In addition, capital finance may be raised by the following methods that are not borrowing,
but may be classed as other debt liabilities:

» leasing

« hire purchase

» Private Finance Initiative

» sale and leaseback

Municipal Bonds Agency: UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc was established in 2014 by the Local Government Association
as an alternative to the PWLB. It issues bonds on the capital markets and lends the proceeds to local authorities. This is a
more complicated source of finance than the PWLB for two reasons: borrowing authorities will be required to provide bond
investors with a guarantee to refund their investment in the event that the agency is unable to for any reason; and there will
be a lead time of several months between committing to borrow and knowing the interest rate payable. Any decision to borrow
from the Agency will therefore be the subject of a separate report to full Council.

Short-term and variable rate loans: These loans leave the Authority exposed to the risk of short-term interest rate rises and
are therefore subject to the interest rate exposure limits in the treasury management indicators below. Financial derivatives
may be used to manage this interest rate risk (see section below).

Debt rescheduling: The PWLB allows authorities to repay loans before maturity and either pay a premium or receive a
discount according to a set formula based on current interest rates. Other lenders may also be prepared to negotiate premature
redemption terms. The Authority may take advantage of this and replace some loans with new loans, or repay loans without
replacement, where this is expected to lead to an overall cost saving or a reduction in risk. The recent rise in interest rates
means that more favourable debt rescheduling opportunities should arise than in previous years.

Treasury Investment Strateqy

2.37

The Authority holds significant invested funds, representing income received in advance of expenditure plus balances and
reserves held. In the past 12 months, the Authority’s treasury investment balance has ranged between £1 and £18.5 million,
and similar levels are expected to be maintained in the forthcoming year.

v6 abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

2.38

2.39

2.40

241

2.42

2.43

Objectives: The CIPFA Code requires the Authority to invest its treasury funds prudently, and to have regard to the security
and liquidity of its investments before seeking the highest rate of return, or yield. The Authority’s objective when investing
money is to strike an appropriate balance between risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and
the risk of receiving unsuitably low investment income. Where balances are expected to be invested for more than one year,
the Authority will aim to achieve a total return that is equal or higher than the prevailing rate of inflation, in order to maintain
the spending power of the sum invested. The Authority aims to be a responsible investor and will consider environmental,
social and governance (ESG) issues when investing.

Strategy: As demonstrated by the liability benchmark above, the Authority expects to be a long-term investor and treasury
investments will therefore include both short-term low risk instruments to manage day-to-day cash flows and longer-term
instruments where limited additional risk is accepted in return for higher investment income to support local public services.
The CIPFA Code does not permit local authorities to both borrow and invest long-term for cash flow management. But the
Authority may make long-term investments for treasury risk management purposes, including to manage interest rate risk by
investing sums borrowed in advance for the capital programme for up to three years; to manage inflation risk by investing
usable reserves in instruments whose value rises with inflation; and to manage price risk by adding diversification to the
strategic pooled fund portfolio.

ESG policy: Environmental, social and governance (ESG) considerations are increasingly a factor in global investors’ decision
making, but the framework for evaluating investment opportunities is still developing and therefore the Authority’s ESG policy
does not currently include ESG scoring or other real-time ESG criteria at an individual investment level. When investing in
banks and funds, the Authority will prioritise banks that are signatories to the UN Principles for Responsible Banking and funds
operated by managers that are signatories to the UN Principles for Responsible Investment, the Net Zero Asset Managers
Alliance and/or the UK Stewardship Code.

Business models: Under the IFRS 9 standard, the accounting for certain investments depends on the Authority’s “business
model” for managing them. The Authority aims to achieve value from its treasury investments by a business model of collecting
the contractual cash flows and therefore, where other criteria are also met, these investments will continue to be accounted
for at amortised cost.

Approved counterparties: The Authority may invest its surplus funds with any of the counterparty types in table 3 below,
subject to the limits shown.

G6 abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

Table 3: Treasury investment counterparties and limits

Credit Banks Banks Registered
. Government Corporates .
rating unsecured secured Providers
UK n/a n/a £ Unlimited n/a n/a
Govt 50 years
AAA £3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
5 years 20 years 50 years 20 years 20 years
AA+ £3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
5 years 10 years 25 years 10 years 10 years
AA £3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
4 years 5 years 15 years 5 years 10 years
AA- £3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
3 years 4 years 10 years 4 years 10 years
£3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
A+
2 years 3 years 5 years 3 years 5 years
A £3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
13 months 2 years 5 years 2 years 5 years
£3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
A- 13
6 months 5 years 13 months 5 years
months
None £1.5m n/a £3m £1m £500k
6 months 25 years 5 years 5 years
Pooled funds and real
estate investment £2.5m per fund or trust
trusts

2.44 Minimum credit rating: Treasury investments in the sectors marked with an asterisk will only be made with entities whose
lowest published long-term credit rating is no lower than [A-]. Where available, the credit rating relevant to the specific
investment or class of investment is used, otherwise the counterparty credit rating is used. However, investment decisions are
never made solely based on credit ratings, and all other relevant factors including external advice will be taken into account.

96 obed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

2.45

2.46

2.47

2.48

2.49

2.50

251

For entities without published credit ratings, investments may be made either (a) where external advice indicates the entity to
be of similar credit quality; or (b) to a maximum of £500,000 per counterparty as part of a diversified pool e.g. via a peer-to-
peer platform.

Government: Loans to, and bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by, national governments, regional and local authorities
and multilateral development banks. These investments are not subject to bail-in, and there is generally a lower risk of
insolvency, although they are not zero risk. Investments with the UK Government are deemed to be zero credit risk due to its
ability to create additional currency and therefore may be made in unlimited amounts for up to 50 years.

Secured investments: Investments secured on the borrower’s assets, which limits the potential losses in the event of
insolvency. The amount and quality of the security will be a key factor in the investment decision. Covered bonds and reverse
repurchase agreements with banks and building societies are exempt from bail-in. Where there is no investment specific credit
rating, but the collateral upon which the investment is secured has a credit rating, the higher of the collateral credit rating and
the counterparty credit rating will be used. The combined secured and unsecured investments with any one counterparty will
not exceed the cash limit for secured investments.

Banks and building societies (unsecured): Accounts, deposits, certificates of deposit and senior unsecured bonds with
banks and building societies, other than multilateral development banks. These investments are subject to the risk of credit
loss via a bail-in should the regulator determine that the bank is failing or likely to fail. See below for arrangements relating to
operational bank accounts.

Registered providers (unsecured): Loans to, and bonds issued or guaranteed by, registered providers of social housing or
registered social landlords, formerly known as housing associations. These bodies are regulated by the Regulator of Social
Housing (in England), the Scottish Housing Regulator, the Welsh Government and the Department for Communities (in
Northern Ireland). As providers of public services, they retain the likelihood of receiving government support if needed.
Money market funds: Pooled funds that offer same-day or short notice liquidity and very low or no price volatility by investing
in short-term money markets. They have the advantage over bank accounts of providing wide diversification of investment
risks, coupled with the services of a professional fund manager in return for a small fee. Although no sector limit applies to
money market funds, the Authority will take care to diversify its liquid investments over a variety of providers to ensure access
to cash at all times.

Strategic pooled funds: Bond, equity and property funds, including exchange traded funds, that offer enhanced returns over
the longer term but are more volatile in the short term. These allow the Authority to diversify into asset classes other than
cash without the need to own and manage the underlying investments. Because these funds have no defined maturity date

/6 abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

2.52

2.53

2.54

2.55

but can be either withdrawn after a notice period or sold on an exchange, their performance and continued suitability in meeting
the Authority’s investment objectives will be monitored regularly.

Real estate investment trusts: Shares in companies that invest mainly in real estate and pay the majority of their rental
income to investors in a similar manner to pooled property funds. As with property funds, REITs offer enhanced returns over
the longer term but are more volatile especially as the share price reflects changing demand for the shares as well as
changes in the value of the underlying properties.

Other investments: This category covers treasury investments not listed above, for example unsecured corporate bonds
and unsecured loans to companies and universities. Non-bank companies cannot be bailed-in but can become insolvent
placing the Authority’s investment at risk.

Operational bank accounts: The Authority may incur operational exposures, for example though current accounts, collection
accounts and merchant acquiring services, to any UK bank with credit ratings no lower than BBB- and with assets greater than
£25 billion. These are not classed as investments but are still subject to the risk of a bank bail-in, and balances will therefore
be kept below £2.0m per bank. The Bank of England has stated that in the event of failure, banks with assets greater than £25
billion are more likely to be bailed-in than made insolvent, increasing the chance of the Authority maintaining operational
continuity.

Risk assessment and credit ratings: Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by the Authority’s treasury advisers, who will
notify changes in ratings as they occur. The credit rating agencies in current use are listed in the Treasury Management
Practices document. Where an entity has its credit rating downgraded so that it fails to meet the approved investment criteria
then:

* no new investments will be made,

e any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be, and
« full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing investments with the affected counterparty.

Where a credit rating agency announces that a credit rating is on review for possible downgrade (also known as “negative
watch”) so that it may fall below the approved rating criteria, then only investments that can be withdrawn on the next working
day will be made with that organisation until the outcome of the review is announced. This policy will not apply to negative
outlooks, which indicate a long-term direction of travel rather than an imminent change of rating.

g6 obed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

2.56

2.57

2.58

2.59

2.60

Other information on the security of investments: The Authority understands that credit ratings are good, but not perfect,
predictors of investment default. Full regard will therefore be given to other available information on the credit quality of the
organisations in which it invests, including credit default swap prices, financial statements, information on potential government
support, reports in the quality financial press and analysis and advice from the Authority’s treasury management adviser. No
investments will be made with an organisation if there are substantive doubts about its credit quality, even though it may
otherwise meet the above criteria.

When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of all organisations, as happened in 2008, 2020 and
2022, this is not generally reflected in credit ratings, but can be seen in other market measures. In these circumstances, the
Authority will restrict its investments to those organisations of higher credit quality and reduce the maximum duration of its
investments to maintain the required level of security. The extent of these restrictions will be in line with prevailing financial
market conditions. If these restrictions mean that insufficient commercial organisations of high credit quality are available to
invest the Authority’s cash balances, then the surplus will be deposited with the UK Government, or with other local authorities.
This will cause investment returns to fall but will protect the principal sum invested.

Investment limits: The Authority’s revenue reserves available to cover investment losses are forecast to be £17 million on
31st March 2025 and £15 million on 31t March 2026. In order that no more than 42% of available reserves will be put at risk
in the case of a single default, the maximum that will be lent to any one organisation (other than the UK Government) will be
£5 million. A group of entities under the same ownership will be treated as a single organisation for limit purposes.

Credit risk exposures arising from non-treasury investments, financial derivatives and balances greater than £2m in operational
bank accounts count against the relevant investment limits.

Limits are also placed on fund managers, investments in brokers’ nominee accounts and foreign countries as below.
Investments in pooled funds and multilateral development banks do not count against the limit for any single foreign country,
since the risk is diversified over many countries.

66 obed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

2.61 Liquidity management: The Authority uses detailed spreadsheets to determine the maximum period for which funds may

2.62

Treasury Management Prudential Indicators

Cash limit
Any single organisation, except the UK Central £5m each
Government
UK Central Government unlimited

Any group of organisations under the same
ownership

£5m per group

Any group of pooled funds under the same
management

£5m per manager

Negotiable instruments held in a broker’s
nominee account

£5m per broker

Foreign countries

£5m per country

Registered providers and registered social

£2.5m in total
landlords
Unsecured investments with building societies £2.5m in total
Loans to unrated corporates £1m in total
Money market funds £20m in total
Real estate investment trusts £2.5m in total

4™ February 2025

prudently be committed. The forecast is compiled on a prudent basis to minimise the risk of the Authority being forced to
borrow on unfavourable terms to meet its financial commitments. Limits on long-term investments are set by reference to the
Authority’s medium-term financial plan and cash flow forecast.
The Authority will spread its liquid cash over at least four providers (e.g. bank accounts and money market funds) to ensure

that access to cash is maintained in the event of operational difficulties at any one provider.

2.63 The Authority measures and manages its exposures to treasury management risks using the following indicators.

2.64 Security: The Authority has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit risk by monitoring the value-weighted
average of its investment portfolio. This is calculated by applying a score to each investment (AAA=1, AA+=2, etc.) and taking
the arithmetic average, weighted by the size of each investment. Unrated investments are assigned a score based on their

perceived risk.

00T 9abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4t February 2025
Credit risk indicator Target
Portfolio average credit [rating / score] A

2.65 Liquidity: The Authority has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to liquidity risk by monitoring the amount of cash

2.66

2.67

2.68

available to meet unexpected payments within a rolling three month period, without additional borrowing.

Liquidity risk indicator Target

Total cash available within 3 months £2.5m

Interest rate exposures: This indicator is set to control the Authority’s exposure to interest rate risk. The upper limits on the
one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise or fall in interest rates will be:

Interest rate risk indicator Limit
Upper limit on one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise in interest rates £500,000
Upper limit on one-year revenue impact of a 1% fall in interest rates £500,000

The impact of a change in interest rates is calculated on the assumption that maturing loans and investments will be replaced

at new market rates.
Maturity structure of borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Authority’s exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and

lower limits on the maturity structure of borrowing will be:

Refinancing rate risk indicator Upper limit Lower limit
Under 12 months 50% 0%
12 months and within 24 months 50% 0%
24 months and within 5 years 50% 0%
5 years and within 10 years 50% 0%
10 years and above 100% 0%

TOT abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

2.69

2.70

2.71

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender
can demand repayment

Long-term treasury management investments: The purpose of this indicator is to control the Authority’s exposure to the
risk of incurring losses by seeking early repayment of its investments. The prudential limits on the long-term treasury
management investments will be:

Price risk indicator 202526 | 2026/27 | 2027727 | NOTXed
Limit on principal invested beyond year end £1.0m £0.5m £0m £0m

Long-term investments with no fixed maturity date include strategic pooled funds and real estate investment trusts but exclude
money market funds and bank accounts with no fixed maturity date as these are considered short-term.

Related Matters

2.72
2.73

2.74

2.75

The CIPFA Code requires the Authority to include the following in its treasury management strategy.

Financial derivatives: Local authorities have previously made use of financial derivatives embedded into loans and
investments both to reduce interest rate risk (e.g. interest rate collars and forward deals) and to reduce costs or increase
income at the expense of greater risk (e.g. LOBO loans and callable deposits). The general power of competence in section
1 of the Localism Act 2011 removes much of the uncertainty over local authorities’ use of standalone financial derivatives (i.e.
those that are not embedded into a loan or investment).

The Authority will only use standalone financial derivatives (such as swaps, forwards, futures and options) where they can be
clearly demonstrated to reduce the overall level of the financial risks that the Authority is exposed to. Additional risks presented,
such as credit exposure to derivative counterparties, will be taken into account when determining the overall level of risk.
Embedded derivatives, including those present in pooled funds and forward starting transactions, will not be subject to this
policy, although the risks they present will be managed in line with the overall treasury risk management strategy.

Financial derivative transactions may be arranged with any organisation that meets the approved investment criteria, assessed
using the appropriate credit rating for derivative exposures. An allowance for credit risk calculated using the methodology in

20T abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

the Treasury Management Practices document will count against the counterparty credit limit and the relevant foreign country
limit.

2.76 In line with the CIPFA Code, the Authority will seek external advice and will consider that advice before entering into financial
derivatives to ensure that it fully understands the implications.

2.77 Markets in Financial Instruments Directive: The Authority has retained retail client status with its providers of financial
services, including advisers, banks, brokers and fund managers, allowing it access to a smaller range of services but with the
greater regulatory protections afforded to individuals and small companies. Given the size and range of the Authority’s treasury
management activities, the Director of Finance believes this to be the most appropriate status.

Financial Implications

2.78 The budget for investment income in 2025/26 is £203.6k based on an average investment portfolio of £4.5 million at an interest
rate of 4.5%. If actual levels of investments and borrowing, or actual interest rates, differ from those forecast, performance
against budget will be correspondingly different.

2.79 Where investment income exceeds budget, e.g. from higher risk investments including pooled funds, or debt interest paid falls
below budget, e.g. from cheap short-term borrowing, then 50% of the revenue savings will be transferred to a treasury
management reserve to cover the risk of capital losses or higher interest rates payable in future years.

Other Options Considered

2.80 The CIPFA Code does not prescribe any particular treasury management strategy for local authorities to adopt. The Director
of Finance, having consulted the Cabinet Member for Finance and Enabling, believes that the above strategy represents an
appropriate balance between risk management and cost effectiveness. Some alternative strategies, with their financial and
risk management implications, are listed below.

€T abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Alternative

Impact on income and
expenditure

Impact on risk management

Invest in a narrower range of
counterparties and/or for shorter
times

Interest income will be lower

Lower chance of losses from
credit related defaults, but any
such losses may be greater

Invest in a wider range of
counterparties and/or for longer
times

Interest income will be higher

Increased risk of losses from
credit related defaults, but any
such losses may be smaller

Borrow additional sums at long-
term fixed interest rates

Debt interest costs will rise; this
is unlikely to be offset by higher
investment income

Higher investment balance
leading to a higher impact in the
event of a default; however
long-term interest costs may be
more certain

Borrow short-term or variable
loans instead of long-term fixed
rates

Debt interest costs will initially
be lower

Increases in debt interest costs
will be broadly offset by rising
investment income in the
medium term, but long-term
costs may be less certain

Reduce level of borrowing

Saving on debt interest is likely
to exceed lost investment
income

Reduced investment balance
leading to a lower impact in the
event of a default; however
long-term interest costs may be
less certain

4™ February 2025

0T abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

Appendix A — Arlingclose Economic & Interest Rate Forecast — December 2024

Underlying assumptions:

As expected, the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) held Bank Rate at 4.75% in December, although, with a 6-3 voting split
and obvious concerns about economic growth, presented a much more dovish stance than had been expected given recent
inflationary data.

The Budget measures remain a concern for policymakers, for both growth and inflation. Additional government spending will
boost demand in a constrained supply environment, while pushing up direct costs for employers. The short to medium-term
inflationary effects will promote caution amongst policymakers.

UK GDP recovered well in H1 2024 from technical recession, but underlying growth has petered out as the year has
progressed. While government spending should boost GDP growth in 2025, private sector activity appears to be waning, partly
due to Budget measures.

Private sector wage growth and services inflation remain elevated; wage growth picked up sharply in October. The increase
in employers’ NICs, minimum and public sector wage levels could have wide ranging impacts on private sector employment
demand and costs, but the near-term impact will likely be inflationary as these additional costs get passed to consumers.

CPl inflation rates have risen due to higher energy prices and less favourable base effects. The current CPI rate of 2.6% could
rise further in Q1 2025. The Bank of England (BoE) estimates the CPI rate at 2.7% by year end 2025 and to remain over target
in 2026.

The MPC re-emphasised that monetary policy will be eased gradually. Despite recent inflation-related data moving upwards
or surprising to the upside, the minutes suggested a significant minority of policymakers are at least as worried about the
flatlining UK economy.

US government bond yields have risen following strong US data and uncertainty about the effects of Donald Trump’s policies
on the US economy, particularly in terms of inflation and monetary policy. The Federal Reserve pared back its expectations
for rate cuts in light of these issues. Higher US yields are also pushing up UK gilt yields, a relationship that will be maintained
unless monetary policy in the UK and US diverges.

GOT abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

Forecast:

* Inline with our forecast, Bank Rate was held at 4.75% in December.

« The MPC will reduce Bank Rate in a gradual manner. We see a rate cut in February 2025, followed by a cut alongside every
Monetary Policy Report publication, to a low of 3.75%.

+ Long-term gilt yields have risen to reflect both UK and US economic, monetary and fiscal policy expectations, and increases
in bond supply. Volatility will remain elevated as the market digests incoming data for clues around the impact of policy
changes.

* This uncertainty may also necessitate more frequent changes to our forecast than has been the case recently.

* The risks around the forecasts lie to the upside over the next 12 months but are broadly balanced in the medium term.

90T 9bed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Current Mar-25 Jur-25  Sep-25  Dec-25  Mar-26  Jun-26 Sep-26 Dec-26 Mar-27  Jun-27  Sep-27  Dec-27
Official Bank Rate
Upside risk 0.00 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75
Central Case 4.75| 4.50 4.25 4.00 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75
Downside risk 0.00[ -0.25 -0.25 -0.50 -0.50 -0.75) -0.75] -0.75 -0.75) -0.75) -0.¥5] -0.75[ -0.75
3-month money market rate
Upside risk 0.00 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75
Central Case 4.90| 4.60 4.35 4.10 3.90 3.85 3.85 3.85 3.85 3.85 3.85 3.85 3.85
Downside risk 0.00[ -0.25 -0.25 -0.50 -0.50 -0.75) -0.75] -0.75 -0.75) -0.75) -0.75] -0.75[ -0.75
Byr gilt vield
Upside risk 0.00 0.70 0.80 0.%0 0.50 0.530 0.5%0 0.530 0.30 0.90 0.30 0.30 0.50
Central Case 4.34)| 4.30 4.20 4.10 4.00 3.90 3.90 3.95 4.00)0 4.05[ 4.05 4.05| 4.05
Downside risk 0.00f -0.50 -0.60 -0.65 -0.65 -0.70f -0.70] -0.75 -0.75) -0.80) -0.80{ -0.80f -0.80
10yr gilt vield
Upside risk 0.00 0.70 0.80 0.%0 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.90 0.30 0.30 0.30
Central Case 4.56| 4.55 4.45 4.30 4.20 4.20) 4.20( 4.20 4.25) 4.35( 4,35 4.25] 4.35
Downside risk 0.00] -0.50 -0.60 -0.65 -0.65 -0.70f -0.70] -0.75 -0.75| -0.B0) -0.80{ -0.80f -0.BO
20yr gilt yield
Upside risk 0.00 0.70 0.80 0.%0 0.90 0.0 0.90 0.90 0.30 0.90 0.%0 0.%0 0.90
Central Case 5.05 5.00 4.90 4.80 4.70 4.65] 4.65( 4.65 4.65) 4.65( 4.65 4.65| 4.65
Downside risk 0.00[ -0.50 -0.60 -0.65 -0.65 -0.70f -0.70] -0.75 -0.75] -0.80) -0.80{ -0.80{ -0.80
50yr gilt yield
Upside risk 0.00 0.70 0.80 0.%0 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.30 0.90 0.30 0.30 0.90
Central Case 4.52| 4.70 4.60 4.50 4.40 4.35| 4.35[ 4.35 4.35| 4.35[ 4.35 4.35| 4.35
Downside risk 0.00[ -0.50 -0.60 -0.65 -0.65 -0.70f -0.70] -0.75 -0.75) -0.80) -0.80{ -0.80f -0.80

PWLB Standard Rate = Gilt yield + 1.00%
PWLB Certainty Rate = Gilt yield + 0.80%
PWLB HRA Rate = Gilt yield + 0.40%

National Wealth Fund (NWF) Rate = Gilt yield + 0.40%

4™ February 2025

/0T abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Appendix B — Existing Investment & Debt Portfolio Position

20/01/2025 20/01/2025
Actual
Portfolio Average Rate
£m %

External borrowing: 103.9 3.59
Total external borrowing 103.9 3.59
Treasury investments:
Banks, MMF & building societies (unsecured) 6.5 4.9
Government (incl. local authorities) 10.0 4.7
Total treasury investments 16.5 4.8
Net Debt 87.4

4™ February 2025

80T abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

Appendix G — RBC Annual Minimum Revenue Provision Statement 2025/26

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Where the Authority finances capital expenditure by debt, it must put aside resources to repay that debt in later years. The
amount charged to the revenue budget for the repayment of debt is known as Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), although
there has been no statutory minimum since 2008. The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Authority to have regard to
the former Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government’s Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision (the MHCLG
Guidance) most recently issued in April 2024.

The broad aim of the MHCLG Guidance is to ensure that capital expenditure is financed over a period that is reasonably

commensurate with that over which the capital expenditure provides benefits.

The MHCLG Guidance requires the Authority to approve an Annual MRP Statement each year and provides a number of

options for calculating a prudent amount of MRP, but does not preclude the use of other appropriate methods. The following

statement incorporates options recommended in the Guidance as well as locally determined prudent methods.

MRP is calculated by reference to the capital financing requirement (CFR) which is the total amount of past capital expenditure

that has yet to be permanently financed, noting that debt must be repaid and therefore can only be a temporary form of funding.

The CFR is calculated from the Authority’s balance sheet in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and

Accountancy’s Prudential Code for Capital Expenditure in Local Authorities, 2021 edition.

e For unsupported capital expenditure incurred after 315t March 2008, MRP will be determined by charging the expenditure
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset as the principal repayment on an annuity with an annual interest rate of
4%, starting in the year after the asset becomes operational. MRP on purchases of freehold land will be charged over 50
years. MRP on expenditure not related to fixed assets but which has been capitalised by regulation or direction will be
charged over 20 years.

e For assets acquired by leases, MRP will be determined as being equal to the element of the rent or charge that goes to
write down the balance sheet liability.

e Where former operating leases have been brought onto the balance sheet due to the adoption of the IFRS 16 Leases
accounting standard, and the asset values have been adjusted for accruals, prepayments, premiums and/or incentives,
then the annual MRP charges will be adjusted so that the total charge to revenue remains unaffected by the new standard.

60T abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

e For capital expenditure on loans to third parties that are repaid in annual or more frequent instalments of principal, the
Council will make nil MRP, but will instead apply the capital receipts arising from principal repayments to reduce the capital
financing requirement instead. In years where there is no principal repayment, MRP will be charged in accordance with
the MRP policy for the assets funded by the loan, including where appropriate, delaying MRP until the year after the assets
become operational. While this is not one of the options in the MHCLG Guidance, it is thought to be a prudent approach
since it ensures that the capital expenditure incurred on the loan is fully funded over the life of the assets.

e There is no requirement to charge MRP where the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) is nil or negative at the end of
the preceding financial year.

e Where the council makes a capital contribution or loan to another entity or where responsibility for a council asset with
borrowing attached is transferred to a third party, then no MRP will be set aside if:

o the payments are appropriately covered by assets
o there are detailed plans demonstrating that all the expenditure will be recovered in an appropriately short time frame

e To ensure that this remains a prudent approach the Council will review the expenditure and income regularly to determine
if the income or asset values have decreased to the point that MRP needs to be provided for. Should evidence emerge
which suggests the expenditure will no longer be recovered, MRP will be provided for.

e Where the council uses internal borrowing and receipts of rental income are greater than the MRP calculated then as there
are sufficient revenues to repay the capital cost, no MRP will be set aside.

3.5 Capital loans
e For capital expenditure on loans to third parties which were made primarily for financial return rather than direct service

purposes, MRP will be charged in accordance with the policy for the assets funded by the loan, including where
appropriate, delaying MRP until the year after the assets become operational. This MRP charge will be reduced by the
value any repayments of loan principal received during in the year, with the capital receipts so arising applied to finance
the expenditure instead.

OTT abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

e For capital expenditure on loans to third parties which were made primarily for service purposes, the Authority will make
nil MRP except as detailed below for expected credit losses. Instead, the Authority will apply the capital receipts arising
from the repayments of the loan principal to finance the expenditure in the year they are received.

e For capital loans made on or after 7" May 2024 where an expected credit loss is recognised during the year, the MRP
charge in respect of the loan will be no lower than the loss recognised. Where expected credit losses are reversed, for
example on the eventual repayment of the loan, this will be treated as an overpayment.

e For capital loans made before 71" May 2024 and for loans where expected credit losses are not applicable, where a shortfall
in capital receipts is anticipated, MRP will be charged to cover that shortfall over the remaining life of the assets funded by
the loan.

3.6  Capital expenditure incurred during 2024/25 will not be subject to a MRP charge until 2025/26 or later.
3.7 Based on the Authority’s latest estimate of its capital financing requirement (CFR) on 31st March 2025, the budget for MRP
has been set as follows:

TTT abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

3.8

31.03.2025 | 2025/26
Estimated | Estimated
CFR MRP
£m £m
Capital expenditure before 01.04.2008
Supported capital expenditure after 31.03.2008
Unsupported capital expenditure after 31.03.2008 0 0.926
Leases and Private Finance Initiative
Transferred debt
Loans to other bodies repaid in instalments
Voluntary overpayment (or use of prior year overpayments)
Total General Fund 0 0.926
Assets in the Housing Revenue Account 24.1
HRA subsidy reform payment 98.9
Total Housing Revenue Account 123.0
Total 123.0 0.926

Capital receipts

Proceeds from the sale of capital assets are classed as capital receipts, and are typically used to finance new capital
expenditure. Where the Authority decides instead to use capital receipts to repay debt and hence reduce the CFR, the

calculation of MRP will be adjusted as follows:

e Capital receipts arising on the repayment of principal on capital loans to third parties will be used to lower the MRP charge

in respect of the same loans in the year of receipt, if any.

4™ February 2025

ZTT 9bed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

e Capital receipts arising on the repayment of principal on finance lease receivables will be used to lower the MRP charge
in respect of the acquisition of the asset subject to the lease in the year of receipt, if any.

e Capital receipts arising from other assets which form an identified part of the Authority’s MRP calculations will be used to
reduce the MRP charge in respect of the same assets over their remaining useful lives, starting in the year after the receipt
is applied.

Any other capital receipts applied to repay debt will be used to reduce MRP in 10 equal instalments starting in the year after
receipt is applied.

cTT abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

Appendix H - RBC Investment Strategy Report 2025/26

Introduction
4.1  The Authority invests its money for three broad purposes:

e because it has surplus cash as a result of its day-to-day activities, for example when income is received in advance of
expenditure (known as treasury management investments),

e to support local public services by lending to or buying shares in other organisations (service investments), and

e to earn investment income (known as commercial investments where this is the main purpose).

4.2  This investment strategy meets the requirements of statutory guidance issued by the government in January 2018 and focuses
on the second and third of these categories.

4.3 The statutory guidance defines investments as “all of the financial assets of a local authority as well as other non-financial
assets that the organisation holds primarily or partially to generate a profit; for example, investment property portfolios.” The
Authority interprets this to exclude (a) trade receivables which meet the accounting definition of financial assets but are not
investments in the everyday sense of the word and (b) property held partially to generate a profit but primarily for the provision
of local public services. This aligns the Authority’s definition of an investment with that in the 2021 edition of the CIPFA
Prudential Code, a more recent piece of statutory guidance.

Treasury Management Investments

4.4  The Authority typically receives its income in cash (e.g. from taxes and grants) before it pays for its expenditure in cash (e.g.
through payroll and invoices). It also holds reserves for future expenditure and collects local taxes on behalf of other local
authorities and central government. These activities, plus the timing of borrowing decisions, lead to a cash surplus which is

yTT abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

invested in accordance with guidance from the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. The balance of treasury
management investments is expected to fluctuate between £2m and £15m during the 2025/26 financial year.

4.5 Contribution: The contribution that these investments make to the objectives of the Authority is to support effective treasury
management activities.

4.6  Further details: Full details of the Authority’s policies and its plan for 2025/26 for treasury management investments are
covered in a separate document, the treasury management strategy, which is part of these appendices.

Service Investments: Loans
4.7  Contribution: The Council will lend money to its subsidiaries, local businesses, local charities and housing associations to
support local public services and stimulate local economic growth.

4.8 Security: The main risk when making service loans is that the borrower will be unable to repay the principal lent and/or the
interest due. In order to limit this risk, and ensure that total exposure to service loans remains proportionate to the size of the
Authority, upper limits on the outstanding loans to each category of borrower have been set as follows:

GTT abed

9 wa)| epuaby



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

4.9

4.10

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Table 1: Loans for service purposes in £ millions

Category of borrower 31.3.2024 actual 2025/26
Balance Loss Net figure in Approved
owing allowance accounts Limit
£m
Subsidiaries 0 0 0 1.0
Local businesses 0 0 0 0.5
Local charities 0 0 0 0.5
Housing associations 0 0 0 1.0
TOTAL 0 0 0 3.0

4™ February 2025

Accounting standards require the Authority to set aside loss allowance for loans, reflecting the likelihood of non-payment. The
figures for loans in the Authority’s statement of accounts are shown net of this loss allowance. However, the Authority makes
every reasonable effort to collect the full sum lent and has appropriate credit control arrangements in place to recover overdue

repayments.

Risk assessment: The Authority assesses the risk of loss before entering into and whilst holding service loans by using
specialist advice to understand the market and the potential future demands of the market and the customers in it. It will also
use benchmarking data from the market to determine future potential risks which need to be planned for. External advice is
only sought from credible sources eg acknowledged experts in their fields and officers ensure that they fully understand any
information given to them before decision or advice is taken.

oTT abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Commercial Investments: Property

4.11 Contribution: The Authority invests via Regeneration schemes such as Levelling Up Fundings via the Government in property

412

4.13

4.14

4™ February 2025

with the intention of making a profit that will be spent on local public services. Levelling Up funding in being invested in

regenerating the Market Hall site and clearing the existing Fire Station site for future regeneration.

Table 2: Property held for investment purposes in £ millions

Property [type] Actual 31.3.2024 actual 31.3.2025 expected
Purchase Gains or Value in Gains or Value in
cost (losses) accounts (losses) accounts
N/A 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0

Security: In accordance with government guidance, the Authority considers a property investment to be secure if its

accounting valuation is at or higher than its purchase cost including taxes and transaction costs.

Where value in accounts is at or above purchase cost: A fair value assessment of the Authority’s investment property portfolio
has been made within the past twelve months, and the underlying assets provide security for capital investment. Should the
2024/25 year end accounts preparation and audit process value these properties below their purchase cost, then an updated
investment strategy will be presented to full Council detailing the impact of the loss on the security of investments and any
revenue consequences arising therefrom.

Where value in accounts is below purchase cost: The fair value of the Authority’s investment property portfolio is no longer

sufficient to provide security against loss, and the Authority is therefore taking mitigating actions to protect the capital invested.

/TT abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

4.15 Risk assessment: The Authority assesses the risk of loss before entering into and whilst holding property investments by
involving specialist advisors with expertise in the type of property being purchased, looking at historic data and speaking to
other councils undertaking similar activities.

4.16 Liquidity: Compared with other investment types, property is relatively difficult to sell and convert to cash at short notice and
can take a considerable period to sell in certain market conditions. To ensure that the invested funds can be accessed when
they are needed, for example to repay capital borrowed, the Council ensures that properties purchased are in an active market
where there is demonstrable demand to ensure that the authority does not purchase assets which it will not be able to sell on
at a later date.

Loan Commitments and Financial Guarantees

4.17 Although not strictly counted as investments, since no money has exchanged hands yet, loan commitments and financial
guarantees carry similar risks to the Authority and are included here for completeness.

Proportionality

4.18 The Council does not plan to become dependent on profit generating investment activity to achieve a balanced revenue
budget.

Borrowing in Advance of Need

gTT abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

4.19

Government guidance is that local authorities must not borrow more than or in advance of their needs purely in order to profit
from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. The Council would only not follow this guidance if interest rate forecasts and
treasury advisor guidance set out that it was more cost effective, in terms of significantly reduced debt interest charges,
for the Council to borrow for the approved 3 year capital programme at a point of time rather than when that expenditure is
taking place over that 3 year period. It is unlikely that this will happen however the option should not be closed off. Funds
would be invested. The Councils policies in investing the money borrowed, including management of the risks, would be as
per normal short term Treasury Investments.

Capacity, Skills and Culture

4.20

421

Elected members and statutory officers: Member training will take place annually as part of the induction process. External
advisors will provide reports to support investment decisions with officers ensuring that they fully understand them and can
relate them to the strategic objectives and risk profile of the Council.

Commercial deals: Significant work has been undertaken using external advisors and relevant training courses have been
attended to ensure that officers are fully aware of the code and statutory requirements of a local authority which is investing.

KPMG have developed a modelling tool for the Council to use when assessing potential purchases as a precursor to engaging
with external consultants to ensure that potential purchases are likely to make sense from the perspective of the authority
before incurring advisor costs. However, following an internal review of the policy, it has been decided that the Council may
wish to make purchases which do not make a financial return or may indeed make a loss in the short term. On these occasions
a business case will be developed which specifies the non-financial benefits of the investment. These are likely to be
regenerative schemes for the greater good of the area with an intended long term impact. The regenerative and redevelopment
benefits which will flow from the investment will be taken into account in the development of the business case, so if the net
investment yield falls below 0.75% it can still proceed if these benefits are deemed to outweigh the lower than target yield.

6TT 9bed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

4.22

Corporate governance: when investment decisions are to be made, they are to be led by the Council’s Director of Finance
in consultation with the Corporate Management Team. They will assess the potential investment opportunity using the KPMG
finance appraisal model and should they decide it presents a strong opportunity for the Council and complies with the relevant
criteria a conditional offer can be made. A business case will then be developed and presented ensuring that once greater
detail is included, it makes a satisfactory income yield and/or economic redevelopment and regeneration impact. When the
business case is completed, if it is still compliant with the Council criteria, it will be presented to Cabinet for approval before
purchase is completed. Once a purchase has been made the Director of Finance will provide quarterly reports in line with
financial and monitoring reports on the status of the investment.

Investment Indicators

4.23

4.24

The Authority has set the following quantitative indicators to allow elected members and the public to assess the Authority’s
total risk exposure as a result of its investment decisions.

Total risk exposure: The first indicator shows the Authority’s total exposure to potential investment losses. This includes
amounts the Authority is contractually committed to lend but have yet to be drawn down and guarantees the Authority has
issued over third party loans.

02T abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 4™ February 2025

Table 3: Total investment exposure in £millions

. 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2026
Total investment exposure
Actual Forecast Forecast
Treasury management investments 10 11 13
Service investments: Loans 0 0 0
Commercial investments: Property 0 0 0
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 10 11 13
Commitments to lend 0 0 0
Guarantees issued on loans 0 0 0 g
TOTAL EXPOSURE 10 11 10 %
|_\
N
|_\

4.25 How investments are funded: Government guidance is that these indicators should include how investments are funded.
Since the Authority does not normally associate particular assets with particular liabilities, this guidance is difficult to comply
with. However, the following investments could be described as being funded by borrowing. The remainder of the Authority’s
investments are funded by usable reserves and income received in advance of expenditure.

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Table 4: Investments funded by borrowing in £millions

4™ February 2025

Investments funded by borrowing 31A003;f;24 3;'0?::;:2;;5 3;6?,:;'02;;6
Treasury management investments 0 0 0
Service investments: Loans 0 0 0
Service investments: Shares 0 0 0
Commercial investments: Property 0 0 0
TOTAL FUNDED BY BORROWING 0 0 0

4.26 Rate of return received: This indicator shows the investment income received less the associated costs, including the cost
of borrowing where appropriate, as a proportion of the sum initially invested. Note that due to the complex local government
accounting framework, not all recorded gains and losses affect the revenue account in the year they are incurred.

2cT abed

Table 5: Investment rate of return (net of all costs)

Investments net rate of return 2023124 2024125 2025/26
Actual Forecast Forecast >
Treasury management investments 5.2 4.9 4.6 «Q
Service investments: Loans 0 0 0 c:DS
Service investments: Shares 0 0 0 o
Commercial investments: Property 0 0 0 QJ
ALL INVESTMENTS 5.2 4.9 4.6 g
=
(@)



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Appendix | — Results of the Budget Consultation

4™ February 2025

Redditch Borough Council - Budget Consultation for 2025/26

The budget consultation opened on Thu 5 December 2024. An email invite was sent to the Redditch Community Panel. The survey was also
promoted on a variety of social media channels.
The survey closed at 12noon on Thursday 2 January 2025. The response rate for the community panel was 44%. There were a total of 322
valid responses received.

Q no.

Question

Responses

Tota

%

Responses
(:?211) ﬁ;ﬁggubisriensécsjsrg[azfezidedrggh Borough and/or Resident of Redditch Borough 320 99.7%
Have a business based here 21 6.5%
Q2 Please tell us where you live or where your Abbeydale 7 2.2%
(319) | business is located. Abbey Park 3 0.9%
) ) ) ) Astwood Bank 12 3.8%
(Pesse note fyou e and have s business | pachiey 7w
live) ' Brockhill 7 2.2%
Callow Hill 11 3.4%
Church Hill North 10 3.1%
Church Hill South 11 3.4%
Crabbs Cross 8 2.5%
Enfield 2 0.6%
Feckenham 3 0.9%
Greenlands 17 5.3%
Headless Cross 26 8.2%
Hunt End 10 3.1%
Ipsley 4 1.3%
Lakeside 6 1.9%

c2T abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

4™ February 2025

Lodge Park 10 3.1%

Matchborough East 16 5.0%

Matchborough West 10 3.1%

Oakenshaw 5 1.6%

Oakenshaw South 7 2.2%

Riverside 5 1.6%

Smallwood 2 0.6%

Southcrest 16 5.0%

St. Georges 0 0.0%

Town Centre 10 3.1%

Walkwood 6 1.9%

Webheath 31 9.7%

Winyates East 11 3.4%

Winyates Green 9 2.8%

Winyates West 7 2.2%

Wire Hill 1 0.3%

Woodrow North 5 1.6%

Woodrow South 4 1.3%

Q3 Which services do you think it is important for [ Community and Voluntary Sector 46 14.3%
(321) | the Council to investin? Community Parks and Open Spaces 130 40.5%
Please note that Highways are not included as Communlty Safety — 158 49.2%
this is a Worcestershire County Council Environmental SUS'[a..Ir??.blhty 50 15.6%
function Events and Arts Activities 42 13.1%
Housing 135 42.1%

Please pick your top 3 most important. Local Economic Development and Employment 111 34.6%
Maintenance of the Landscape and Environment 148 46.1%

Waste and Recycling 98 30.5%

2T abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

4™ February 2025

Welfare and Financial Support 80 24.9%

Q4 Do you agree that the Council should reinvest | Strongly agree 74 23.1%
(320) |[in technology'in order to r_nake services more | agree 116 36.3%
Eicduerfeéueﬁf?ectlve and efficient and to be digital Neither agree nor disagree o 27 20
Disagree 36 11.3%

Strongly disagree 7 2.2%

Q5 Do you agree that the Council should invest in | Strongly agree 88 27.4%
(321) economic_ development in order to support Agree 159 49.5%
Lﬁ?g:iggzlgizsle:k’iIslggport start-ups and Neither agree nor disagree 57 17.8%
Disagree 13 4.0%

Strongly disagree 4 1.2%

Q6 Do you agree that the Council should be Strongly agree 45 14.0%
(321) |investing in events e.g. Christmas lights? Agree 124 38.6%
Neither agree nor disagree 91 28.3%

Disagree 47 14.6%

Strongly disagree 14 4.4%

Q7 Do you agree that the Council should invest Strongly agree 52 16.3%
(320) more in our front-line se_:r'vices to cover Agree 153 47.8%
Lnecrreeaa\mlseenS]érr:tfgzlr\irggsu?tlIlty costs e.g. fleet and Neither agree nor disagree 89 27.8%
Disagree 22 6.9%

Strongly disagree 4 1.3%

Q8 Do you agree that the Council should invest in | Strongly agree 84 26.3%
(320) i'Fs land and assets to ensure t.hey are safe and Agree 185 57.8%
E;fgsrr;[hd?gut;[gcrﬁ?e.g. dealing with trees affected Neither agree nor disagree a1 12 8%
Disagree 7 2.2%

GZT abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

4™ February 2025

Strongly disagree 3 0.9%

Q9 Do you agree that the Council needs to involve | Strongly agree 74 23.1%

(321) ?/ourll%people m%re in decision making and Agree 137 42 7%

ocal democracy: Neither agree nor disagree 76 23.7%
Disagree 31 9.7%

Strongly disagree 3 0.9%

Q10 | Do you agree that the Council should invest in ronal r v 23 8%

(320) | Rubicon (the company which provides leisure services Strongly agree 6 3.8%
for the Council e.g. Abbey Stadium and Arrow Valley 0

Countryside Centre) in order to deliver better Agree 155 48.4%

services for the community, increase income ; :

. ' : Neither agree nor d ee 52 16.3%

and ultimately reduce costs for the Council? iher agree nor disagr °
Disagree 25 7.8%

Strongly disagree 12 3.8%

Q11 | Do you agree that the Council should invest in | Strongly agree 45 14.1%

(320) greater data and sys(tje(rjns support Ii(r_1 or’()jer to Agree 122 38.1%

IMPTove services and decision maxing - Neither agree nor disagree 110 34.4%

Disagree 33 10.3%

Strongly disagree 10 3.1%

Q12 | Do you support fees and charges (such as hire | Strongly agree 44 13.7%

(321) p()flst?) rising b_y.4% t(t) If(f(_eep thertn j)n line with Agree 109 34.0%

inflation and rising statfing costs: Neither agree nor disagree 71 22.1%

Disagree 61 19.0%

Strongly disagree 36 11.2%

o¢T abed

9 wa)| epuaby



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

4™ February 2025

increasing income to ensure Council services

) . This was an open question and the comments will be analysed separately
remain sustainable.

Q13 | In order to maintain services, what level of increase to Redditch Borough Council's proportion of Council Tax do you
support?
Q13a | Increase of 1.99% Agree strongly 72 27.1%
(266) Agree 92 34.6%
Neither agree nor disagree 46 17.3%
Disagree 25 9.4%
Disagree strongly 31 11.7%
Q13b [ Increase of 2.99% Agree strongly 45 18.3%
(246) Agree 48 19.5%
Neither agree nor disagree 28 11.4%
Disagree 41 16.7%
Disagree strongly 84 34.1%
Q14 | Please let us know your suggestions for
(182) | investing in the Borough to increase
prosperity and enhance appeal for residents This was an open question and the comments will be analysed separately
and businesses alike.
Q15 | Please let us know any other comments on the
(132) | budget or ideas for reducing costs or

/2T abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

4™ February 2025

About You

- Make our council services open to everyone in the district

- Treat everyone fairly and appropriately when they use our services
- In consultations, make sure that we have views from all across the district
The Equality Act 2010 makes these aims part of our legal duties. Your answers help us check that we have met the law and help improve our services.

Answering these questions is optional. Any answers are completely anonymous and confidential. The reason why we ask you these questions is so we can:

Q16 | What is your current housing status? Owner 157 49.8%
(315) Mortgaged 87 27.6%
Part rent/part buy 2 0.6%
Private renting 14 4.4%
Council tenant 40 12.7%
Social housing 5 1.6%
Living with relatives 4 1.3%
Private renting 5 1.6%
Other (please specify) 1 0.3%
Q17 | Which of the following best describes your 16-19yrs 0 0.0%
(316) | age? 20-29yrs 6 1.9%
30-39yrs 35 11.1%
40-49yrs 47 14.9%
50-59yrs 79 25.0%
60-69yrs 58 18.4%
70-79yrs 72 22.8%
80+ years 13 4.1%
Prefer not to say 6 1.9%
Yes 105 33.2%

g¢T abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

4™ February 2025

Do you have any long-standing health
018 | condition or disability? ’ No 191 | 60.4%
(316) _(The _Equality Act 2010 defines Qisability as ‘a physical or mental
impairment _that has a substantial and long-term adverse effect Prefer not to say 20 6.3%
on your ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities’)
Q19 | Which best describes your gender? Male 141 44.6%
(316) Female 157 49.7%
Prefer not to say 13 4.1%
Other (please specify) 5 1.6%
Q20 | Which best describes your ethnicity White English, Welsh, Scottish, Northern Irish, British 282 89.5%
(315) Any other White background 5 1.6%
Mixed or Multiple ethnic groups 2 0.6%
Asian or Asian British 4 1.3%
Black, African, Caribbean or Black British Arab 0 0.0%
Prefer not to say 20 6.3%
Other ethnic group 2 0.6%
Q21 | Which best describes your religion or belief? Atheist 35 11.1%
(316) Buddhist 1 0.3%
Christian 166 52.5%
Humanist 3 0.9%
Hindu 1 0.3%
Jewish 0 0.0%
Muslim 2 0.6%
Pagan 1 0.3%
Sikh 1 0.3%
No religion/belief 79 25.0%
Prefer not to say 23 7.3%

62T abed

9 wa)| epuaby



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

4™ February 2025

Other (please specify) 4 1.3%
Q49 | Which of the following best describes your Bisexual 11 3.5%
(314) | sexual orientation? Heterosexual 261 83.1%
Lesbian or Gay 7 2.2%
Prefer not to say 29 9.2%
Other (please specify) 6 1.9%

0ST abed

9 wa)| epuaby



Page 131 Agenda Item 7

HReddith

Borough Counci Overview

Working together for our communites an d Vionday, 13th January, 2025

Scrutiny
Committee

N”NUTES Present:

Councillor Matthew Dormer (Chair), and Councillors William Boyd,
Andrew Fry, Joanna Kane, Sachin Mathur, Rita Rogers, Paul Wren and
Brandon Clayton

Also Present:

Councillor Joe Baker — Leader of the Council

Councillor Sharon Harvey — Deputy Leader of the Council

Councillor Juliet Barker-Smith — Portfolio Holder for Leisure

Councillor Bill Hartnett — Portfolio Holder for Housing

Councillor Jane Spilsbury — Portfolio Holder for Performance

Officers:

Guy Revans, Ruth Bamford, Simon Parry, Matthew Austin, Ishrat Karimi-
Fini, Andrew Rainbow and Darren Whitney

Democratic Services Officers:

M Sliwinski

57. APOLOGIES AND NAMED SUBSTITUTES
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Munro and
Warhurst. Councillor Clayton was in attendance at the meeting as a
named substitute for Councillor Warhurst.

58. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND OF PARTY WHIP
There were no declarations of interest nor of party whip.

59. MINUTES
It was requested that the following addition (shown in italics below)

be made to the minutes record (Minute No. 56) to correct an
inaccuracy, as follows: “A further meeting of WMCA Overview and

Chair



Page 132 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny

Committee

Monday, 13th January, 2025

60.

61.

Scrutiny Committee took place earlier today (25" November) and it
was reported that the only item on the agenda that was of relevance
to Redditch Borough Council was homelessness / rough sleeping.

It was agreed by the Committee that, subject to this correction, the
minutes of the meeting of Overview and Scrutiny Committee of 25%
November 2024 be approved as a correct record.

RESOLVED that

the Minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting
held on 25" November 2024 be approved as atrue record and
signed by the Chair, subject to the correction as stated in the
preamble above.

PUBLIC SPEAKING

There were no public speakers who registered to speak at this
meeting.

INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL RECOMMENDATIONS
- PRE-SCRUTINY

The Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) report in respect of
recommendations for Members’ allowances for 2025-26 was
presented. It was noted that the Council was required to consider
the recommendations of the Panel, however, it was not obliged to
agree with them. The Council could choose to implement the
Panel’s recommendations in full or in part, or not to accept them.

It was noted that the IRP had recommended a basic allowance of
£5,826 which represented a 5.58 per cent increase from its
recommendation last year. However, since the Council did not
accept last year's IRP recommendation concerning the basic
allowance, the current proposal to the basic allowance would
represent a 19.6 per cent increase, if approved.

During Members’ discussion, it was noted that over the past 6-7
years there were some years when the Council had chosen not to
increase the basic allowance in line with IRPs recommendation.
And this year, as the IRP recommendation was not accepted last
year, the percentage gap between the level of basic allowance set
and the IRP recommendation for the next year had become larger.

In reference to paragraph 3.5 of the report, it was explained that the
figures for the basic allowance were agreed after the budget for



Page 133 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny

Committee

Monday, 13th January, 2025

62.

2024-25 (current budget) was made, thus reflecting the budget
shortfall at that time. However, any increases to the basic allowance
and/or to the Special Responsibility Allowances (SRAs), should
they be agreed, would be accounted for in the next year’s budget.

Some Members commented that it might be appropriate to raise the
basic allowance in line with IRPs recommendations in order to
make the elected member role more appealing and open to groups
such as younger adults. The Leader of the Council was invited to
address the Committee and commented that he was in favour of an
increase to the basic allowance but thought that there should be no
rise to the SRAs. The Leader further noted that any increase to the
basic allowance should not be at a level of 19.6 per cent but rather
a significantly lower percentage increase.

During consideration of the item, a recommendation was proposed
in respect of this item by Councillor Andy Fry to the effect that the
basic allowance and Special Responsibility Allowances (SRAS)
should be increased approximately in line with the rate of inflation at
the time of the Council making a decision on this matter for 2025-
26. This recommendation was seconded by Councillor Joanna
Kane. On being put to the vote, this recommendation was carried.

RECOMMENDED that

the basic allowance and the special responsibility allowances
(SRAs) should be increased by approximately the rate of
inflation.

DAMP AND MOULD ADDITIONAL RESOURCES - PRE-
SCRUTINY

The report was presented in respect of the additional resources
proposed for the Council to deal with damp and mould issues in its
capacity as a social housing provider.

It was noted that the Government had made major changes to the
law on damp and mould and primary legislation had been enacted
through the Social Housing (Regulation) Act 2023. However, further
details of the exact scope of the new regime in respect of this issue
would only become clear once secondary legislation had been
introduced and this had been delayed. It was possible that the final
version of Awaab’s Law would be wider than the original
expectation and could cover other housing health hazards in
addition to damp and mould.



Page 134 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny

Committee

Monday, 13th January, 2025

The Council’'s Housing Property Services had made significant
efforts to minimise the problem of damp and mould in council
homes over the last few years acting with the limited resources
available. However, in light of the new legislation, the Council did
not have sufficient resources to further improve its delivery of repair
services and ensure action was compliant with the appropriate
timescales set out in legislation. Accordingly, the report proposed
that a dedicated “Damp and Mould” team be established to address
the prevalent issue of mould and dampness in council homes and
to ensure that the council could meet the challenging timescales to
investigate and remedy issues that had been set out in Awaab’s
Law.

With reference to the data that from 1St April 2023 to 31t March
2024 the Council received reports of damp and mould in respect of
373 social housing properties. It was clarified that this was a figure
for the number of reports received in that year rather than an overall
figure for the number of council homes in Redditch that could be
affected by damp and mould. It was further clarified that damp and
mould issues could develop in any property and at any time: it was
therefore imperative that resources were available to deal with any
reports of damp and mould that are received on an ongoing basis.

It was highlighted that the Council needed to react to any reports of
damp and mould in line with the timescales set out in Awaab’s Law.
For example, for any investigation where there was reported hazard
which poses a significant risk to the health or safety of the resident,
the registered social housing provider must begin repair works
within 7 calendar days of the written summary being issued. There
was a high risk of penalties from the regulator if the timescales set
out in the legislation were not met. This also justified the
requirement for extra resources and a dedicated ‘Damp and Mould’
team.

A Member queried how properties with damp and mould problems
were currently being identified by the Council given lack of inspector
capacity. It was responded that at present there were surveyors
within the capital programmes team who could undertake this work.
However, more officer capacity was required to deal with demand,
also resulting from legislative requirements. To cover the Borough,
it was estimated that four full-time officers undertaking inspection
and health and safety duties would be required.

With respect to when the appropriate secondary legislation is due to
come into effect, it was responded that this was currently unknown
but the creation of a dedicated ‘Damp and Mould’ Team would



Page 135 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny
Committee

Monday, 13th January, 2025

63.

ensure that the Council could meet its duties in anticipation of this
legislation and that it addressed what was a continuing issue.

The Portfolio Holder for Housing was invited to comment and in
doing so he welcomed the report and emphasised that the costs
associated with establishing a dedicated damp and mould team
would only likely be a small part of the total costs that would need to
be invested into the issue. The Portfolio Holder commented that
measures proposed in the report before Members would, in the
longer term, provide a financial saving to the authority and provide
the Council with better ability to respond to reports of damp and
mould.

The recommendations as contained in the report as submitted were
endorsed.

RECOMMENDED that:

1) Subject to the approval of recommendation 2, Members
approve the contents of the Damp and Mould Business
Case and the establishment of a Damp and Mould Team.

2) £115,770 be released from the HRA budget for the
financial year 2024/25 to cover the costs of the new team
and that thereafter the costs summarized at paragraph
4.3 of the report of £463,078 be met from the HRA
budget.

REDDITCH BOROUGH PLAY AUDIT AND INVESTMENT
STRATEGY - UPDATE REPORT

An update on progress in implementing the play audit and
investment strategy proposals was provided to the Committee.
Members were informed that the Play Audit and Investment
Strategy was adopted on 9" January 2024, following consideration
by both the Overview and Scrutiny and Executive Committees.

It was recapped that the play audit was commissioned in 2023-24
and provided a number of key recommendations in respect of the
play area provision in the Borough. Consultation with ward
members and the local community was planned for early 2025 in
relation to plans for a new play area at Abbey Fields (Terrys Fields
Abbeydale), and about proposals for removal of play sites at
Dolphin Road and Dale Road, earmarked for removal in 2026-27.
The consultation for all three sites would take place at the same
time and would enable officers to further understand the local need.



Page 136 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny
Committee

Monday, 13th January, 2025

It was clarified that the consultation had not been launched yet and
all ward members for these sites would be contacted regarding this
consultation within the next couple of months.

There would be further consultations planned for this financial year
with regard to play areas at Throckmorton, Banners Lane, and
Lodge Pool Drive (consultation with ward members and community
about the type of equipment / options by a contractor). In addition,
there would be consultation for Greenland’s Playing Fields to
understand the local need. Play area refurbishment work to be
carried out in the 2025-26 financial year would include Cardington
Close, Lowlands Lane, Springvale Road play areas, in addition to
repairs and maintenance work at Forge Mill play area.

Officers explained that in relation to play areas there were two types
of consultation. Where there was a change proposed to an existing
play area, the consultation would describe what type of equipment
could be put in that play area and ask local residents for their views.
This type of consultation would take place after a contractor had
been procured to undertake the work, with the outcome of the
consultation determining precise play equipment to be installed.
The second type of consultation was where there was a proposal
for reconfiguration of play areas such as play area creation or
removal. In this case, the process began with the Portfolio Holder
for Leisure about approach to be taken before any proposals for
consultation were released.

Once the report had been presented, Members discussed the
following points in detail:

e Management of play areas on private roads and under
private management — It was confirmed that for private play
areas, residents should direct queries to the management
company that managed their play area.

e Maintaining play areas for use by older children and
teenagers — The Officers responded that Council’s policy
was that play areas should be sociable for children of all
ages, which included providing space for teenagers to
congregate in groups. However, graffiti was not allowed and
was monitored by the Council. It was added that there was a
play area inspector who visited play area sites on a regular
basis to undertake checks on safety of equipment. In
addition, visual checks were carried out by staff from Parks
and Environmental Services teams.

e Importance of area’s health factors when assessing suitable
locations for play areas — It was noted that as part of the play



Page 137 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny
Committee

Monday, 13th January, 2025

audit, the approach to determining appropriate provision was
through Redditch Play Accessibility Model which classified
outdoor play spaces as local or neighbourhood level
provision and defined targets for accessibility of this
provision — i.e. walking distance from home to the play area.
The play assessment and investment strategy attached set
out an approach that would increase the accessibility of play
provision across the Borough. In addition, the document took
account of factors such as children and adolescent obesity in
an area and general health deprivation when considering
locations.

e Localities where play equipment needed replacing -
Members considered some play areas where concerns had
been raised about the standard of the play areas. This
included play areas in Matchborough ward — Eathorpe Close,
which was due for removal in 2026-27 financial year and
Matchborough Rocks.

The Portfolio Holder for Leisure was invited to address the
Committee and in doing so took the opportunity to thank the officers
for their work in preparing a detailed play investment strategy and
for providing this progress update. The Portfolio Holder welcomed
the scrutiny of this area by Overview and Scrutiny and noted that
this item provided an opportunity to review the strategy for its
continuing relevance. The Portfolio Holder for Leisure stated that
consultation with residents and elected members would continue to
be of paramount importance when deciding on any changes to play
area provision.
RESOLVED that
the update to the Redditch Play Assessment at Appendix 1
(June 2023) and the Redditch Investment Strategy at Appendix
2 (December 2023), which is provided as Redditch Play
Investment update at Appendix 3 (December 2024), be noted.
64. FOOD WASTE BUSINESS CASE AND ASSOCIATED WASTE

RELATED ISSUES - PRE-SCRUTINY

The report concerning the introduction of a food waste collection
service was presented. It was noted that the Government had set a
new statutory duty under the Environment Act 2021 to introduce a
dedicated separate weekly collection of food waste from all
households by 315t March 2026.



Page 138 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny

Committee

Monday, 13th January, 2025

Confirmation had not yet been provided on the new burdens
funding that would be made available by the Government to the
authority to help cover the costs of delivering this service. Following
modelling, the indicative cost of operating a food waste collection
service across Redditch was anticipated to be at just over £500,000
(not including additional expenditure on infrastructure). It was
recommended that the Council allocate £500,000 revenue funding
as an operational budget from 2026/27 financial year to ensure the
cover of operational costs.

It was noted that the Council was due to receive more information
on transitional funding for the food waste service within the next
months. It was added that the Council recently had confirmation
that it would receive £814,000 of Extended Producer Responsibility
(EPR) funding. As this funding was not ringfenced, it was suggested
that this could be utilised should there be a shortfall to operate the
food waste service. In response to a Member question, it was noted
that the receipt of EPR funding would be unrelated to timings for
when the Council had to invest in the service, therefore, the Council
had to have funds to cover these costs upfront.

At a local level, there were space issues at the depot in relation to
accommodating vehicles for the delivery of a food waste collection
service. These vehicles could not be accommodated alongside the
existing fleet. Officers had concluded that it would not be viable to
purchase more land to accommodate the additional vehicles, so this
was not considered to be a suitable option for the Council at this
time.

Taking into account existing pressures and uncertainties, Officers
were proposing that the Council should procure the food waste
collection service through a private sector company. ldeally, the
Council would have aimed to deliver the service inhouse, but this
was not considered to be feasible at this stage. The proposal was to
procure the service for a period of up to eight years.

To maximise interest in this opportunity within the private sector,
Redditch Borough Council would aim to procure this service jointly
with Bromsgrove District Council and Wyre Forest District Council.
There was no guarantee that the procurement exercise would be
successful. However, if the procurement process was unsuccessful,
the Council could report back to the Department of Environment,
Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) highlighting the issues that had
been experienced and a request could then be submitted to extend
the deadline for the introduction of the service in the Borough.



Page 139 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny
Committee

Monday, 13th January, 2025

Following the presentation of the report, Members discussed the
following matters in detail:

e The forthcoming deadline, in spring 2026, for Councils to
introduce a food waste collection service and the implications
of possible non-compliance. Members were advised that as
long as the Council had a clear plan in place the authority
would likely not be seen as failing in terms of compliance.

e The extent to which the Council would be able to meet the
Government’s deadline to introduce the food waste collection
service if this was not outsourced to the private sector.
Officers confirmed that the Council was unlikely to meet the
deadline if a decision was taken to deliver this service
inhouse at this stage.

e The reasons why the Council had opted for an eight-year
length for the proposed contract. Members were advised that
this would help to affray the financial costs involved. For a
shorter contract, a private sector company was likely to
require the same financial investment from the authority but
over a shorter period of time and this could be difficult for the
Council to manage. In addition, it was highlighted that a
typical lifespan of food collection vehicles was eight years.

e The procurement of caddies for the food waste service. It
was noted that options were being considered in terms of
whether the cost of procuring the caddies should be
incorporated into the contract with the third party provider or
purchased by the Council directly. It was proposed that each
household should receive two caddies, one kitchen caddie
for residents to put their food waste into, and a second large
caddy to put out by the curbside on food waste collection
days. It was currently uncertain whether bin liners would be
provided inside the caddy.

e Frequency of household waste collections under the new
regulations. An example of Stratford District Council was
provided which had weekly food waste collection, fortnightly
recycling and garden waste (paid) collections, and a three-
weekly black bin collection. At Stratford, there was an app
developed to assist residents with understanding on which
days they needed to put which bins out for collection. It was
stated that this report was only concerned with introduction
of food waste service and once the Council had increased
the range of waste collections, it would be looking to provide
an app to assist residents.

The recommendations as set out in the report were endorsed for
onward recommendation to the Executive Committee.



Page 140 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny
Committee

Monday, 13th January, 2025

65.

66.

RECOMMENDED that

1) Subject to the outcome of negotiations, the introduction
of a joint Food Waste Collection Service be approved,
working with Bromsgrove District Council and Wyre
Forest District Council to deliver the authority’s
statutory duties under the Environment Act 2021
regarding a Food Waste Collection service;

2) Delegated authority be granted to the Assistant Director
of Environmental and Housing Property Services
following consultation with the Section 151 Officer, the
Principal  Solicitor (Contracts, Commercial and
Procurement) and the Portfolio Holders for Finance and
Environmental Services respectively, subject to the
agreement of recommendations 1 and 3, to:

a) negotiate and agree terms with Bromsgrove District
Council and Wyre Forest District Council to enter into
a joint tender for a shared food waste collection
service;

b) tender and award a dedicated weekly food waste
collection service through a third party for a period of
8 years commencing no later than 31 March 2026.

3) The Council allocate £500,000 Revenue Funding in the
Medium-Term Financial Plan as an operational budget
from 2026/27 to fund the Food Waste Collection Service
in the Borough, as accounted for within tranche 1 of the
budget.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

It was agreed that exclusion of the public and press was not
necessary in relation to Minute Item 66. Housing Ombudsman’s
Findings Report — Pre-Scrutiny, as it was noted that this report no
longer considered any exempt information. The meeting remained
in public session for its entire duration.

HOUSING OMBUDSMAN'S FINDINGS REPORT - PRE-
SCRUTINY

The Housing Ombudsman’s Findings Report which detailed a
finding of maladministration in the Council’'s response to the



Page 141 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny
Committee

Monday, 13th January, 2025

67.

resident’s reports of damp, mould and a ticking noise and the
Council’'s complaint handling.

The Officers present provided sincere apology on behalf of the
Council for the circumstances and the failings in this case. It was
noted that the Council had reviewed causes of the failing in this
case and was taking actions to improve matters. An apology and a
compensation had been provided to the affected resident in line
with the Housing Ombudsman’s decision.

Following this review and the Ombudsman’s orders and
recommendations to the Council, the Council had been taking a
number of actions to ensure improvement in its handling of
customer enquiries and complaints, including:

e Creation of a standalone Noise Policy which has regard to
best practice and industry standards. A similar production of
a standalone Compensation Policy.

e To improve the accuracy of recordkeeping, the central
depository (mailbox/letterbox) for housing complaints
emails/letters had been set up to ensure information was
escalated to senior management.

e Provision of training for relevant staff to ensure that they are
equipped to respond to queries from vulnerable residents.

e As referenced earlier in the meeting with reference to the
establishment of a damp and mould team, there would be
emphasis on the multi-disciplinary teams attending to
tenants’ properties for repairs to observe for any issues while
attending to the jobs.

RECOMMENDED that

1) The findings, orders and recommendations from the
Housing Ombudsman be noted.

2) Compliance with those matters by the Council and the
wider learning points be noted.

TASK GROUPS, SHORT SHARP REVIEWS AND WORKING
GROUPS - UPDATE REPORTS

Updates on Task Groups and Working Groups were provided as
follows:

a) Budget Scrutiny Working Group — Chair, Councillor Warhurst



Page 142 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny
Committee

Monday, 13th January, 2025

68.

As Councillor Warhurst submitted his apologies, he did not provide
an update.

It was noted that the Budget Scrutiny Working Group met on 9%
January 2025 and considered finance reports due to be considered
by the Executive Committee on 14" January. The Budget Scrutiny
Working Group had endorsed the recommendations contained in
the reports it considered: Council Tax Base 2025/26, Final Council
Tax Support Scheme 2025/2026; HRA Rent Setting 2025/26,
Medium Term Financial Plan — Tranche 1 Budget including Fees
and Charges (following consultation).

b) Performance Scrutiny Working Group — Chair, Councillor
Warhurst

As Councillor Warhurst submitted his apologies, there was no
update provided.

c) Fly Tipping and Bulky Waste Task Group — Chair, Councillor
Dormer

Councillor Dormer reported that this Group had not met since the
last meeting of Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

d) Post-16 Education Task Group — Chair, Councillor Warhurst

As Councillor Warhurst submitted his apologies, there was no
update provided.

RESOLVED that

the Task Groups, Short Sharp Reviews and Working Groups
Update Reports be noted.

EXTERNAL SCRUTINY BODIES - UPDATE REPORTS

Updates on the meetings of External Scrutiny Bodies were provided
by the representatives as follows:

a) West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA) Overview and
Scrutiny Committee — Council Representative, Councillor
Kane

Councillor Kane reported that the West Midlands Combined
Authority Overview and Scrutiny Committee had not met since the
last meeting of this Committee.



Page 143 Agenda Item 7

Overview and

Scrutiny
Committee

Monday, 13th January, 2025

69.

70.

b) West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA) Transport
Delivery Overview and Scrutiny — Council Representative,
Councillor Munro

As Councillor Munro submitted his apologies, there was no update
provided.

c) Worcestershire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
(HOSC) — Council Representative, Councillor Munro.

As Councillor Munro submitted his apologies, there was no update
provided.

RESOLVED that

the External Scrutiny Bodies updates be noted.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES AND SCRUTINY OF THE
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE'S WORK PROGRAMME - SELECTING
ITEMS FOR SCRUTINY

The Executive Committee Work Programme was submitted for
Members’ consideration.

RESOLVED that
the Executive Committee’s Work Programme be noted.
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME

The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme was submitted for
Members’ consideration.

RESOLVED that

the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme be noted.

The Meeting commenced at 6.30 pm

and closed at 8.11 pm




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Pay Policy 2025/26
	2025 RBC pay policy

	6 Medium Term Financial Plan - Tranche 2 Budget including Fees and Charges (following consultation)
	7 Overview and Scrutiny Committee

